
Cinergy Corp. 
139 East Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 960 
Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960 

February 28, 1996 

Ms. Kim Wissman 
Ohio Power Siting Board 
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
180 East Broad Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43266-0573 

Dear Ms. Wissman: 

CKNERCY. 

RE: LETTER OF NOTIFICATION FOR THE 
MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT TOWER RELOCATI 

RECEIVED 
FEB 2 f 1996 

DOCKETING DIVISION 
. - g p h i i r ^ Commission of Onio 

Pursuant to Ohio Administrative Code, Chapter 4906, Cinergy Corp. 
hereby submits an original and ten copies of the enclosed Letter 
of Notification (LON) for the Mulhauser Road Improvement Tower 
Relocation. 

Cinergy is requesting a waiver of Rule 4906-15-12(B), which 
requires a ninety day waiting period between filing of the LON 
and commencement of construction. This waiver will enable 
Cinergy to meet the requested relocation date and facilitate 
construction of the new road project in Butler County. The small 
scope of the project, its location on existing transmission line 
right-of-way, and its lack of adverse impact on any interested 
party argue for granting of this waiver. 

If you have any questions concerning this Letter of Notification 
or wish to make a site visit, please contact me at (513) 287-2672 

ery t ruly/lf^urs. 

>' 

W. THOMAS CHANEYx/aanager 
Natural Resource^anagement 
Training and Education 

WTC:tb 

Enclosures 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

PSI Energy, Inc. 
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THE CINCINNATI GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 
LETTER OF NOTIFICATION 

Mulhauser Road Improvement Tower Relocation 

The following information is in response to section 4906-15-12 of the 

Ohio Administrative Code, 

1. Project Name 

Mulhauser Road Improvement Tower Relocation. 

2. Project Description and Need 

(a) Location and Description of the project 

This project involves the relocation of one tower (#5) along 

the existing Port Union to Evendale 345KV and 138KV Tower line 

and two towers (#168 and #169) along the existing Beckjord to 

Port Union 138KV tower line. Tower #5 will be moved 50 feet 

south of its existing location. Tower #168 and Tower #169 will 

each be moved 50 feet north of their respective existing 

locations. There will be no change in the overall length of 

the lines. A U.S.G.S. 7.5 minute quadrangle map showing the 

proj ect area is shown in Attachment 1. Attachment 2 is a 

large scale vicinity map. 

(b) Need for the project 

This project is at the request of Butler County so that when 

they install an above grade road crossing over the railroad in 

the Mulhauser Road Improvement Project there will be adequate 

clearances to the existing electric transmission lines. 

3. Location per Long-Term Forecast Report 

This project is not included on maps provided to the Public Utilities 

Commission of Ohio under Electric Long-Term Forecast Report Rules. 

4. Reference per Electric Long-Term Forecast Report 

This project is not mentioned in the 1995 Electric Long-Term Forecast 

Report. 



5. Construction Schedule 

Estimated Construction Start Date: 3-1-96 

Estimated In-Service Date: 6-1-96 

6. General Description 

The proposed relocation of Towers #5, #168 and #169 will involve the 

installation of new tower foundations, new tower body extensions and 

using the existing towers on the new foundations and tower body 

extensions. Relocated Tower #5 will be type "BRD-V", approximately 

163 feet tall. Relocated Towers #168 and #169 will each be type 

"8A", approximately 144 feet tall. The relocation will be as 

described in paragraph 2. (a) above. 

(a) Calculated Electric and Magnetic Field Levels 

Electric and magnetic field values were calculated for one meter 

above ground under the lowest conductors and at the edge of 

right-of-way (50 feet from center line). These values are 

included as Attachment 3, 

(b) Design Alternatives 

The towers being relocated will be the existing towers and will 

be augmented with new foundation and body extensions of the same 

or similar design. 

7. Capital Costs 

Approximately $750,000 (to be born by Butler County Transportation 

Improvement funds). 

8. Land Use 

This project will occur solely within Union Township, Butler County. 

All affected land is under existing electric transmission right of 

way easements. All land in the project area is in industrial or 

agriculture land use. There are no residences in or around the 

project. 



9. Notification of Officials 

A copy of the letter transmitting this LON to the President of the 

Union Township Trustees, the Director of the Butler County Planning 

Department, and the Executive Director of the OKI Regional Council 

of Governments is included as Attachments 4, 5, and 6, respectively. 

10. Additional Information 

There are no unusual conditions that could result in significant 

environmental, social, health, or safety impacts associated with the 

construction, operation, or maintenance of the proposed project. 

11. Agricultural Districts 

The Butler County Auditors Office has reviewed the map of the 

project area against their agricultural district records and has 

determined that the project will not impact agricultural districts 

since construction will be limited to existing right-of-way. 

12 . Area Map 

A map of the area is included as Attachment 7. One route to the 

project area from Col\imbus is to take 1-71 south to 1-275, west on 

1-275 to State Route 747. Take State Route 747 north to Mulhauser 

Road. Turn right on Mulhauser Road to the project site. 

13. Cultural Resources 

Cinergy Corp. sent the Ohio Historic Preservation Office (OHPO) 

information about the project on February 20, 1996. Cinergy Corp. 

should receive a reply letter from the OHPO in mid-March and will 

forward a copy of the letter immediately upon receipt. A copy of 

the reply letter will be included as Attachment 8, when it is 

available. Archaeologists surveyed the area on February 12, 1996 

and found no evidence of cultural resource artifacts. A copy of the 

Archaeologists Report is Attachment 9. 



14. Designated Species 

Cinergy also contacted the Ohio Department of Natural Resources 

(ODNR) Natural Heritage Program for information on threatened, 

endangered, and other special species. A copy of the reply letter 

is included as Attachment 10. No designated species are known to 

exist within the project area. 

15. Areas of Ecological Concern 

The ODNR has no record of any areas of ecological concern within the 

project area (see Attachment 10). 

16. Other Agency Permits 

No state or local permits will be required. 

17. Current or Pending Litigation 

There is no known current or pending litigation involving this 

project. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
U.S.G.S. MAP 





ATTACHMENT 2 
LARGE SCALE VICINITY MAP 
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ATTACHMENT 3 
CALCULATED ELECTRIC AND MAGNETIC FIELD LEVELS 
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ATTACHMENT 4 
LETTER TO UNION TOWNSHIP 

BUTLER COUNTY, OHIO TRUSTEES 



Cinergy Corp. 
139 East Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 960 
Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960 

February 28, 1996 

Mr. Thomas Hayden, P r e s i d e n t GiNIEtiCY^ 
Union Township, Butler County, 
Ohio Trustees 
9113 Cincinnati-Dayton Road 
West Chester, Ohio 45069 

Dear Mr. Hayden: 

RE: MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT/TOWER 
RELOCATION LETTER OF NOTIFICATION 

Cinergy Corp. is planning to relocate two towers of an existing 
138kV transmission line and one tower of a parallel 345kV 
transmission line that run perpendicular to the proposed 
Mulhauser Road Improvement. 

In accordance with Ohio Administrative Code 4906-15-12(0 (9), we 
are hereby providing you with a copy of the Ohio Power Siting 
Board letter of notification for the project. Please feel free 
to call me at 287-2672 if you have any questions. 

Very ttulyrVours, 

W. THOMAS CHANE'^Manager 
Natural Resource Management 
Training and Education 

WTC:tb 

Enclosure 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

PSI Energy, Inc. 



ATTACHMENT 5 
LETTER TO BUTLER COUNTY PLANNING DIRECTOR 



Cinergy Corp. 
139 East Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 960 
Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960 

February 28,-1996 

Mr. Michael Juengling C^NEKCY* 
Butler County Dept, of Development 
Planning Division 
130 High Street, 6th Floor 
Hamilton, Ohio 45011 

Dear Mr. Juengling: 

RE: MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT/TOWER 
RELOCATION LETTER OF NOTIFICATION 

Cinergy Corp. is planning to relocate two towers of an existing 
138kV transmission line and one tower of a parallel 345kV 
transmission line that run perpendicular to the proposed -
Mulhauser Road Improvement. 

In accordance with Ohio Administrative Code 4906-15-12(0 (9), we 
are hereby providing you with a copy of the Ohio Power Siting 
Board letter of notification for the project. Please feel free 
to call me at 287-2672 if you have any questions. 

Very truly Voui's, 

W. THOMAS CHANEY, ifenager 
Natural Resource Management 
Training and Education 

WTC:tb 

Enclosure 

The Cincinnati Gas Sc Electric Company 



ATTACHMENT 6 
LETTER TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 
OKI REGIONAL COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 



Cinergy Corp. 
139 East Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 960 
Cincinnati, OH 45201-0960 

February 28^-1996 

Mr. James Q. Duane I W f l V d l C Y i 
Executive Director 
OKI Regional Council of Governments 
801-B West Eighth Street 
Cincinnati, OH 45203 

Dear Mr. Duane: 

RE: MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT/TOWER 
RELOCATION LETTER OF NOTIFICATION 

Cinergy Corp. is planning to relocate two towers of an existing 
138kV transmission line and one tower of a parallel 345kV 
transmission line that run perpendicular to the proposed 
Mulhauser Road Improvement. 

In accordance with Ohio Administrative Code 4906-15-12(0 (9), we 
are hereby providing you with a copy of the Ohio Power Siting 
Board letter of notification for the project. Please feel free 
to call me at 287-2672 if you have any questions. 

ry truly f/i^uxs, 

W. THOMAS CHANEYj-;::̂ anager 
Natural Resource^anagement 
Training and Education 

WTC:tb 

Enclosure 

The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Compan> 

PSI Energy. Inc. 



ATTACHMENT 7 
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ATTACHMENT 8 
SHPO REPLY LETTER 



ATTACHMENT 9 
ARCHAEOLOGISTS REPORT 



GRAY & PAPE 
I N C. • 
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February 16, 1996 
Mr. Tom Chaney 
Environmental Services 
Cinergy 
139 East 4th Street 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 

Dear Tom, 

REFERENCE; Phase I Archaeological 
Survey for Butler County LON 

Enclosed are four (4) copies of the referenced letter report. The survey did not 
identify any cultural resources in your project area. 

As always, if we can be of further service in this matter, please do not hesitate to 
call me. 

W. Kevin Pape 
President 
GRAY & PAPE, INC. 

GRAY & PAPE 96-0701 

PREHISTORIC & HISTORIC SITE SURVEY, EVALTJATIOK, TESTING & EXCAVATION • RESTORATION ARCHAEOLOGY 

ORAL HISTORY & ARCHIVAL RESEARCH • PRESERVATION TAX CONSULTING • HISTORIC ARCHITECTURAL ANALYSIS 

P R I N T E D ON R E C Y C L E D P A P E R 
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GRAY & PAPE 
I N C. 

CULTURAL RESOURCES CONSULTANTS 
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REPORT FOR LETTER OF NOTIFICATION ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
SURVEY OF PROPOSED RELOCATION OF ELECTRICAL 

TRANSMISSION TOWERS 5,168, AND 169 FOR THE 
MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT BUTLER 

COUNTY, OHIO 

Prepared For: 

Cinergy Corporation 

February 12, 1996 

MAIN' OFFICE: CINCINNATI. OHIO ' MID-ATI,ANTIC OFFICE: RICHMOND, VIRGINIA • WESTERN OFFICE; TEHACHAPI. CALIFORNIA 

PREHISTORIC & HISTORIC SITE SURVEY, EVALUATION, TESTING & EXCAVATION ' RESTORATION ARCHAEOLOGY 
ORAL HISTORY & ARCHIVAL RESEARCH • PRESERVATION TAX CONSULTING • HISTORIC ARCHITECTURAL ANALYSIS 



REPORT FOR LETTER OF NOTMCATION ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF 
PROPOSED RELOCATION OF ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION TOWERS 

5, 168, AND 169 FOR THE MULHAUSER ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
BUTLER COUNTY, OHIO 

PREPARED BY GRAY & PAPE, INC., FOR 
CINERGY CORPORATION 

CINCINNATI, OHIO 

16 FEBRUARY 1996 

INTRODUCTION 

This report presents the results of a Letter of Notification (LON) archaeological survey 
of the proposed Relocation of Electrical Transmission Towers 5,168, and 169 for the Mulhauser 
Road Improvement Project (Project) in Buder County, Ohio (Figure 1). These investigations 
were conducted for Cinergy Corporation, by Gray & Pape, Inc., Cincinnati, Ohio. The LON 
survey was conducted on February 12, 1996, Fieldwork was conducted by Patrick Bennett. 

The purpose of the LON survey was to locate and identify significant cultural resources 
within the proposed Project right-of-way (ROW) and to make recommendations for the prudent 
management of identified resoinces. 

RESULTS OF THE LON SURVEY 

ARCHIVAL LITERATURE REVIEW 

A literature review was conducted to identify previously inventoried cultural resources in 
the vicinity of the project area, and to identify any previous archaeological or cultural resources 
investigations in the vicinity. Sources consulted for this review included the National Register 
of Historic Places (NRHP); the Ohio Archaeological Inventory (OAI) site file and maps; reports 
of archaeological investigations on file at the Ohio Historic Preservation Office (OHPO); the 
Ohio Historic Inventory (OHI); and county files at the OHPO. 

No previous investigations have taken place in the immediate vicinity of the Project A 
review of the NRHP has shown that no listed or eligible properties are located within, or in 
proximity to, the Project. A review of die OAI identified a number of previously recorded 
archaeological sites in the general vicinity, but none within nor in proximity to the Project The 
OHI contained no records of previously inventoried historic structuies within, or in proximity to 
the Project 



ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY 

The entire Project area was subjected to cursory examination for evidence of cultural 
resources. Because the Project was confined to proposed tower locations shovel testing and 
walkover inspection were the methods of investigation used at all three tower locations. Shovel 
testing consisted of small excavations, approximately 16 inches (40 centimeters) square, spaced 
along a transects at 50-foot (15-meter) intervals across the project area. Each test was excavated 
into culturally-sterile subsoil, and all fill removed was passed through 1/4-inch (0.64-centimeter) 
mesh hardware cloth. No simations were encountered where shovel testing was insufficient to 
reach beyond the possible depth of culturally utilized surfaces. Walkover inspection was used 
in areas where archaeological sites were not likely and where the slope gradient was greater than 
15 per cent. Walkover inspection was also utilized in areas of severe landscape disturbance. 

Tower 5 

The proposed relocation of Tower 5 is 50 feet (15 meters) south of existing Tower 5 
(Figure 2). The area examined at this tower location measured 100 feet (30 meters) north-south 
and east-west. The proposed relocation was situated in a low and swampy area between an 
existing and abandoned railroad bed. Ground cover consisted of a tangle of briars and brushy 
undergrowth. For this reason the method of examination was shovel testing. A total of two 
shovel tests were excavated at this location, both of which were negative. The area along the 
western side of this proposed tower site was severely disturbed by earth moving activities and 
was therefore examined via cursory examination. No cultural resources were identified at the 
proposed relocation of Tower 5. 

Tower 169 

The proposed relocation of Tower 169 is located 50 feet (15 meters) south of existing 
Tower 5 (Figure 2). The area examined at this tower relocation measured 100 feet (30 meters) 
north-south and east-west. The proposed location was bounded by the edge of a cultivated field 
to the east, the Norfolk-Southern Railroad tracks to the west, and a small deeply channelized 
creek to the south. Ground cover consisted of a snow covered field, therefore, shovel testing was 
the method of investigation utilized. Three shovel tests were excavated at this location, all of 
which were negative. The area along the southern side of this proposed tower site was cut by 
the aforementioned creek and was therefore surveyed via cursory examination. No cultural 
resources were documented at the proposed relocation of Tower 169. 

Tower 168 

The proposed relocation of Tower 168 was 50 feet (15 meters) north of existing Tower 
168 (Figiu-e 2). The area examined measured 100 feet (30 meters) north-south and east-west 



The proposed relocation was situated in a low and swan^ty area between an existing and 
abandoned raikoad bed. Two shovel tests were excavated at this location, both of which were 
negative. The area along the westem side of this proposed tower site was severely disturbed by 
earth moving activities and was ±erefore examined via cursory examination. No cultural 
resources were documented at the proposed relocation of Tower 168. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Phase I mvestigations were conducted for Cinergy Corporation's proposed relocation of 
three electrical transmission towers in Butier County, Ohio, The Phase I literature review 
revealed no previously known prehistoric or historic sites in the Project area. The archaeological 
field survey failed to identify any prehistoric or historic cultural resources in the Project area. 

Many reasons could explain the absence of both prehistoric and historic cultural resources 
in the Project area. The most plausible explanation for this phenomenon would be that the 
Project ROW traversed settings which are considered unattractive for both prehistoric and historic 
habitation. The Project area was in a low topographic setting which may have been prone to 
flooding. 

The results of the Phase I literature review and fieldwork support the determination that 
the proposed action by Cinergy Corporation will have no effect on any cultural resources listed 
on or eligible for the National Register of Historic Places. 



Figure 1 Ohio Map & topo 



Figure 2 Construction drawing 



Location of the Project Area in Butler County, Ohio 
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ATTACHMENT 10 
DIVISION OF NATURAL AREAS AND PRESERVES 

RESPONSE LETTER 



George V.Voinovich • Governor 
Donald C. Anderson • Director 

RECEIVED 
tNVmOHMEHTAL SERVICES 

FEB 2 ,̂. 19! 

Cinc-sy Corp. 

February 15, 1996 

Thomas Chaney 
Cinergy Corp. 
139 E. Fourth St. 
PO Box 960, Room 552-A 
Cincinnati, OH 43201-0960 

Dear Mr. Chaney: 

After reviewing our Natural Heritage maps and files, I find 
the Division of Natural Areas and Preserves has no records of rare 
species at the Mulhauser Road Improvement/Tower Relocation project 
site in Union Twp., Butler Co. (Glendale Quad). 

There are no existing or proposed state nature preserves or 
scenic rivers at the pro j ect site. We are also unaware of any 
unique ecological sites, geologic features, breeding or non-
breeding animal concentrations, champion trees, or state parks, 
forests or wildlife areas in the project vicinity. 

Our inventory program has not completely surveyed Ohio and 
relies on information supplied by many individuals and 
organizations. Therefore, a lack of records for any particular 
area is not a statement that rare species or unique features are 
absent from that site. Please note that we inventory only high-
quality plant communities and do not maintain an inventory of all 
Ohio wetlands. 

Please contact me at 614-265-6818 if I can be of further 
assistance. 

Sincerely, 

J^bJau. i'yC ûjcJĴ  ^ 

Debbie Woischke, Ecological Analyst 
Division of Natural Areas & Preserves 

^ BECYCLEO PAPER 

A SOV-BASEDINK 
Fountain Square • Columbus, Ohio 43224-1387 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 2 1 , 1999 

To the Shareholders of Cinergy Corp.: 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual iVIeeting of Shareholders of Cinergy Corp. will be held in the 
HALL OF IVIIRRORS of the OMNI NETHERLAND PLAZA HOTEL, 35 West Fifth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio, on 
Wednesday, April 21, 1999 at 11:00 a.m., eastern daylight saving time, for purposes of: 

(1) electing six Class I I directors to serve for three-year terms expiring in 2002; 
(2) approving the Amended and Restated Cinergy Corp. Retirement Plan for Directors, as described at pages 20-

22 in the Proxy Statement and set forth in Appendix A; 
(3) approving the Cinergy Corp. Directors' Equity Compensation Plan, as described at pages 22-23 in the Proxy 

Statement and set forth in Appendix B; 
(4) adopting an amendment to ARTICLE 111, Section 3.1, of the Cinergy Corp. By-Laws, as described at 

pages 23-24 in the Proxy Statement; 

and transacting such other business as may legally come before the meeting, or any adjournment or postponement 
thereof. 

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on Monday, February 22, 1999, will be entitled to vote 
at the meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof. It is important that your shares be represented at 
this meeting in order that the presence of a quorum may be assured. Whether or not you now expect to be present 
at the meeting, you are requested to vote by toll-free telephone as described in the enclosed telephone voting 
instructions, or to mark, date and sign the enclosed proxy and return it promptly. A shareholder giving a proxy by 
either means has the power to revoke it at any time before the authority granted by the proxy is exercised. 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

Cheryl M. Foley 
Vice President, Genera) Counsel and Secretary 

Dated: March 15, 1999 

Cinergy Corp. Modce of 1999 Annual Meeting 



March 15, 1999 

Dear Shareholder: 
You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

of Cinergy Corp. to be held on Wednesday, April 21, 1999, at 11:00 a.m., 
eastern daylight saving time, in the Hall of Mirrors of the Omni Netherland 
Plaza Hotel, 35 West Fifth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio. At the meeting, the 
shareholders will be asked to vote for the election of six Glass II directors, 
approval of the Amended and Restated Retirement Plan for Directors, 
approval of the new Directors' Equity Compensation Plan and the adoption 
of an amendment to ARTICLE III, Section 3.1 of the Company's By-Laws, 
and to consider any other business that may legally come before the 
meeting. 

It is important to your interests that all shareholders, regardless of the 
number of shares owned, participate in the affairs of the Company. Last 
year, over 85Wo of the Company's shares were represented in person or by 
proxy at the annual meeting. 

Even if you plan to attend this year's meeting, we urge you to take 
prompt action to assure that your shares will be voted. You may wish to 
vote your shares by using the toll-free telephone number as described in the 
enclosed telephone voting instructions. Or, you can mark, date and sign the 
proxy form and return it using the enclosed envelope, on which no postage 
stamp is necessary if mailed in the United States. Either way, your response 
is greatly appreciated. 

Thank you for your continued interest in Cinergy. 

Sincerely yours, 

P̂  
Jackson H. Randolph 
Chairman of the Board 

emUJ 

James E. Rogers 
Vice Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer 



Cinergy Corp. 
139 East Fourth Street 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 
(513) 421-9500 

PROXY STATEMENT 

INTRODUCTION 

Cinergy Corp., a Delaware corporation (the ''Com­
pany"), is a registered holding company under the 
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as 
amended (the ''1935 Act^O, and the parent company 
of The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 
("CG&E'O, PSI Energy, Inc. ("PSI") , Cinergy Ser­
vices, Inc. ("Services"), Cinergy Global Re­
sources, Inc. ("Global Resources") and Cinergy 
Investments, Inc. ("Investments"). CG&E is an oper­
ating utility primarily engaged in providing electric and 
gas service in the southwestern portion of Ohio and, 
through its principal subsidiary, The Union Light, Heat 
and Power Company ( "ULH&P") , in adjacent areas 
in Kentucky. PSI is an operating utility primarily 
engaged in providing electric service in north central, 
central and southern Indiana. Services provides man­
agement, financial, administrative, engineering, legal 
and other services to the Company and its subsidiar­
ies. The Company conducts its international businesses 
through Global Resources and its subsidiaries, and its 
non-regulated businesses through Investments and its 
subsidiaries. 

SOLICITATION 

This Proxy Statement and the enclosed form of proxy 
are first being mailed on or about March 15, 1999, 
to holders of the common stock of the Company in 
connection with the solicitation of proxies by the 
Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Company for 
use at the Annual IVIeeting of Shareholders to be held 
on April 21 , 1999, or any adjournment or postpone­
ment of such meeting (the "Annual Meeting"). In­
cluded as Appendix C to this Proxy Statement are the 
Company's consolidated financial statements and ac­
companying notes for the calendar year ended Decem­
ber 31 , 1998/ and other information relating to the 
Company's financial results and position. The Com­
pany's Summary Annual Report to Shareholders also 
accompanies the mailing of this proxy solicitation 
material. 

The Board recommends voting: (i) FOR the 
election of all nominees as directors; (ii) FOR the 
Amended and Restated Cinergy Corp. Retirement Plan 
for Directors; (ill) FOR the Cinergy Corp. Directors' 

Equity Compensation Plan; and (iv) FOR the amend­
ment to Article I I I , Section 3.1, of the Company's 
By-Laws. Shares of the Company's common stock 
represented by properly voted proxies received by 
telephone or mail at or prior to the Annual Meeting 
will be voted in accordance with the instructions 
indicated. If no instructions are indicated, the proxies 
will be voted in accordance with the recommendations 
of the Board. It is not anticipated that any other 
matters will be brought before the Annual Meeting. 
However, a shareholder giving a proxy grants discre­
tionary authority to the named proxy holders should 
any other matters be presented at the Annual Meet­
ing, and it is the intention of the proxy holders to act 
on any other matters in accordance with their best 
judgment. 

A shareholder giving a proxy may revoke it at any 
time before it is voted by delivering to the Secretary 
of the Company written notice of revocation bearing a 
later date than the proxy, by delivering a duly executed 
proxy bearing a later date^ by using the telephone 
voting procedures, or by attending the Annual Meeting 
and voting in person. 

The Company will bear the cost of the solicitation 
of proxies by the Board. The Company has engaged 
Corporate Investor Communications, Inc. to assist in 
the solicitation of proxies for a fee estimated to be 
$8,500 plus reimbursement of reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses. In addition to the solicitation of 
proxies by mail, officers and employees of the Com­
pany may solicit proxies personally or by telephone; 
such persons will receive no additional compensation 
for these services. 

The Company has requested that brokerage houses 
and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for­
ward solicitation materials to the beneficial owners of 
shares of the Company's common stock held of record 
by such persons, and will reimburse the brokers and 
other fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses for forwarding the materials. 

The solicitation of proxies has been approved by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") 
under the 1935 Act. An application has been filed 
with the SEC requesting approval of the items set 
forth in this Proxy Statement as Item 2 and Item 3. 

VOTING PROCEDURES AND RIGHTS 

Only holders of record of the Company's common 
stock at the close of business on February 22, 1999 
(the "Record Date") will be entitled to vote at the 
Annual Meeting. A majority of such holders, present 
in person or represented by proxy, constitutes a 
quorum. The number of shares of the Company's 
common stock outstanding as of the Record Date was 
158,732,798. Each share of common stock entitles 

i 

Cinergy Corp. 1999 I^oxj! Statemait 



its owner to one vote upon each matter to come 
before the meeting. 

The vote required for the election of directors, 
approval of the Amended and Restated Cinergy Corp. 
Retirement Plan for Directors, approval of the Cinergy 
Corp. Directors' Equity Compensation Plan, and 
adoption of the amendment to Article I I I , Sec­
tion 3.1, of the Company's By-Laws is set forth within 
the respective discussion of each such item. 

Any other matter to be presented at the Annual 
Meeting will be determined by the affirmative vote of 
the majority of the shares present in person or 
represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to 
vote on the proposal. In tabulating the vote on any 
other matter, abstentions will have the same effect as 
votes cast against the matter; broker non-votes will be 
deemed absent shares and have no effect on the 
outcome of the vote. 

Votes at the Annual Meeting will be tabulated 
preliminarily by the Company acting as its own 
transfer agent. Inspectors of election, duly appointed 
by the presiding officer of the Annual Meeting, will 
definitively count and tabulate the votes and determine 
and announce the results at the meeting. 

ITEM 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

In accordance with the provisions of the By-Laws of 
the Company, the Board is divided into three classes 
(ie., Class I, Class I I and Class I I I ) , with one class of 
directors ordinarily being elected at each annual 
meeting of shareholders for a three-year term. Melvin 
Perelman, Thomas E. Retry, Jackson H. Randolph, 
Mary L. Schapiro, Philip R. Sharp and Dudley S. Taft 
have been nominated by the Board for election as 
Class I I directors at the Annual Meeting for terms of 
three years each and until their respective successors 
are duly elected and qualified. The Company would 
like to acknowledge Mr. Van P. Smith, who is retiring 
after 17 years of combined service as a member of 
the boards of directors of the Company and PSI. His 
support, valued counsel and many contributions during 
his years of devoted and distinguished service to the 
Company and PSI are immeasurable and greatly 
appreciated. 

In accordance with the General Corporation Law 
of the State of Delaware and the Company's By-Laws, 
directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting by a 
plurality of the votes. Duly executed and returned 
proxies representing shares held on the Record Date 
will be voted, unless otherwise specified, In favor of 
the nominees for the Board. Each nominee and 
continuing director is a member of the Company's 
present Board. All nominees have consented to serve 
if elected, but if any becomes unavailable to serve, the 

persons named as proxies may exercise their discretion 
to vote for a substitute nominee. 

Except as otherwise noted, the principal occupa­
tion or employment of each individual set forth below 
has been such individual's principal occupation or 
employment for at least the past five years. All 
nominees and continuing directors, other than 
Messrs. Randolph and Rogers and Ms. Foley, are 
otherwise unaffiliated with the Company and its 
subsidiaries. 

The Board Recommends Voting FOR ALL Nomi­
nees, Designated in the Proxy as Item 1. 

CLASS I I DIRECTOR NOMINEES 
FOR TERMS TO EXPIRE IN 2002 

Melvin Perelman, Ph.D. 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee and of the Finame Committee. Director 
ofPSIfiom 1980 to 1995. Age 68. 

Dr. Perelman is retired as Executive Vice Presi­
dent of Eli Lilly and Company, which is engaged, in 
the manufacturing of pharmaceuticals. Prior to his 
retirement, he also served as a member of the board 
of directors of Eli Lilly, and as President of Lilly 
Research Laboratories. Dr. Perelman is a director of 
The Immune Response Corporation and Inhale Thera­
peutic Systems, Inc. 

Thomas E. Petry 
Director of the Company sin^e 1994; Member of the Audit 
Committee and of the Executive Committee. Director qfCQ&tE 

fom 1986 to 1995. Age 59. 
Mr. Petry served as Chairman of the Board and 

Chief Executive Officer of Eagle-Picher Indus­
tries, Inc., a diversified manufacturer of industrial and 
automotive products, from December 1994 until his 
retirement in February 1998. He was Chairman of the 
Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Eagle-Picher from April 1992 until December 1994; 
he previously served as Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Petry is a director of 
Eagle-Picher Industries^ Inc., Firstar Corporation, and 
The Union Central Life Insurance Company. 

Jackson H. Randolph 
Director of the Company since 1993; Member i f the Exeaitive 
Ckmmitt̂ e. Director of CG&cE since 1983 and of P S I since 
1994. Age 68. 

Mr. Randolph has served as Chairman of the 
Board of the Company, Investments, Services, CG&E, 
PSI and ULH&P since December 1995. He served as 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, Investments, Services, CG&E and PSI 
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from October 1994, and of ULH&P from Janu­
ary 1995/ through November 1995. Mr. Randolph was 
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive 
Officer of CG&E from May 1993 until October 1994, 
and of ULH&P from June 1993 until January 1995; 
he previously served as President and Chief Executive 
Officer of CG&E and ULH&P. Mr. Randolph is a 
director of Cincinnati Financial Corporation and PNC 
Bank Corp. 

Mary L. Schapiro 
Director of the Company since 1999; Member of the Audit 
Committee and of the Finance Committee. Age 43 

Ms. Schapiro has served as the President and as 
a member of the board of NASD Regulation, Inc. in 
Washington, D.C. since 1996. NASD Regulation is the 
independent regulatory subsidiary of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., and is respon­
sible for regulating all member brokerage firms and 
individual registered representatives and oversight for 
The Nasdaq Stock Market. Ms. Schapiro served as 
Chair of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
from 1994 to 1996. From 1988 until 1994, she 
served as a Commissioner of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Ms. Schapiro Is also a mem­
ber of the Board of Governors of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. 

Philip R. Sharp, Ph.D. 
Director of the Company since 1995; Member of the Audit 
Committee. Age 56. 

Dr. Sharp is a Lecturer in Public Policy at the 
John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard 
University in Cambridge, Massachusetts. He also 
serves as a member of the Secretary of Energy's 
Advisory Board and as Chairman of the Secretary's 
Electric System Reliability Task Force. Dr. Sharp is 
also Vice Chairman of the Energy Board of The 
Keystone Center, a not-for-profit public policy, scien­
tific and educational organization with locations in 
Keystone, Colorado, and Washington, D.C. He previ­
ously served as a member of the U. S. House of 
Representatives from 1975 until January 1995, repre­
senting the second Congressional district of the State 
of Indiana. Dr. Sharp was a ranking member of the 
House Energy and Commerce Committee, where he 
chaired the Energy and Power Subcommittee and 
served on the Transportation and Hazardous Materials 
Subcommittee, and of the House Natural Resources 
Committee, where he served on the Energy and 
Mineral Resources and the Oversight and Investiga­
tions Subcommittees. 

Dudley S. Taft 
Director of the Company since 1994; Chairman of the 
Corporate Governance Committee. Director qfCGScEfvm 
1985 to 1995. Age 58. 

Mr. Taft Is President and Chief Executive Officer 
of Taft Broadcasting Company, which holds invest­
ments In media-related activities. He is a director of 
Fifth Third Bancorp, The Fifth Third Bank, Tribune 
Company, The Union Central Life Insurance Company 
and U.S. Playing Card Company. 

CLASS I I I DIRECTORS 
WHOSE TERMS EXPIRE IN 2000 

Michael G. Browning 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the 
Compensation Committee and of the Corporate Governance 
Committee. Director ( f P S I since 1990. Age 52. 

Mr. Browning is Chairman and President of 
Browning Investments, Inc., which is engaged in real 
estate ventures. He also served as President of 
Browning Real Estate, Inc., the general partner of 
various real estate investment partnerships, through 
December 30, 1994. 

Phillip R. Cox 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the Corporate 
Governance Committee and of the Public B)li(y Committee. 
Director ofCG^Efrom 1994 to 1995. Age 52. 

Mr. Cox Is President and Chief Executive Officer 
of Cox Financial Corporation, a provider of financial 
and estate planning services. He is a director of 
Cincinnati Bell Inc., the Cincinnati office of the 
Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland, PNC Bank, Ohio, 
N.A., and Touchstone Mutual Funds. 

Kenneth M. Duberstein 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the Public 
B)li(y Committee. Director t f P S I from 1990 to 1995. Age 
54. 

Mr, Duberstein is Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer of The Duberstein Group, Inc., a provider of 
strategic planning and consulting services. He is a 
director of The Boeing Company, Federal National 
Mortgage Association, Global Vacation Group, Inc. 
and St. Paul Companies, and Is also a member of the 
Board of Governors of the American Stock Exchange 
and the National Association of Securities 
Dealers, Inc. 
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i James E. Rogers 

Director of the Company since 1993; Chairman of the 
Exeaitive Committee and Member of the Corporate Governance 
Committee. Director of PSI since 1988 and o fCG^E since 

1994. Age 51. 
Mr. Rogers has served as Vice Chairman, Presi­

dent and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and 
Services, and as Vice Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer of CG&E, PSI, Investments and ULH&P, since 
December 1995. He also has served as Chief Execu­
tive Officer and Director of Global Resources since 
May 1998. Mr. Rogers served as Vice Chairman, 
President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company 
and Services, and as Vice Chairman and Chief 
Operating Officer of CG&E, PSI and Investments, 
from October 1994 through November 1995. He also 
served as Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer 
of ULH&P from January 1995 through Novem­
ber 1995. Mr. Rogers served as Chairman, President 
and Chief Executive Officer of PSI from August 1990 
until October 1994; he previously served as Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer. He also served as 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of PSI Re­
sources, Inc., the former parent company of PSI, 
from October 1993 until October 1994; he previously 
served as Chairman, President and Chief Executive 
Officer. Mr. Rogers Is a director of Duke Realty 
Investments, Inc., Fifth Third Bancorp and The Fifth 
Third Bank. 

John J. Schiff, Jr. 

Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the 
Compensation Committee. Director qfCG8t.Efom 1986 to 
1995. Age 55. 

Mr. Schiff is Chairman of the Board of Cincinnati 
Financial Corporation, an insurance holding company, 
and of The Cincinnati Insurance Company. He also 
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of 
John J. & Thomas R. Schiff & Co., Inc., an insurance 
agency, through December 1996. Mr. Schiff is a 
director of Fifth Third Bancorp, The Fifth Third Bank 
and The Standard Register Company. 

Oliver W. Waddell 

Director of the Company since 1994; Chairman of the Finance 
Committee. Director ofCG^Efrom 1989 to 1995. Age 68. 

Mr. Waddell is the retired Chairman of the Board 
of Star Banc Corporation (now Firstar Corporation, a 
bank holding company). Prior to his retirement, he 
held various executive officer positions during his 
career with Star, including Chairman, President and 
Chief Executive Officer of the holding corporation and 
its lead bank. Star Bank, N.A. Mr. Waddell is a 
director of Chiquita Brands International, Inc. and 
Firstar Corporation. 

CLASS I DIRECTORS 
WHOSE TERMS EXPIRE IN 200X 

Neil A. Armstrong 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member of the Audit 
Committee and of the Executive Committee. Director (fCG&(.E 

from 1973 to 1995. Age 68. 
Mr. Armstrong Is Chairman of the Board of AIL 

Systems Inc., which is engaged in the manufacturing 
of electronic devices and systems. He Is a director of 
Cordant Technologies, Inc., Milacron Inc., RTI Inter­
national Metals, Inc., and USX Corp. 

James K. Baker 

Director of the Company since 1994; Chairman of the Audit 
Committee and Member of the Executive Committee. Director of 
P S I smce 1986. Age 67. 

Mr. Baker served as Vice Chairman of Arvin 
Industries, Inc., a worldwide supplier of automotive 
parts, from February 1996 until his retirement in 
April 1998. He served as Chairman of the Board of 
Arvin Industries from November 1986 through Janu­
ary 1996 and as Chief Executive Officer from 1981 
until June 1993. IVlr. Baker is a director of Amcast 
Industrial Corp., Geon Company and Tokheim 
Corporation. 

Cheryl M. Foley 

Director of the Company since 1998. Age 51. 
Ms. Foley serves as Vice President and General 

Counsel of the Company and Services (since Octo­
ber 1994), of PSI (since April 1991), and of each of 
Investments, CG&E and ULH&P (since Janu­
ary 1995). She holds the additional office of Secre­
tary at the Company and PSI, and previously held this 
additional office at CG&E (until April 1998) and at 
each of Investments, Services and ULH&P (until 
May 1998). She also previously served as Vice 
President, General Counsel and Secretary of PSI 
Resources, Inc., the former parent company of PSI 
(from April 1991 until October 1994). Ms. Foley also 
serves as a director and as the President of Global 
Resources (since May 1998), having overall responsi­
bility for the Company's international business opera­
tions, and is also a director of Investments, Services 
and ULH&P. 
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John A. Hillenbrand I I 
Director of the Company since 1994; Chairman of the Public 
Pilicy Committee and Member ^ t h e Finance Committee. 
Director of P S I since 1985. Age 67. 

Mr. Hillenbrand principally serves as Chairman, 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Glyn-
nadam^ Inc., a personal investment holding company. 
He Is also Chairman of Able Body Corporation and 
Nambe' Mills, Inc., and y\ce Chairman of Pri-
Pak, Inc. Mr. Hillenbrand is a director of Hillenbrand 
Industries, Inc. and National City Bank, Indiana. 

George C. Juilfs 
Director of the Company since 1994; Member ^ t h e 
Compensation Committee and of the Public Ihlicy Committee. 
Director ofCG^Efrom 1980 to 1995. Age 59. 

Mr. Juilfs Is President and Chief Executive Officer 
of SENCORP, an International holding company with 
subsidiaries that manufacture fastening systems^ f i ­
nance and lease capital equipment, and commercialize 
health-care technologies. He is a director, serving as 
chairman of the board, of the Cincinnati office of the 
Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland. 

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF 
THE BOARD 

During the calendar year ended December 31 , 1998, 
the Board held six meetings. All directors attended 
more than 75% of the aggregate number of Board 
meetings and meetings of committees on which they 
serve, with the exception of Mr. Schiff who attended 
70%. In accordance with the provisions of the By-
Laws of the Company, the Board has six standing 
committees which facilitate the carrying out of Its 
responsibilities. 

The Audit Committee, which met three times 
during 1998, recommends to the Board a firm of 
independent certified public accountants to conduct 
audits of the accounts and affairs of the Company and 
Its subsidiaries; reviews with the independent certified 
public accountants the scope and results of audits, as 
well as the accounting procedures, internal controls, 
and accounting and financial reporting policies and 
practices of the Company and its subsidiaries; and 
makes such reports and recommendations to the 
Board as it deems appropriate. 

The Compensation Committee met four times 
during 1998. The nature and scope of the Compensa­
tion Committee's responsibilities are described in the 
"Board Compensation Committee Report on Executive 
Compensation" (see page 10). 

The Corporate Governance Committee, which met 
twice during 1998, recommends to the Board the 
slate of nominees of directors to be elected by the 
shareholders, and presents to the Board, whenever 

vacancies occur, names of Individuals who would make 
suitable directors of the Company and consults with 
appropriate officers of the Company on matters 
relating to the organization of the Board and its 
committees. The Committee has no established proce­
dures for consideration of nominees recommended by 
shareholders. 

Other standing committees of the Board Include 
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee and 
the Public Policy Committee. 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS 

DlfectOfS who are not employees (the "non-employee 
directors") receive an annual retainer fee of $30,000 
plus a fee of $1,500 for each Board meeting 
attended. Non-employee directors who also serve on 
one or more standing committees of the Board receive 
an annual retainer fee of $3,000 for each committee 
membership plus a fee of $1,500 for each committee 
meeting attended. The fee for any Board or committee 
meeting held via conference call is $750. In consider­
ation for their additional responsibilities and time 
commitments, non-employee directors serving as 
chairpersons of the committees of the Board receive 
an additional annual retainer of $3,000. Directors 
who are also employees of the Company receive no 
remuneration for their services as directors. 

Under the Company's Directors' Deferred Com­
pensation Plan, each non-employee director of the 
Company or any of its subsidiaries may defer fees and 
have them accrued either in cash or in units represent­
ing shares of the Company's common stock. If 
deferred in units, dividends are credited to the 
individual director's plan account and thereby acquire 
additional units, at the same time and rate as 
dividends are paid to holders of the Company's 
common stock. The deferred units are distributed to 
the director as shares of the Company's common 
stock at the time of retirement from the appropriate 
board. Amounts deferred in cash earn interest at the 
rate per annum, adjusted quarterly, equivalent to the 
interest rate for a one-year certificate of deposit as 
quoted in The Wall Street Journal for the first 
business day of the calendar quarter, and are paid to 
the director at the time of retirement from the 
appropriate board. 

Under the Company's Stock Option Plan, each 
non-employee director is granted a non-qualified stock 
option to purchase 12,500 shares of the Company's 
common stock when he or she first is elected to the 
Board. The price per share at which options are 
granted must be no less than 100% of the fair 
market value of the Company's common stock on the 
New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") on the date of 
the grant. Options vest at the rate of 20% per year 
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over a five-year period from the date of grant and may 
be exercised over a ten-year term. 

The Company has maintained a Retirement Plan 
for Directors under which non-employee directors of 
the Company, Services, PSI and CG&E have accrued 
retirement benefits based upon their years of service. 
In December 1998, the Board amended and restated 
this plan to eliminate future benefit accruals and 
adopted a new Cinergy Corp. Directors' Equity Com­
pensation Plan under which future benefits for non-
employee directors are expected to be equity-based. 
Each of these plans Is subject to shareholder approval 
at the Annual Meeting. Please refer to pages 20-22 
and Appendix A of this Proxy Statement for a 
description and the text of the amended and restated 
Retirement Plan for Directors, and to pages 22-23 
and Appendix B for a description and the text of the 
new Directors' Equity Compensation Plan. 

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN 
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The only persons or groups known to the Company to 
be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the 
Company's common stock, the only voting security, as 
of December 31, 1998, are set forth in the following 
table. This Information Is based on the most recently 
available reports filed with the SEC pursuant to the 
requirements of Sections 13(d) or 13(g) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"1934 Act"), and transmitted to the Company by the 
persons or groups named. 

Name and Address 
of Beneficial Owner 

Amount and Nature 
of Beneficial Ownership 

Percent 
of Class 

Scudder Kemper 

Investments, Inc. 
345 Parl< Avenue 
New York, NY 10154 

U.S. Trust Company, N.A. 

515 Soutin Fiower Street 

Los AngeiES, CA 90071 

9,969,386 sliares (1) 

},181,572 shares (2) 

>.3% 

5.8% 

(1) Holder reports having sole voting power with respect to 
2,160,339 shares, shared voting power with respect to 
5,804,022 shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 
9,899,864 shares, and shared dispositive power with respect to 
69,522 shares. 

(2) Shares held as trustee of benefit plans for employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. Under the terms of the plans, 
participants have the right to vote the shares credited to their 
accounts; however, the trustee may, at its discretion, vote those 
shares not voted by participants. Holder reports having shared 
voting and dispositive powers with respect to all shares, and 
sole voting and dispositive powers with respect to none of these 
shares. 

The beneficial ownership of the Company's com­
mon stock held by each nominee, continuing director 
and named executive officer (as defined on page 14), 
and of units representing shares of the Company's 
common stock paid as compensation to non-employee 
directors, as of December 31, 1998, is set forth in the 
following table. 

Name of 

Beneficial Owner (1) 

Neil A. Armstrong 

James K. Baker 
iVIichael G. Browning 

Philiip R. Cox 
Kenneth M. Duberstein 

Cheryl M. Foley 
William J. Grealis 

John A. Hillenbrand I I 

George C. Juilfs 

John M. Mutz 
Melvin Perelman 

Thomas E. Petry 

Jackson H. Randolph 
James E. Rogers 

Mary L. Schapiro 

John J . Schiff, Jr. 

Philip R. Sharp 
Dudley S. Taft 

Larry E. Thomas 
Oliver W. Waddell 

All directors and executive 

officers as a group 

Amount and Nature 

of Beneficial Ownership (2) 

10,750 shares 

23,605 shares 

28,835 shares 

10,238 shares 
22,991 shares 

81,306 shares 
109,649 shares 

33,472 shares 

13,750 shares 

113,145 shares 

23,423 shares 
12,000 shares 

209,609 shares 
398,526 shares 

0 shares 
51,059 shares (4) 

6,000 shares 

13,000 shares 

131,737 shares 

15,253 shares 
1,650,504 shares • 

Units (3) 

5,901 

9,495 

9,542 

8,913 

(1) Beneficial ownership of directors and executive officers as a 

group represents 1.04% of the outstanding shares of common 

stock; individual beneficial ownership by any director, nominee 

or executive officer does not exceed 0.252% of the outstanding 

shares of common stock. 

(2) Includes shares which there is a right to acquire within 60 days 

pursuant to the exercise of stock options in the following 

amounts: Mr. Armsti-ong-10,000; Mr. Baker-10,000; 

Mr. Browning-22,7S7; Mr. Cox-10,000; Mr. Duberstein-

15,287; Ms. Foley-20,000; Mr. Grealis-73,237; 
Mr. Hillenbrand-10,000; Mr. Jui l fs-10,000; Mr. Mu tz -

80,000; Dr. Perelman-10,000; Mr. Petry~10,000; 
Mr. RandQlph-91,25a; Mr. Rogers-195,629; Mr. Schiff-

10,000; Dr. Sharp-5,000; Mr. Taf t -10,000; Mr. Thomas-

62,516; and all directors and executive officers as a group-

792,981. 

(3) Each unit represents one share of the Company's common 
stock credited to the account of the respective director as of 
December 31 , 1998 under the Company's Directors' Deferred 
Compensation Plan. 

(4) Includes 15,000 shares owned of record by a trust of which 
Mr. Schiff is one of three trustees who share voting and 
investment pov^^r equally. Does not include 1,791,000 shares, 
as to which Mr. Schiff disclaims any beneficial interest, held by 
Cincinnati Financial Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries. 
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BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT 
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The Compensation Committee of the Board (the 
'Committee"): (i) establishes the Company's compen­
sation policy; (ii) recommends, oversees and adminis­
ters compensation plans for all executive officers and 
key employees; (lii) determines compensation for the 
chief executive officer; and Civ) reviews and approves 
compensation for the Company's remaining executive 
officers. During 1998, the Committee was composed 
of Messrs. Van P. Smith (Chairman), Michael G. 
Browning, George C. Juilfs, and John J. Schiff, Jr., 
each of whom was an independent, ''non-employee 
director'' of the Company, within the meaning of 
Rule 16b-3 under the 1934 Act, and an ''outside 
director" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
'Xode"). 

Compensation Policy 

The Company's executive compensation program Is 
designed to attract, retain and motivate the high 
quality employees needed to provide superior service to 
Its customers and to maximize returns to its share­
holders. The Company's compensation program for 
executive officers consists of base salary, annual cash 
incentives, and long-term incentives. 

Base salaries for the executive group are targeted 
at the median of comparably sized utility companies 
based on kilowatt-hours C'kwh") sold. Because of the 
Company's low-cost position, kwh sales are considered 
to be a better measure than revenues for constructing 
a comparative group. Base salary levels are reviewed 
annually, and any increases are based on such factors 
as competitive industry salaries, the Company's finan­
cial results and a subjective assessment of each 
individual's performance, role and skills. 

The Company's executive compensation program 
also seeks to link executive and shareholder interests 
through cash-based and equity-based incentive plans, 
In order to reward corporate and individual perform­
ance. Annual and long-term Incentive plans are 
structured to provide opportunities that are competi­
tive with general industry companies. 

This emphasis on Incentive compensation results 
in a compensation mix for the chief executive officer 
and the remaining executive officers consisting of 
annual and long-term incentives accounting for at 
least 50% of the employee's annual compensation. It 
is the Committee's view that short-term and long-term 
incentive opportunities that distinguish between short-
term and long-term corporate goals can assist in 
motivating the type of behavior crucial to managing 
successfully in an increasingly competitive 
environment. 

Consistent with Its belief that a well-planned and 
well-Implemented executive incentive compensation 
program, with meaningful and measurable perform­
ance targets and competitive award opportunities, 
sends a strong, positive message to the financial 
markets, the Committee has implemented an executive 
long-term incentive compensation program (the 
"LTIP" ) within the parameters of the Company's 
1996 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the 
"Umbrella Plan"). The LTIP combines the Interests 
of the Company's shareholders, customers, and man­
agement to enhance the Company's value. (Specifics 
of the program are discussed below under the heading 
"Long-Term Incentive Compensation and Stock 
Options.") 

The Committee also has two non-qualified de­
ferred compensation plans for executive officers of the 
Company, as follows: (i) the Deferred Incentive 
Compensation Plan allows deferral of receipt of all or 
a portion of cash awards otherwise payable under the 
Company's Annual Incentive Plan; and (ii) the Excess 
40 l (k) Plan allows deferral of receipt of a portion of 
base salaries that otherwise could not be deferred 
under the Company's qualified 401(k) plan, due to 
federal government limitations on the amount of 
compensation that can be deferred into qualified 
plans. 

Annual Incentive Compensation 

Approximately 425 management employees, including 
all executive officers, are eligible to participate in the 
Company's Annual Incentive Plan. The plan provides 
for Incentive cash awards or bonuses tied to the 
achievement of pre-determined corporate and individ­
ual goals. For 1998, the Company's corporate goal 
was based on earnings per share. Achievement of the 
corporate goal for 1998 and achievement of individual 
goals each accounted for 50% of the total possible 
award. 

For 1998; the potential awards ranged from 
2.5% to 90% of the participant's annual base salary, 
depending upon the achievement levels and the partici­
pant's position. Graduated standards for achievement 
were developed to encourage each employee's contri­
bution. The Committee reviewed and approved both 
the plan goals at the beginning of the year and the 
achievements at the end of the year. 

Although the corporate goal was not achieved for 
1998, the Committee, in the exercise of Its discretion 
reserved under the plan, determined that awarding a 
partial payout for corporate performance was appro­
priate. Upon reviewing the Company's significant 
progress toward achieving its strategic mission {i.e., to 
be one of the top five energy companies in five years 
In five key areas - market capitalization, number of 
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customers, electric and gas commodity trading, inter­
national presence, and productivity) in 1998, the 
Committee determined that the Company's employ­
ees - both management and non-management - should 
be rewarded for their commitment, dedication and 
achievements. The Committee recognizes that the 
Company's mission is most challenging in light of the 
numerous uncertainties facing the Company and the 
Industry in this era of change. 

Accomplishments in 1998 that were considered by 
the Committee included: 

• A 10.3% return on equity; 
• A 21.2% increase in total electric kwh sales 

over 1997 reflecting an increase in energy 
marketing and trading volumes; 

• Investments of more than $110 million In 
international markets; 

• Sale of the Company's interest in Edesur SA, 
an electric distribution network In Argentina; 

• The agreement by Midlands Electricity, the 
Company's 50%-owned regional electric distri­
bution company located In England^ to sell its 
supply business to National Power pic; 

• The acquisition of Producers Energy Marketing 
LLC, a major gas marketing firm, thus adding 
physical gas supply and trading to the Com­
pany's commodity portfolio; 

• Agreements between Trigen-Cinergy Solutions 
and seven major corporations and/or govern­
mental entities for the supply of energy-related 
systems and services; 

• The Implementation of electricity futures trad­
ing on the New York Mercantile Exchange, with 
the Company as one of only four delivery points 
in the United States; 

- The SEC's approval of the retention of CG&E's 
natural gas business; and 

• Continued progress with respect to the Com­
pany's cost reduction efforts. 

For 1998, the Committee determined the achieve­
ment level for each named executive officer, which 
involved an assessment of both individual objective 
goals and subjective evaluation of individual perform­
ance. The Committee believed that its assessment 
accurately measured the performance of each such 
officer and determined that the achievement level for 
individual goals ranged from 2.75 to 3.0 on a scale 
ranging from i.o to 3.0. Individual performance goals 
varied for each executive officer; however, all related 
to the achievement of the Company's overall strategic 
vision of becoming a premier energy services company. 

For 1999, the Company's Annual Incentive Plan 
corporate goal will again be based on earnings per 
share. For all employees except business unit presi­
dents, the corporate goal will account for 40% of the 
total possible award and achievement of individual key 

performance indicators will account for the remaining 
60%. For business unit presidents, 40% of the total 
possible award will be based on the corporate goal, 
10% will be based on business unit earnings per share 
targets, and the remaining 50% will be based on 
individual key performance indicators. 

Lang-Term Incentive CompensaMon and Stock Options 

The LTIP ties a significant portion of the participants' 
pay to long-term performance of the Company, pro­
vides a greater upside potential for outperforming peer 
companies as well as downside risk for underperform-
ing, focuses on creating shareholder value through 
increasing total shareholder return, and provides a 
significant portion of total compensation opportunity 
through the use of the Company's common stock to 
create an ownership mindset. Approximately 85 man­
agement employees, including all executive officers 
except the chairman of the board, are eligible for 
participation in the LTIP. 

The LTIP consists of two elements: (1) stock 
options, and (2) performance-based restricted stock 
and performance shares (this second portion is called 
the "Value Creation Plan"). ^'Performance-based re­
stricted stock" means grants of the Company's com­
mon stock that are subject to transfer restrictions and 
risk of forfeiture for a specified restriction period, and 
the vesting of which are conditional upon the attain­
ment of Performance Measures. Stock options com­
prise 25% of the total award opportunity under the 
plan, and the Value Creation Plan comprises the other 
75%. The annualized target award opportunity as a 
percent of base salary ranges from 15% to 100% 
depending on the participant's position. With respect 
to the named executive officers eligible for participa­
tion in the LTIP, the target LTIP award values are 
100% of base salary for the chief executive officer 
and 70% of the respective base salary for each of the 
remaining named executive officers. The LTIP oper­
ates on three-year, non-overlapping performance peri­
ods or cycles. The first performance period covers 
October 1, 1996, through December 31 , 1999. 

The first portion of the LTIP consists of annual 
grants of stock options, which commenced effective 
January 1, 1997, and continue effective each Janu­
ary 1 thereafter. The number of options granted to a 
participant is determined by taking 25% of the 
participant's target LTIP award value and dividing it 
by the projected stock price appreciation of an option, 
to arrive at the number of options granted to a 
participant for each year of the three-year cycle. The 
stock options vest three years from the date of grant. 
Information with respect to stock options granted 
during 1998 to the named executive officers is set 
forth in the Summary Compensation Table and the 
Option/SAR Grants Table. 

11 

Cinergy Corp. 1999 Fivxy Statement 



The second portion of the LTIP consists of the 
Value Creation Plan. The Value Creation Plan consists 
of a target grant of performance-based restricted 
stock and performance shares, both of which can be 
earned based on the Company's total shareholder 
return ("TSR") vs. the TSR of the peer group. TSR 
is defined as share price appreciation plus dividends. 
For the three-year performance cycle, the Company's 
average TSR is measured against the average TSR of 
the peer group. The peer companies are the 25 largest 
utility companies, based on kwh sales. 

At the end of the performance period, participants 
wilf earn an award based upon the Company's 
performance relative to Its peer group. If the Com­
pany's TSR equals the TSR of the peer group, 
participants will earn the target number of restricted 
shares. Participants will earn the target number of 
restricted shares plus a greater number of non-
restricted shares (called "performance shares") if the 
Company's TSR exceeds that of the peer group. 
However, if the Company's TSR Is lower than that of 
the peer group, participants will not earn some of the 
target restricted shares or any performance shares 
and could lose all of the restricted shares if the 
Company's performance falls dramatically below that 
of the peer companies. The maximum that can be 
earned under the Value Creation Plan by a participant 
for the performance cycle is three times the total 
LTIP target value less the value of any stock options. 

Except in the case of disability, death, voluntary 
termination, or retirement on or after age 50 during 
the three-year performance cycle, a participant must 
be employed by the Company on January 1 following 
the end of a performance cycle to receive any earned 
award. The earned target restricted shares become 
unrestricted (or vested) as soon as practicable after 
the end of a performance cycle, but no later than 
April 1 following the end of a performance cycle. The 
earned performance shares (based on the added 
Incremental value created during the cycle), if any, 
will be paid in two equal, annual installments. One-
half will be paid as soon as practicable after the first 
anniversary date (i.e., January 1, 2001 with respect to 
the performance cycle ending December 31, 1999), 
but no later than three months subsequent to that 
anniversary date, following the end of a performance 
cycle. The remaining half will be paid as soon as 
practicable after the second anniversary date (i.e., 
January 1, 2002 with respect to the performance 
cycle ending December 31, 1999), but no later than 
three months subsequent to that anniversary date, 
following the end of a performance cycle. 

Because grants under the Value Creation Plan are 
made at the beginning of the three-year performance 
cycle, there were no grants made during 1998 to any 
of the named executive officers. 

Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Rogers' 1998 base salary was determined by the 
Committee after giving consideration to his employ­
ment agreement with the Company (see "Employment 
Agreements and Severance Arrangements" on 
page 17), competitive salaries of chief executive 
officers of both peer companies and general industry, 
and a subjective assessment of his performance. For 
1998/ Mr. Rogers was awarded incentive compensa­
tion under the Annual Incentive Plan in the amount of 
$619,200. This was based, in part, upon the Commit­
tee's determination that a partial payment under the 
plan was appropriate, even though the Company's 
corporate target goal was not achieved, and upon the 
Committee's determination of Mr. Rogers' achievement 
of individual goals. Under the Annual Incentive Plan, 
Mr. Rogers' maximum potential award is equal to 
90% of his annua! base salary (including deferred 
compensation). 

Effective January 1, 1998, the Committee 
granted Mr. Rogers an option to purchase 55,400 
shares of the Company's common stock, at the fair 
market value of $38.59375 per share, as the second 
annual option grant under the first performance period 
of the LTIP. Effective March 24, 1998, the Commit­
tee granted Mr. Rogers an option to purchase 
480,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at 
the fair market value of $36,875 per share, under the 
Stock Option Plan. The Committee believed that the 
March 1998 grant signified Mr. Rogers' importance to 
the current and future success of the Company and 
further demonstrated its support and commitment to 
him. Information with respect to these grants is set 
forth in the Summary Compensation Table and the 
Option/SAR Grants Table. 

In September 1998, the Committee approved an 
amended and restated employment agreement for 
Mr. Rogers, which incorporated previous amendments 
made to his agreement and the substantive terms of 
his pnor severance agreement. The substantive terms 
of the restated employment agreement are discussed 
under "Employment Agreements and Severance 
Arrangements." 

Code Section 162(m) 

Code Section 162(m) generally limits the Company's 
tax deduction to one million dollars for compensation 
paid to each of the named executive officers. However, 
the statute exempts qualifying performance-based 
compensation from the deduction limit if certain 
conditions are met. The Committee currently Intends 
under most circumstances to structure performance-
based compensation, including stock option grants and 
restricted stock grants under the LTIP and a signifi­
cant portion of the award opportunity under the 
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i Annual Incentive Plan, to executive officers who may 
be subject to Code Section 162(m) In a manner that 
satisfies those requirements. 

However, for 1998 the Committee exercised Its 
discretion (as discussed above) to permit a payout for 
the corporate goal portion of the Annual Incentive 
Plan even though the minimum earnings per share 
goal was not achieved. The Committee realizes that its 
action affects the tax deductibility of a part of 
Mr. Rogers' compensation under Code 
Section 162(m). 

The Committee intends to continue basing its 
executive compensation decisions primarily upon per­
formance achieved, both corporate and Individual, but 
retains the right to make subjective decisions and to 
award compensation that might be subject to the tax 
deductibility limitation under Code Section 162(m). 

The tables which follow, and accompanying foot­
notes, reflect the decisions covered by the above 
discussion. 

Compensation Committee 
Van P. Smith, Chairman 
Michael G. Browning 
George C. Juilfs 
John J. Schiff, Jr. 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

The following table sets forth the compensation of the chief executive officer and each of the other four most 
highly compensated executive officers (these five executive officers are sometimes collectively referred to as the 
^^named executive officers") for services to the Company and its subsidiaries during the calendar years ended 
December 31 , 1998, 1997 and 1996. 

Long-Term Compensation 

i 
(a) 

Name and 

Principal Position 

James E. Rogers 

Vice Chairman, President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Jacl<son H. Randolph 

Chairman of the Board 

John IW. IVIutz 

Vice President of tlie Company, 

and President of PSI 

William J. Grealis 

Vice President, Corporate 

Services, and Chief Strategic 

Officer of the Company 

Larry E. Thomas 

Vice President of the Company, 

and President of the Energy 

(b) 

Year 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1998 

1997 

1996 

1998 
1997 
1996 

Annual Compensation 

(c) 

Salary 

($) 

810,000 

700,008 

625,000 

585,000 

585,000 

535,000 

415,188 

395,412 

376,584 

396,900 
378,000 
343,200 

352,848 
336,048 
294,350 

(d) 

Bonus (1) 

($) 

619,200 

337,504 

607,518 

321,750 

321,750 

321,750 

199,290 
118,624 
150,634 

180,590 

113,400 

205,920 

169,367 

100,814 

176,610 

(e) 
Other 

Annual 
Compen­

sation 

($) 

47,041 

17,039 

3,697 

13,405 

14,575 

10,675 

5,574 

3,763 

2,431 

25,643 
13,094 

8,828 

9,678 

11,502 
5,030 

Awards 

(f) (g) 

Restricted Securities 

Stock Underlying 

Awards (2) Options/SARs 

($) (#) 

0 

1,951,169 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

761,985 

0 

0 
728,443 

0 

0 

647,575 

0 

535,400 

55,400 

0 

0 

0 

0 

21,700 

21,700 

0 

20,700 

20,700 

0 

18,400 

18,400 

0 

Payouts 

(h) 

LTIP 

Payouts (3) 

($) 

0 

0 

849,750 

0 

0 

675,212 

0 

0 

339,108 

0 

0 

246,048 

0 

0 

252,285 

(i) 
All 

Other 
Compen­

sation (4) 

($) 

138,329 

126,956 

108,108 

98,157 

88,181 

120,512 

23,611 

22,162 

14,993 

34,313 

15,550 

35,611 

16,594 
15,809 
36,162 

Delivery Business Unit 

(1) Amounts appearing in this column reflect the Annual Incentive Plan award earned during the year listed and paid in the following year. 

(2) Amounts appearing in this column reflect the dollar values of restricted stock awards, determined by multiplying the number of shares in 
each award by the closing market price of the Company's common stock as of the effective date of grant The aggregate number of all 
restricted stock holdings and values at calendar year ended December 31, 1998, determined by multiplying the number of shares by the 
year end closing market price, are as follows: Mr. Rogers-58,462 shares ($2,009,631); Mr. WIutz-22,831 shares ($784,816); 
Mr. Grealis-21,826 shares ($750,2691; and Mr. Thomas-19,403 shares ($666,978). Dividends are retained by the Company for the 
duration of the three-year performance cycle; upon settlement of the restricted stock awards, dividends will be paid in shares of the 
Company's common stock based on the number of shares of restricted stock actually earned and the fair market value of the Company's 
common stock on the settlement date. 

(3) Amounts appearing in this column reflect the values of the shares earned under the Company's Performance Shares Plan during the 1994-
1997 and 1996-1999 performance cycles that were ended during 1996 in transition to the Valuation Creation Plan. 

(4) Amounts appearing in this column for 1998 include for iVIessrs. Rogers, Randolph, IVIutz, Grealis and Thomas, respectively: (i) employer 
matching contributions under 401(k) plan and related excess benefit plan of $24,300, $17,550, $12,456, $11,907 and $10,585; and 
(ii) insurance premiums paid with respect to executive/group-term life insurance of $245, $752, $11,155, $22,406 and $6,009. Also 
includes for Mr. Rogers deferred compensation in the amount of $50,000, and for Messrs. Rogers and Randolph, respectively, above-
market interest on amounts deferred pursuant to deferred compensation agreements of $48,955 and $63,447, and benefits under split 
dollar life insurance agreements of $14,829 and $16,408-

Cmrp Corp. 1999 Proxy Statement 



i OPTION/SAR GRANTS TABLE 

The following table sets forth information concerning individual grants of options to purchase the Company's 
common stock made to the named executive officers during 1998. 

Potential Realizable 

Value at Assumed 

Annual Rates of 

Stock Price Appreciation 

for Option Term Individual Grants 

(a) 

Name 

(b) 
Number of 
Securities 
Underiying 

Options/SARs 

Granted 

(#) 

(c) 

% of Total 

Options/SARs 

Granted to 

Employees in 

Fiscal Year 

(d) 

Exercise 

or Base 

Price 
($/Sh) 

(e) 

Expiration 

Date 

(f) 

5 % 

C$) 

(g) 

10% 
($) 

James E. Rogers 

John M. IVIutz 

William J. Grealis 

Larry E. Thomas 

55,400 
480,000 

21,700 
20,700 
18,400 

5.82% 

50.45% 

2.28% 

2.18% 

1.93% 

38.59375 
36.875 

38.59375 
38.59375 

38.59375 

1/1/2008 
3/24/2008 

1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 

1,344,558 
11,424,000 

3,407,654 

28,675,200 

526,659 1,334,767 

502,389 1,273,257 

446,568 1,131,784 

AGGREGATED OPTION/SAR EXERCISES AND YEAR END OPTION/SAR VALUES TABLE 

The following table sets forth information concerning: (i) stock options exercised by the named executive officers 
during 1998, including the value realized He,, the spread between the exercise price and market price on the date 
of exercise); and (ii) the numbers of shares for which options were held as of December 31, 1998, including the 
value of 'Mn-the-money" options (i.e., the positive spread between the exercise prices of outstanding stock options 
and the closing market price of the Company's common stock on December 31 , 1998, which was $34,375 per 
share). 

(a) 

Name 

James E. Rogers 

Jackson H. Randolph 

John M. Mutz 

William J. Greaiis 

Larry E. Thomas 

(b) 

Shares Acquired 
on Exercise 

(#) 
0 

8,742 

12,787 

2,650 

31,588 

(c) 

Value 

Realized 

($) 
N/A 

102,992 
225,356 

28,156 

478,800 

• (d) 

Number of 

Securities Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options/SARs 
at Year End 

(#) 
Exercisable/ 

Unexercisable 

195,629/640,800 

91,258/50,000 

82,660/60,740 
73,237/61,400 

62,516/56,800 

(e) 
Value of 

Unexercised 

In-The-Money 
Options/SARs 

at Year End 

($) 
Exercisable/ 

Unexercisable 

2,249,734/623,475 

1,049,467/575,000 
922,328/246,660 

736,947/219,363 

718,934/246,100 
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PENSION BENEFITS 

The pension benefits payable at retirement to each of 
the named executive officers are provided under the 
terms of the Cinergy Corp. Non-union Employees' 
Pension Plan, a non-contributory, defined benefit 
pension plan (the ^^Cinergy Pension Plan"), plus 
certain supplemental plans or agreements. Pension 
benefits previously earned under the terms of the 
former CG&E and PSI pension plans are fully 
preserved for participants under the terms of the 
Cinergy Pension Plan. 

Under the terms of the Cinergy Pension Plan, the 
retirement income payable to a pensioner is 1 .1% of 
final average pay plus 0.5% of final average pay in 
excess of covered compensation, times the number of 
years of plan participation through 35 years, plus 
1.4% of final average pay times the number of years 
of plan participation over 35 years. Final average pay 
is the average annual salary, based upon retirement 
anniversary date, during the employee's three consecu­
tive years producing the highest such average within 
the last ten anniversary years immediately preceding 
retirement, plus any short-term incentive and/or de­
ferred compensation. Covered compensation Is the 
average social security taxable wage base over a 
period of up to 35 years. The Internal Revenue 
Service annually establishes a dollar limit, indexed to 
inflation, of the amount of pay permitted for consider­
ation under the terms of such plans, which for 1998 
was $160,000. 

The Cinergy Excess Pension Plan is designed to 
restore pension benefits to those individuals whose 
benefits under the Cinergy Pension Plan would other­
wise exceed the limits imposed by the Code. Each of 
the named executive officers is covered under the 
terms of the Cinergy Excess Pension Plan. 

The pension plan table set forth below illustrates 
the estimated annual benefits payable as a straight-life 
annuity under both Cinergy plans to participants who 
retire at age 62. Such benefits are not subject to any 
deduction for social security or other offset amounts. 

The accrued annual benefit payable to 
Messrs. Randolph and Mutz upon their retirement is 
based upon credited service of 40 years and 4 years, 
respectively. The estimated credited years of service at 
age 62 for each of the remaining named executive 
officers are as follows: Mr. Rogers, 20 years; 
Mr. Grealis, 12 years; and Mr. Thomas, 37 years. 

Effective January 1, 1999, the Cinergy Supple­
mental Retirement Plan was amended, restated and 
renamed the Cinergy Supplemental Executive Retire­
ment Plan (the ^^SERP"). One part of the SERP, the 
^^Mid-career Benefit," Is designed to provide coverage 
to executives who will not qualify for full retirement 
benefits under the Cinergy Pension Plan. For retire­
ment on or after age 62, the Mid-career Benefit is an 
amount equal to that which a covered employee with 
35 years of participation would have received under 
the Cinergy Pension Plan and the Cinergy Excess 
Penison Plan, reduced by the actual benefit provided 
by these plans, and further reduced by 50% of the 
employee's age 62 social security benefit. Messrs. 
Rogers, Mutz and Grealis are covered under the terms 
of the Mid-career Benefit portion of the SERP. 

The second part of the SERP, the ''Senior 
Executive Supplement," is designed to provide selected 
senior officers of the Company an opportunity to earn 
a retirement benefit that will replace 60% of their 
final pay. Each participant accrues a retirement 
income replacement percentage at the rate of 4 % per 
year from date of hire (maximum of 15 years). The 
Senior Executive Supplement is an amount equal to a 
maximum of 60% of the employee's final average pay 

Years of Service 

Compensation 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 

; 500,000 

600,000 

700,000 

800,000 

900,000 

1,000,000 

1,100,000 

1,200,000 

1,300,000 

1,400,000 

1,500,000 

1,600,000 

1,700,000 

1,800,000 

i 39,045 

47,045 

55,045 

63,045 

71,045 

79,045 

87.045 

95,045 

103,045 

111,045 

119,045 

127,045 

135,045 

143,045 

I 78,085 

94,085 

110,085 

126,085 

142,085 

158,085 

174,085 

190,085 

206,085 

222,085 

238,085 

254,085 

270,085 

286,085 

117,130 

141,130 

165,130 

189,130 

213,130 

237,130 

261,130 

285,130 

309,130 

333,130 

357,130 

381,130 

405,130 

429,130 

156,170 

288,170 

220,170 

252,170 

284,170 

316,170 

348,170 

380,170 

412,170 

444,170 

476,170 

508,170 

540,170 

572,170 

195,215 

235,215 

275,215 

315,215 

355,215 

395,215 

435,215 

475,215 

515,215 

555,215 

595,215 

635,215 

675,215 

715,215 

234,255 

282,255 

330,255 

378,255 

426,255 

474,255 

522,255 

570,255 

618,255 

666,255 

714,255 

762,255 

810,255 

858,255 

i 273,300 

329,300 

385,300 

441,300 

497,300 

553,300 

609,300 

665,300 

721,300 

777,300 

833,300 

889,300 

945,300 

1,001,300 

$ 312,340 

376,340 

440,340 

504,340 

568,340 

632,340 

696,340 

760,340 

824,340 

888,340 

952,340 

1,016,340 

1,080,340 

1,144,340 
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(as defined in the Cinergy Pension Plan) or the final 
12 months of base pay and Annual Incentive Plan 
pay, reduced by the actual benefits provided under the 
Cinergy Pension Plan, the Cinergy Excess Pension 
Plan and the Mid-career Benefit, and further reduced 
by 50% of the employee's estimated age 62 social 
security benefit. Messrs. Rogers, Mutz, Grealis and 
Thomas are covered under the terms of the Senior 
Executive Supplement, and the estimated retirement 
income replacement percentage for each is 60%, 
20%, 48% and 60%, respectively. 

Moreover, Mr. Randolph has a Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Income Agreement under which 
he or his beneficiary will receive an annua! supplemen­
tal retirement benefit of $511,654, In monthly install­
ments of $42,638 for ISO months beginning 
December 1, 2000. 

The Cinergy Executive Supplemental Life Insur­
ance Program provides key management personnel, 
Including the named executive officers, with additional 
life insurance coverage during employment and with 
post-retirement deferred compensation. At the later of 
age 50 or retirement, the participant's life insurance 
coverage under the program is canceled. At that time, 
the participant receives the total amount of coverage 
In the form of deferred compensation payable in ten 
equal annual Installments of $15,000 per year. 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS AND 
SEVERANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

Mr. Rogers has an employment agreement which was 
effective October 24, 1994, and was amended and 
restated in its entirety effective September 22, 1998. 
Pursuant to the terms of his agreement, Mr. Rogers 
served as Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operat­
ing Officer of the Company until November 30, 1995, 
and, since that time, has served as Vice Chairman, 
President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Rogers' 
agreement currently is automatically extended for an 
additional year on each annual anniversary date, 
unless either the Company or Mr. Rogers gives timely 
notice otherwise. During the term of his agreement, 
Mr. Rogers receives a minimum annual base salary of 
$810,000. Under the terms of his employment agree­
ment, Mr. Rogers was credited with 25 years of 
participation In the Mid-career Benefit portion of the 
SERP as of his 50th birthday. He has been or will be 
credited with an additional two years of participation 
on each birthday through his 55th, provided that he is 
employed by the Company as of each birthday. 
Mr. Rogers' employment agreement also provides that 
If he retires on or after age 55 he will be entitled to 
receive annual retirement income for his lifetime equal 
to the greater of 60% of his final average pay, or 
60% of his base pay and Annual Incentive Plan pay 

for the final 12 months immediately preceding his 
retirement. 

Mr. Randolph has an employment agreement 
which commenced on October 24, 1994. Pursuant to 
the terms of his agreement, Mr. Randolph served as 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company 
until November 30, 1995, at which time he relin­
quished the position of Chief Executive Officer. He will 
continue to serve as Chairman of the Board of the 
Company until November 30, 2000, the expiration 
date of his agreement. During the term of his 
agreement, Mr. Randolph receives a minimum annual 
base salary of $465,000. 

If the employment of Messrs. Rogers or Randolph 
(each sometimes individually referred to as the *^exec-
utlve") is terminated as a result of death, his 
beneficiary will receive a lump sum cash amount equal 
to the sum of (a) the executive's annual base salary 
through the termination date to the extent not 
previously paid, (b) a pro rata portion of the benefit 
under the Company's Annual Incentive Plan calculated 
based upon the termination date, and (c) any compen­
sation previously deferred but not yet paid to the 
executive (with accrued Interest or earnings thereon) 
and any unpaid accrued vacation pay. Mr. Rogers' 
beneficiary will also receive an amount equal to his 
vested accrued benefit under the Value Creation Plan. 
In addition to these accrued amounts, if the Company 
terminates the executive's employment without 
^^cause" or the executive terminates his employment 
for ^^good reason" (as each Is defined in the employ­
ment agreements), the Company will pay to the 
executive (a) a lump sum cash amount equal to the 
present value of his annual base salary and benefit 
under the Company's Annual Incentive Plan payable 
through the end of the term of employment, at the 
rate and applying the same goals and factors in effect 
at the time of notice of such termination, (b) the 
value of all benefits to which the executive would have 
been entitled had he remained in employment until the 
end of the term of employment under the Company's 
Executive Supplemental Life Insurance Program (and 
also including the Value Creation Plan in the case of 
Mr. Rogers), (c) the value of all deferred compensa­
tion and all executive life Insurance benefits whether 
or not then vested or payable, and (d) medical and 
welfare benefits for the executive and his family 
through the end of the term of employment. If the 
executive's employment is terminated by the Company 
for cause or by the executive without good reason, the 
executive will receive unpaid annual base salary 
accrued through the termination date and any accrued 
deferred compensation. 

Mr. Mutz has an employment agreement which 
commenced on October 4, 1993, and was amended 
most recently effective as of December 31 , 1998. 
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Pursuant to the terms of his agreement, Mr. Mutz 
serves as President, and is nominated for election as a 
director, of PSI until May 31, 1999, the expiration 
date of his agreement. During the term of his 
agreement, Mr. Mutz receives a minimum annual base 
salary of $330,000. Under his employment agree­
ment, Mr. Mutz is fully vested in the Mid-career 
Benefit portion of the SERP, without offset for prior 
employers' retirement benefits, and is guaranteed a 
benefit thereunder based on Its current terms even if 
the plan subsequently is amended to reduce benefits or 
is terminated. Mr. Mutz's employment agreement 
further provides that in connection with the Senior 
Executive Supplement portion of the SERP, Mr. Mutz 
will be credited with a pay replacement percentage of 
60% as of his retirement date. 

Mr. Grealis has an employment agreement which 
commenced on January 16, 1995, and currently is 
automatically extended for an additional year on each 
January 1, unless either the Company or Mr. Grealis 
gives timely notice otherwise. During the term of his 
agreement, Mr. Grealis receives a minimum annual 
base salary of $288,000. Under his employment 
agreement, Mr. Grealis will receive annual retirement 
income of no less than $283,000 payable as a 
straight-life annuity at age 62. 

Mr. Thomas has an employment agreement which 
currently is automatically extended for an additional 
year on each January 1, unless either the Company or 
Mr. Thomas gives timely notice otherwise. During the 
term of his agreement, Mr. Thomas receives a 
minimum annual base salary of $240,000. Under his 
employment agreement, if Mr. Thomas retires on or 
after age 55 he will be entitled to receive annual 
retirement income equal to that which a covered 
employee with 35 years of participation would have 
received under Cinergy's Pension Plan and its Excess 
Pension Plan. 

If the employment of Messrs. Mutz, Grealis or 
Thomas (each sometimes individually referred to as 
the ^^officer") is terminated as a result of death, for 
cause, or by the officer without good reason, the 
officer or the officer's beneficiary will be paid a lump 
sum cash amount equal to (a) the officer's unpaid 
annual base salary through the termination date, (b) a 
pro rata portion of the officer's award under the 
Company's Annual Incentive Plan, (c) the officer's 
vested accrued benefits under the Value Creation Plan 
(and also including the Cinergy Pension Plan, Excess 
Pension Plan, and Mid-career Benefit portion of the 
SERP in the case of Mr. Mutz), and (d) any unpaid 
deferred compensation (including accrued interest or 
earnings) and unpaid accrued vacation pay. If, instead, 
the officer's employment is terminated prior to a 

change in control (as defined) without cause or by the 
officer for good reason, the officer will be paid (a) a 
lump sum cash amount equal to the present value of 
the officer's annual base salary and target annual 
incentive cash award payable through the end of the 
term of the agreement, at the rate and applying the 
same goals and factors in effect at the time of notice 
of such termination, (b) the present value of all 
benefits to which the officer would have been entitled 
had the officer remained in employment until the end 
of the term of the agreement under the Value Creation 
Plan and Executive Supplemental Life Insurance 
Program (and also including the Cinergy Pension 
Plan, Excess Pension Plan, and Mid-career Benefit 
portion of the SERP in the case of Mr, Mutz), (c) the 
value of all deferred compensation and all executive 
life insurance benefits whether or not vested or 
payable, and (d) continued medical and welfare 
benefits through the end of the term of the agreement. 
In addition to the above, under Mr. Mutz's employ­
ment agreement the Company has waived Its right to 
challenge Mr. Mutz in the event he elects to terminate 
his employment agreement for good reason. 

Each of the named executive officers participates 
in the Company's Annual Incentive Plan, Stock Option 
Plan, LTIP, Excess Pension Plan, SERP, and Execu­
tive Supplemental Life Insurance Program (with the 
exception of Mr. Randolph who does not participate in 
the LTIP or SERP), participates In all other retire­
ment and welfare benefit plans applicable generally to 
Company employees and executives, and receives other 
fringe benefits. 

If the employment of any named executive officer 
is terminated after a change in control, the officer will 
be paid a lump sum cash payment equal to the greater 
of (i) three times the sum of his annual base salary 
immediately prior to the date of his termination of 
employment or, if higher, the date of the change in 
control, plus all incentive compensation or bonus plan 
amounts in effect prior to the date of his termination 
of employment or, if higher, prior to the change in 
control, and Cii) the present value of all annual base 
salary, bonuses and incentive compensation and retire­
ment benefits that would otherwise be due under the 
agreement, plus deferred compensation and executive 
life insurance benefits. In addition, the officer will be 
provided life, disability, accident and health insurance 
benefits for thirty-six months, reduced to the extent 
comparable benefits are received, without cost, by the 
officer. In addition to the above, Messrs. Rogers and 
Randolph will receive their benefits under their de­
ferred compensation agreements (discussed below) and 
split dollar life Insurance agreements. 
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DEFERRED COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS 

Mr. Randolph and CG&E, and Mr. Rogers and PSI, 
entered into deferred compensation agreements effec­
tive as of January 1, 1992, which were assumed by 
the Company effective as of October 24, 1994. 

Pursuant to the terms of his deferred compensa­
tion agreement, Mr. Randolph was credited annually 
with a $50,000 base salary increase in the form of 
deferred compensation for the five-year period from 
January i , 1992 through December 31, 1996, and 
when his employment terminates he will receive an 
annual cash benefit of $179,000 payable for a 15-
year period beginning January 2001. 

Pursuant to the terms of his deferred compensa­
tion agreement, Mr. Rogers was credited annually with 
a $50,000 base salary increase in the form of 
deferred compensation for the five-year period from 
January l , 1992 through December 31, 1996, and is 
credited annually the same amount for the additional 
five-year period from January 1, 1997 through De­
cember 31, 2001. Mr. Rogers' deferred compensation 
agreement iurther provides that when his employment 
terminates for any reason, other than death, he will 
receive an annual cash benefit over a 15-year period 
beginning the first January following termination of his 
employment, but in no event earlier than January 
2003 nor later than January 2010. The annual cash 
benefit amount payable for such 15-year period ranges 
from $179,000 per year, if payment begins In January 
2003, to $554,400 per year if payment commences In 
January 2010. Comparable amounts are payable to 
Mr. Rogers if he dies before commencement of 
payment of the 15-year payments described above. In 
addition, if Mr. Rogers' employment terminates before 
January i , 2002 for any reason other than death or 
disability, he will receive a lump sum cash payment 
equal to the total amount deferred during the second 
five-year period described above plus interest; if his 
employment terminates on or after January 1, 2002 
for any reason other than death or disability, he will 
receive an additional annual benefit for a 15-year 
period beginning the first January following termina­
tion of his employment, but in no event earlier than 
January 2008 nor later than January 2010. The 
annual cash benefit amount payable for such period 
ranges from $179,000 per year, if payment begins in 
January 2008, to $247,000 per year if payment 
begins in January 2010. Comparable amounts are 
payable to Mr. Rogers in the event his employment is 
terminated for disability prior to January 1, 2002 or 
if he dies (I) prior to January 1, 2002 while employed 
or disabled, or (ii) on or after January 1, 2002 but 

before commencement of payment of benefits; pro­
vided, however, if Mr. Rogers becomes disabled prior 
to the completion of the second award period, his 
payments will be proportionately reduced in the same 
manner as described above for disability during the 
first award period, 

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS 
AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Schiff, Chairman of the Board of Cincinnati 
Financial Corporation, serves on the Company's Com­
pensation Committee and Mr. Randolph, Chairman of 
the Board of the Company, serves on the board of 
directors of Cincinnati Financial Corporation, 

[Remainder of this page Intentionally left blank] 
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH 

The following line graph compares the cumulative total average shareholder return of the common stock of the 
Company with the cumulative total returns during the same time period of the Standard & Poor's (^'S&P") 
Electric Utilities Index and the S&P 500 Stock Index. The graph tracks performance from October 25, 1994, the 
initial trading date of the Company's common stock, through December 31, 1998, and assumes a $100 investment 
on such initial trading date and dividend reinvestment. 
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ITEM 2. APPROVAL OF AMENDED 
AND RESTATED CINERGY 
CORP. RETIREMENT PLAN 
FOR DIRECTORS 

INTRODUCTION 

Effective October 24, 1994, the Company adopted the 
Cinergy Corp. Retirement Plan for Directors (the 
''Retirement Plan"), an unfunded retirement plan for 
non-employee directors of the Company, Services, PSI 
and CG&E. Under the terms of this plan, non-
employee directors with five or more years of service 
have been entitled to receive annual retirement com­
pensation in an amount equal to the annual Board 
retainer fee In effect at the time of termination of 
service as a director, plus the product of the fee paid 
for attendance at a Board meeting multiplied by five, 
with the compensation paid for as many years as the 
person served as a director. 

Effective January 1, 1999, and subject to share­
holder approval, the Company amended and restated 
the Retirement Plan (the ''Amended Retirement 
Plan") to eliminate the future accrual of benefits and 
to provide for the conversion of currently accrued 
benefits to units payable at retirement in shares of the 
Company's common stock. The Company estimates 

that a maximum of 175,000 shares of its common 
stock will be issued under the Amended Retirement 
Plan. The Amended Retirement Plan is also subject to 
SEC approval under the 1935 Act. 

The Company believes that the approval of the 
Amended Retirement Plan is in the best interests of 
the shareholders because, in effectively terminating a 
cash-based retirement program for directors, it pro­
motes the accomplishment of long-term corporate 
goals by aligning the interests of directors with those 
of the Company's shareholders. However, should the 
Amended Retirement Plan not be approved by share­
holders, the original Retirement Plan will continue as 
it previously has existed. 

VOTE REQIUIRED 

Assuming the presence of a quorum at the Annual 
Meeting, approval of the Amended Retirement Plan 
will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a 
majority of the shares of the Company's common 
stock present in person or represented by proxy and 
entitled to vote on the proposal. Abstentions will have 
the same effect as votes against the proposal. Broker 
non-votes will be deemed absent shares and will not 
effect the outcome of the vote. 
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SUMMARY OF PLAN FEATURES 

The full text of the Amended Retirement Plan is 
Included as Appendix A to this Proxy Statement. The 
following description summarizes the material features 
of the Plan. 

Partiapants. Non-employee directors with five or 
more years of service on the board of directors of the 
Company, Services, PSI or CG&E prior to Decem­
ber 31, 1998, as well as all non-employee directors 
serving on one or more of those boards as of 
December 31, 1998 regardless of years of service, will 
participate in the Amended Retirement Plan. The 
total number of participants is 24, of which 14 are 
current directors and 10 are former directors. 

Retirement Benefits. The Amended Retirement Plan 
provides for three categories of benefits: 

• Category 1-each participant who retires as a 
director, or dies while serving as a director, 
after January 1, 1999 and who has elected to 
he included In this category will have his 
'^Accrued Benefit" converted to units represent­
ing shares of the Company's common stock; 

• Category 2-each participant who retires as a 
director, or dies while serving as a director, 
after January 1, 1999 and who has elected to 
be included In this category will receive an 
annual cash payment equal to the fees In effect 
on December 31 , 1998; and 

• Category 3-each participant who retired as a 
director prior to January 1, 1999 will receive 
an annual cash payment equal to the fees in 
effect on the date preceding his or her retire­
ment as a director. 

''Fees" have the same meaning under the 
Amended Retirement Plan as under the original 
Retirement Plan, i.e., the Company's annual Board 
retainer fee plus five times the meeting fee. "Accrued 
Benefit" means a participant's total benefit entitle­
ment as of December 31, 1998 reduced to a present 
value. The Accrued Benefit of each participant eligible 
to participate in Category l or 2 above Is set forth on 
page A-6. 

Each participant named on page A-6, other than 
Mr. Hillenbrand (who defers his director's fees into 
stock units under the Company's Directors' Deferred 
Compensation Plan) has elected to participate In 
Category 1 of the Amended Retirement Plan. The 
Initial number of deferred stock units ("Deferred 
Units") into which each Category 1 participant's 
Accrued Benefit will be converted will equal the dollar 
amount of the Accrued Benefit divided by $34,375, 
the closing market price per share of the Company's 
common stock on December 31, 1998. 

Unit Accounts. In addition to the initial number of 
Deferred Units credited to a Category 1 participant's 
account (''Unit Account"), the Unit Account will be 
credited with additional Deferred Units equal in value 
to the cash dividends which would have been paid on 
the number of shares represented by Deferred Units in 
the Account on any dividend payment date. Unit 
Accounts also will be proportionately adjusted for any 
stock split, stock dividend, combination or exchange of 
shares or similar change affecting the Company's 
common stock. 

Unit Accounts will be paid out in shares of the 
Company's common stock, with each credited unit 
being equal to one share of stock. 

Ikffmmi and Duration of Benefits. Generally, 
whether paid in cash or stock, benefit payments under 
the Amended Retirement Plan will begin in February 
following the later of (a) the date a participant ceases 
to be a director or (b) the participant's attainment of 
age 55. 

The Category 1 participants may choose to have 
benefits paid either in a lump sum or in ar\n\}a\ 
installments over a period of two to ten years. A 
Category 2 participant will receive benefits for a term 
equal to the number of full years of service completed 
as of December 31 , 1998. Each Category 3 partici­
pant will receive benefits for a term equal to the 
number of full years for which he or she served as a 
non-employee director. 

Payments under the Amended Retirement Plan 
will continue to a participant's beneficiary after the 
participant's death. 

Shares of the Company's common stock distrib­
uted under the Amended Retirement Plan may be 
newly issued or treasury shares or shares purchased 
on the open market, as determined by the Company. 

As of December 31 , 1998, the present value of 
the accrued retirement benefits under the Plan for the 
14 current directors was $3,910,245. As to the 10 
former directors who are participants, annual cash 
payments of $18,750 to $32,500 will be paid for 
periods of 5 to 25 years, depending upon the number 
of years the recipient had served prior to his or her 
retirement as a director. 

Assignment. Benefits and amounts credited to a 
director's Unit Account under the Plan may not be 
assigned, transferred, pledged, encumbered or other­
wise disposed of prior to their distribution. 

Amendment and Termination. The Board may 
amend or terminate the Amended Retirement Plan at 
any time. However, no termination or amendment may 
deprive any participant (or beneficiary) of any benefits 
accrued under the Plan prior to the termination or 
amendment without his or her consent. 
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Administration. The Amended Retirement Plan 
will be administered by the Company's Board. In 
addition to having the right to interpret and otherwise 
regulate the Plan, the Board is specifically authorized 
to reverse any action under the Plan which would 
adversely affect the ability of the Company to use 
pooling of interests accounting in a merger or other 
corporate transaction. I f the Board were to exercise 
its discretion in this regard. It also has the authority 
to provide appropriate cash or other substitute 
compensation. 

Effects of a Change in Control ofthg Company. In the 
event of a "change in control" (as defined in the 
Amended Retirement Plan) of the Company, each 
participant (or beneficiary, if appropriate) will be 
entitled to receive a lump sum payment of the 
actuarial equivalent of benefits accrued and remaining 
unpaid as of the date of the "change in control." The 
lump sum equivalent will be calculated assuming the 
interest rate used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation in determining the value of immediate 
benefits as of the immediately preceding January 1. 

The Board Recommends Voting FOR this 
Proposal, which is Designated in the Proxy as 
Item 2. 

ITEM 3. APPROVAL OF CINERGY 
CORP. DIRECTORS' EQUITY 
COMPENSATION PLAN 

INTRODUCTION 

To replace the Retirement Plan on a going-forward 
basis, the Company has adopted, effective January 1, 
1999 and subject to shareholder approval, the Cinergy 
Corp. Directors' Equity Compensation Plan (the "D i ­
rectors' Equity Plan"). The Plan is also subject to 
SEC approval under the 1935 Act. 

The Company believes that the approval of the 
Directors' Equity Plan is in the best interests of the 
shareholders because the Plan aligns the long-term 
interests of the Company's non-employee directors 
with those of its shareholders, thus providing further 
incentive to enhance the financial success of the 
Company and increase shareholder value. 

The Directors' Equity Plan Is an unfunded plan 
under which each non-employee director of the Com­
pany will receive, beginning December 31 , 1999, an 
annual award equivalent to 450 shares of the Com­
pany's common stock. Although the Plan permits the 
payment of cash awards at the Board's discretion, tlie 
BoardfiiUy rnitidpates that all awards under the Directors' 

Equity Pkm will be paid in shares of the Company's comma 
stock. 

Shares of the Company's common stock distrib­
uted under the Directors' Equity Plan may be newly 
issued or treasury shares or shares acquired on the 
open market or otherwise. A maximum of 75,000 
shares are authorized for issuance under the Plan, 
subject to adjustments for changes in the Company's 
capitalization. 

VOTE REQUIRED 

Assuming the presence of a quorum at the Annual 
Meeting, approval of the Directors' Equity Plan will 
require the affirmative vote of the holders of a 
majority of the shares of the Company's common 
stock present in person or represented by proxy and 
entitled to vote on the proposal. Abstentions will have 
the same effect as votes against the proposal. Broker 
non-votes will be deemed absent shares and will not 
effect the outcome of the vote. 

SUMMARY OF PLAN FEATURES 

The full text of the Directors' Equity Plan is included 
as Appendix B to this Proxy Statement. The following 
description summarizes the material features of the 
Plan. 

Eligibility. Each non-employee director of the 
Company on January 1 of any year, commencing 
January 1, 1999, and each person who after Janu­
ary 1, 1999 is elected or appointed for the first time 
to be a non-employee director of the Company during 
the course of any year, is eligible to receive an award 
under the Directors' Equity Plan for that year. All 
current non-employee directors of the Company are 
eligible to participate in the Directors' Equity Plan. 
The ultimate number of participants will depend upon 
the number of non-employee directors of the Company 
over the life of the Plan, which has no set expiration 
date. 

Awards. Commencing December 31 , 1999, and 
on each following December 31 , each eligible non-
employee director during the just-completed year will 
be granted either a "Stock Award" or a "Cash 
Award," as determined by the Board in Its discretion. 
A Stock Award will consist of 450 units ("Units"), 
with each Unit representing one share of the Com­
pany's common stock. Any Cash Award will be an 
amount In cash equal to the market value of 450 
shares of the Company's common stock on the date of 
grant. As indicated above, the Boardfully anticipates that 
all Phm awards will be Stock Awards. 
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i Awards to directors who retire from the Board 
during the course of a year will be prorated based 
upon their lengths of service during the year. 

Accounts. Stock Awards and any Cash Awards 
under the Directors' Equity Plan will be credited to 
individual bookkeeping accounts ("Accounts") main­
tained for each participant. A director's Account will 
be credited with additional full and fractional Units 
equal in value to the cash dividends which would have 
been paid on the number of shares represented by 
Units in the Account on any dividend payment date. 
Accounts also will be proportionately adjusted for any 
stock split, stock dividend, combination or exchange of 
shares or similar change affecting the Company's 
common stock. Any cash amounts In an Account will 
be credited with interest at the rate quoted for a one 
year $100,000 certificate of deposit. The Board has 
discretion, at any time, to convert Cash Awards and 
accrued interest In a director's Account to Units by 
dividing the amount of cash credited to the Account 
by the market value of the Company's common stock 
on the conversion date. 

Payment i f Benefits. All whole Units in a director's 
Account will be distributed In the form of shares of 
the Company's common stock (with cash paid in lieu 
of any fractional share). Unless converted to Units, 
any cash In an Account will be paid out in cash. A 
director may elect to have his or her Account paid out 
In a single lump sum or In annual Installments over a 
period of two to ten years. In either case, payment 
will be made, or begin, on the first business day of the 
calendar year following the date of the director's 
retirement from the Board. Upon the death of a Plan 
participant, any amounts remaining in his or her 
Account will be paid in a lump sum, within 90 days, 
to the participant's designated beneficiary or estate. 

Assignment. Awards and other amounts credited 
to a director's Account under the Plan may not be 
assigned, transferred, pledged, encumbered or other­
wise disposed of prior to their distribution. 

Duration, Amendment and Termination. The Direc­
tors' Equity Plan has no expiration date. The Board 
may amend or terminate the Plan at any time. 
However, no termination or amendment may adversely 
affect the balance In a director's Account or permit 
early payment of an Account. 

Administration. The Directors' Equity Plan will be 
administered by the Company's Board. In addition to 
having the right to interpret and otherwise regulate 
the Plan, the Board is specifically authorized to 
reverse any Award under the Plan which would 
adversely affect the ability of the Company to use 

pooling of interests accounting in a merger or other 
corporate transaction. If the Board were to exercise 
its discretion in this regard, it also has the authority 
to provide appropriate cash or other substitute 
compensation. 

Effects of a Change in Control of the Company. In the 
event of a "change in control" (as defined in the 
Directors' Equity Plan) of the Company, each partici­
pant (or beneficiary, If appropriate) will be entitled to 
receive a lump sum payment of the actuarial equiva­
lent of benefits accrued and remaining unpaid as of 
the date of the "change In control." The lump sum 
equivalent will be calculated assuming the interest rate 
used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation in 
determining the value of immediate benefits as of the 
immediately preceding January 1. 

The Board Recommends Voting FOR this 
Proposal, which is Designated in the Proxy as 
I tem 3. 

ITEM 4. ADOPTION OF AMENDMENT 
TO ARTICLE I I I , 
SECTION 3.1, OF THE 
COMPANY'S BY-LAWS 

INTRODUCTION 

ARTICLE I I I , Section 3.1, of the Company's By-Laws 
currently provides that the Board shall consist of 17 
directors, and that this number may be changed to an 
odd number ranging between 15 and 23 by the 
affirmative vote of not less than 75% of the full 
Board. 

The proposed amendment will reduce the lower 
end of the range to 7 (rather than the current 15, 
while keeping the higher number of the range at 23) 
and provide the Board more flexibility in establishing 
its size by eliminating the requirement that there be 
an odd number of directors. The proposed amendment 
gives the Board the ability to reduce its size if a lesser 
number of directors Is desired, having no effect on the 
term of any current director or nominee. 

The Board deems it advisable and in the best 
interests of the Company and its shareholders that the 
proposed amendment be adopted. Accordingly, effec­
tive October 15, 1998, the Board duly adopted the 
resolution recommending that the Company's share­
holders duly adopt a certain amendment to ARTI­
CLE I I I , Section 3.1, of the Company's By-Laws as 
set forth at the top of the next page, with the 
amended provisions shown in italics and the deleted 
provisions lined through. 
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Section 3.1 IMumber of Directors. The 
Board of Directors shall consist of 17 direc­
tors. This a number of directors may be changed 
to an odd number not less than seven (7) i 5 
and not more than twenty-three (23) as 
determinedly a vote of not less than 75% of 
the full Board of Directors ("Supermajority 
Vote"). Any such determination made by the 
Board of Directors shall continue in effect 
unless and until changed by the Board of 
Directors by Supermajority Vote, but no such 
change shall affect the term of any director 
then in office. 

VOTE REQUIRED 

Assuming the presence of a quorum at the Annual 
Meeting, adoption of the proposed amendment will 
require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 
80% of the issued and outstanding shares of the 
Company's common stock. Abstentions will have the 
same effect as votes against the proposal. In the 
absence of specific instructions from beneficial own­
ers, brokers will retain authority to vote In their 
discretion with respect to this matter. 

The Board Recommends Voting FOR this 
Proposal, wliich is Designated in the Proxy as 
I tem 4. 

RELATIONSHIP 
ACCOUNTANTS 

WITH INDEPENDENT PUBLIC 

Arthur Andersen LLP served as independent public 
accountants for the Company and its subsidiaries for 
the year 1998. On January 21, 1999, upon recom­
mendation of its Audit Committee, the Board engaged 
Arthur Andersen LLP as independent public account­
ants for the Company and its subsidiaries for the year 
1999. Representatives of Arthur Andersen LLP are 
expected to be present at the Annual Meeting with the 
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do 
so, and will be available to respond to appropriate 
questions. 

PROPOSALS AND BUSINESS BY 
SHAREHOLDERS 

In order to be considered for inclusion in the 
Company's proxy statement for the 2000 annual 
meeting of shareholders, proposals from shareholders 
must be received by November 16, 1999. 

In addition, in order for a shareholder properly to 
introduce business for action by shareholders at the 
Company's 2000 annual meeting (other than business 
specified in the Notice of the meeting), the Company 
must be given written notice, which complies with all 
requirements of the Company's By-Laws, no earlier 
than December 23, 1999 and no later than Janu­
ary 21, 2000. The Company will retain discretionary 
authority to vote proxies on matters of which it is not 
properly notified and also may retain such authority 
under other circumstances. 

Any proposal or notice should be directed to the 
Secretary of the Company at 139 East Fourth Street, 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202. 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

Cheryl U. Foley 
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 

Dated: March 15, 1999 
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APPENDIX A 

CINERGY CORR 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR DIRECTORS 
(As Amended and Restated Effective 
January 1, 1999) 

INTRODUCTION 

Effective October 24, 1994, Cinergy Corp. 
("Cinergy") established the "Cinergy Corp. Retirement 
Plan for Directors," a retirement plan for non-
employee directors of Cinergy Corp., Cinergy Services, 
T r \ r> T l~" T 1 - r - l / ^ ' ' I • ^ ft 

Inc., PSI Energy, Inc., and The Cincinnati Gas & 
Electric Company. 

As amended and restated effective January 1, 
1999, the Cinergy Corp. Retirement Plan for Direc­
tors (the "Plan") is set forth In its entirety below. 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

When used in this document, the following terms shall 
have the respective meanings set forth below, unless a 
different meaning is plainly required by the context: 

1.1 "Accrued Benefit" means a Participant's 
total benefit under the Plan as of Decem­
ber 31, 1998, reduced to a present value 
using a discount rate and other assumptions 
approved by the Compensation Committee 
of Cinergy's Board of Directors, as set 
forth on Schedule A (on page A-6). 

1.2 "Beneficiary" means the person or persons 
designated by a Participant to receive 
benefits under the Plan after the Partici­
pant's death. 

1.3 "CG&E" means The Cincinnati Gas & 
Electric Company, an Ohio corporation, and 
its successors. 

1.4 "CG&E's Board of Directors" means the 
duly constituted board of directors of 
CG&E on the applicable date. 

1.5 "Cinergy" means Cinergy Corp., a Delaware 
corporation, and its successors. 

1.6 "Cinergy Services" means Cinergy Services, 
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its 
successors. 

1.7 "Cinergy's Board of Directors" means the 
duly constituted board of directors of 
Cinergy on the applicable date. 

1.8 "Cinergy Services' Board of Directors" 
means the duly constituted board of direc­
tors of Cinergy Services on the applicable 
date. 

1.9 "Cinergy's Secretary" means the person 
holding the position of Secretary of Cinergy 
on the applicable date. 

1.10 "Common Stock" means the common 
stock, par value $.01 per share, of Cinergy. 

1.11 "Deferred Unit" means a bookkeeping unit 
representing one share or a fractional share 
of Common Stock, ultimately payable in 
Common Stock as provided in this Plan. 

1.12 "Director" means any person duly selected 
to serve as a member of Cinergy's Board of 
Directors, Cinergy Services' Board of Di­
rectors, PSI's Board of Directors, or 

CG&E's Board of Directors. 
1.13 "Fees" means (a) the amount of the annual 

retainer compensation paid to a non-
employee Director of Cinergy, plus (b) five 
times the compensation paid to a non-
employee Director of Cinergy upon attend­
ing a meeting of Cinergy's Board of 
Directors. 

1.14 "Market Value Per Share" means the 
closing price of the Common Stock, as 
reported by the "IMYSE-Composite Trans­
actions" Dublished in The Wall Street Jour­
nal, on the appropriate date of reference or 
on the preceding trading day if that date 
was not a trading date. 

1.15 "1934 Act" means the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended from time to 
time, and the rules and regulations under 
such Act. 

1.16 "Participant" means any Director or for­
mer Director who meets the eligibility 
requirements for participation described in 
Article 3. 

1.17 "P lan " means this retirement plan for 
Directors known as the "Cinergy Corp. 
Retirement Plan for Directors," as 
amended and restated effective January 1, 
1999 and as it may be further amended 
from time to time. 

1.18 " P S I " means PSI Energy Inc., an Indiana 
corporation, and its successors. 

1.19 "PSI's Board of Directors" means the duly 
constituted board of directors of PSI on 
the applicable date. 

1.20 "PSI Resources" means PSI Resources, 
Inc., an Indiana corporation, and its 
successors. 

1.21 '^Unlt Account" means the Individual book­
keeping account maintained for a Partici­
pant who has made the election provided 
for in Section 5.2, to which Deferred Units 
are credited and debited. 
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The uses of singular and masculine words are for 
practical purposes only and shall be deemed to include 
the plural and feminine, respectively, unless the con­
text plainly indicates a distinction. Certain other 
definitions, as required, appear in the following 
Articles of the Plan. 

ARTICLE 2 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN 

The provisions of this Plan are, unless the context 
Indicates otherwise, effective January 1, 1999. 

ARTICLE 3 

ELIGIBILITY 

With the exception of any Director who, as of 
February 1, 1990, was a former employee of PSI 
Resources or PSI, each Director who is not also an 
employee or former employee of Cinergy, Its subsidiar­
ies, or affiliates with vested rights under a pension 
plan sponsored by Cinergy, its subsidiaries, or affili­
ates is eligible to participate In the Plan. No Director 
elected on or after January 1, 1999, shall be eligible 
to participate In the Plan. 

An eligible Director shall become a Participant in 
the Plan commencing with the sixth year of service as 
a Director. Service as a Director of Cinergy, Cinergy 
Services, PSI, CG&E, or Resources prior to Octo­
ber 24, 1994, shall be applied in determining eligibil­
ity. Notwithstanding anything in this Article to the 
contrary, anyone who is an eligible Director on 
December 31, 1998, shall become a Participant in the 
Plan on January 1, 1999, irrespective of whether the 
Director has completed five years of service as of 
December 31 , 1998. 

ARTICLE 4 

VESTING 

Each eligible Director shall be fully vested In his 
benefits under the Plan Immediately upon becoming a 
Participant. 

ARTICLE 5 

AMOUNT OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

5.1 Each Participant who retires as a Director prior 
to January 1, 1999, shall be entitled to receive an 
annual cash payment In an amount equal to the Fees 
in effect on the day preceding the date of the 
Participant's retirement as a Director. 

5.2 Each Participant who retires as a Director, or 
dies while a Director, on or after January 1, 1999, 
and who has signed the written consent and election 
described below, shall be entitled to receive his 
Accrued Benefit, which shall be converted into De­
ferred Units by dividing the dollar amount of the 
Accrued Benefit by the Market Value Per Share on 
December 31 , 1998. The Accrued Benefit will be 
payable to the Director in Common Stock as set forth 
in Article 7. 

In order for a Director to receive his Accrued 
Benefit In Common Stock, he must affirmatively 
consent, in writing, by filing with Cinergy's Secretary, 
on or before December 31 , 1998, an election form 
requesting that his Accrued Benefit be converted to 
Deferred Units. If the Participant does not so consent, 
his benefit under the Plan will be paid as provided in 
Section 5.3. 

5.3 Each Participant who retires as a Director, or 
dies while a Director, on or after January 1, 1999 and 
who has not consented to receiving his Accrued 
Benefit in the form of Deferred Units shall be entitled 
to receive an annual cash payment in an amount equal 
to the Fees in effect on December 31 , 1998. 

ARTICLE 6 

UNIT ACCOUNTS 

6.1 In addition to Deferred Units credited to a 
Participant's Unit Account as a result of the Initial 
conversion of the Participant's Accrued Benefit, the 
Participant's Unit Account shall be credited with 
additional Deferred Units in amounts equal to: 

(a) the amount of any cash dividend (or the fair 
market value of a dividend paid in property, 
other than a dividend paid in Common 
Stock) which the Participant would have 
received if on the record date for the 
dividend the Participant had been the owner 
of record of a number of shares of Common 
Stock equal to the number of Deferred Units 
(including fractions) then credited to the 
Participant's Unit Account divided by 

(b) the Market Value Per Share on the date the 
dividend is paid. 

From time to time, additional Deferred Units shall 
be credited to the Participant's Unit Account in 
amounts equal to the number of full and fractional 
shares of Common Stock which the Participant would 
have received if on the record date for a dividend 
which is to be paid in Common Stock the Participant 
had been the owner of record of a number of shares 
of Common Stock equal to the number of Deferred 
Units (including fractions) then credited to the Par­
ticipant's Unit Account. 
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6.2 A Participant's Unit Account shall be propor­
tionately adjusted, if and to the extent appropriate, for 
any change in the Common Stock by reason of any 
stock split, combination or exchange of shares, recapi­
talization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, or 
any similar change affecting the Common Stock. 

ARTICLE 7 

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS 

7 . 1 Benefits Ihid in Cash 

A. Payment to the Participant f Living 
The annual benefit shall be payable on the 
first business day of February each year, 
beginning with the February following the 
later of (a) the date the Participant ceases to 
be a Director, or (b) the Participant's attain­
ment of age 55. 

B. fhyment to the Ihrtidpant's Beneficiary 
If a Participant dies before the payment of 
benefits has commenced under Section 7.1A, 
then the annua! benefit shall be payable on 
the first business day of February each year, 
beginning with the February following the 
Participant's date of death. 

7.2 Benefits Paid in Common Stock 

A. Payment to the Participant f Living 
The Participant's Unit Account shall be paya­
ble on the first business day of February each 
year, beginning with the February following 
the later of (a) the date the Participant 
ceases to be a Director, or (b) the Partici­
pant's attainment of age 55. 
Prior to retirement, a Participant shall elect 
the method of payment by filing with 
Cinergy's Secretary an appropriate election 
form. At the Participant's election, the Unit 
Account shall be distributed either in a single 
lump sum payment or In annual installments 
of two to ten years. 
If the Participant elects to have the Unit 
Account paid in a single lump sum, the 
number of shares of Common Stock to be 
transferred to the Participant shall be the 
number of whole Deferred Units credited to 
the Participant's Unit Account as of the 
distribution date. 
If the Participant elects to have his Unit 
Account paid in installments, the number of 
shares of Common Stock to be distributed 
each year shall be equal to the number of 
Deferred Units credited to the Participant's 

Unit Account on the day preceding the date 
of payment of the installment, divided by the 
number of installments remaining to be paid, 
and reduced, if necessary, to the nearest 
whole Deferred Unit. 

B, Ibyment to the Ihrticipant's Beneficiary 
If a Participant dies before the payment of 
benefits has commenced under Section 7.2A/ 
then the Participant's Unit Account shall be 
paid to the Participant's Beneficiary either in 
a single lump sum or In annual installments 
(of two to ten years) as determined by the 
Participant's Beneficiary. If paid in annual 
installments, the amount distributed each 
year shall be computed as provided in Sec­
tion 7.2A and shall be payable on the first 
business day of February each year, beginning 
with the February following the Participant's 
date of death. If the benefit is payable in a 
single lump sum, the benefit shall be payable 
as soon as administratively feasible following 
the Participant's death. 

C. Marnier ofBxyment <f Common Stock 
Shares of Common Stock distributed under 
the Plan may be newly Issued or treasury 
shares or shares purchased on the open 
market, as determined by Cinergy. Cash shall 
be paid in lieu of any fractional share. 

ARTICLE 8 

DURATION OF BENEFITS 

For a Participant who retires as a Director prior to 
January 1, 1999, the annual benefit shall be payable 
for a term certain equal to the number of completed 
full years the Participant served as a Director as of 
the date of the Participant's retirement as a Director. 

For a Participant who retires as a Director, or 
who dies while a Director, on or after January 1, 
1999 and who has not elected to receive his Accrued 
Benefit in the form of Deferred Units, the annual 
benefit shall be payable for a term certain equal to 
the number of completed full years the Participant 
served as a Director as of December 31, 1998. 

ARTICLE 9 

DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARY 
AND PAYMENT OF BENEFIT UPON DEATH 

9.1 Designation ofBenefidary 
A Participant may designate a Beneficiary or 

Beneficiaries (which may be an entity other than a 
natural person) to receive any benefit payments to be 

A ^ e n ^ A: Amended and Restated Cinergy Corp. Retirement Phmfiir Directors 



made under this Plan upon the Participant's death. A 
Participant may change or cancel his Beneficiary 
designation at any time without the consent of the 
Beneficiary. Any Beneficiary designation, change, or 
cancellation must be by written notice filed with 
Cinergy's Secretary and shall not be effective until 
received by Cinergy's Secretary. If the Participant 
designates more than one Beneficiary, any payments 
under this Plan to a Beneficiary shall be made In 
equal shares unless the Participant has designated 
otherwise, In which case the payments shall be made 
in shares designated by the Participant. If no Benefici­
ary has been named by the Participant, payment shall 
be made to the Participant's estate. 

9.2 Payments Upon Death of Participant 

A. Payments Made in Cash 
Upon the death of a Participant who retires 
as a Director prior to January 1, 1999, 
payment shall be made to the Participant's 
Beneficiary for the balance of the number of 
completed full years the Participant served as 
a Director for which the Participant had not 
received payment at the date of his death. 
Upon the death of a Participant who retires 
as a Director, or dies while a Director, on or 
after January 1, 1999 and who has not 
provided the written consent described In 
Section 5.2, payment shall be made to the 
Participant's Beneficiary for the balance of 
the number of completed full years the 
Participant served as a Director as of Decem­
ber 31, 1998 for which the Participant had 
not received payments at the date of his 
death. 

Upon a Beneficiary's death, any remaining 
benefit shall be paid in a lump sum to the 
Beneficiary's estate. 

B. Payments Made in Canton Stock 
Upon the death of a Participant who retires 
as a Director, or who dies while a Director, 
on or after January 1, 1999 and who has 
provided the written consent described in 
Section 5.2, payment shall be made to the 
Participant's Beneficiary in a single lump sum 
or for the remaining number of installments 
designated by the Participant. Upon the 
Beneficiary's death, any remaining benefit 
shall be paid In a lump sum to the Benefici­
ary's estate. 

ARTICLE 10 

NONALIENATION OF BENEFITS 

The Plan shall not in any manner be liable for, or 
subject to, the debts and liabilities of any Participant 
or Beneficiary. No payee may assign the benefit 
payments due him under the Plan. No benefits at any 
time payable under the Plan shall be subject in any 
manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, 
assignment, pledge, attachment, garnishment, levy, 
execution, or other legal or equitable process or 
covenants of any kind. 

ARTICLE 11 

SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL 

The Plan shall be subject to approval by a majority of 
the shares present in person or represented by proxy 
and entitled to vote thereon at a duly held sharehold­
ers' meeting of Cinergy at which a quorum exists. 

ARTICLE 12 

FUNDING POLICY 

The Plan shall be totally unfunded so that Cinergy is 
under merely a contractual duty to make benefit 
payments when due under the Plan. The promise to 
pay shall not be represented by notes and shall not be 
secured In any way. No contributions to the Plan by 
Participants shall be required or permitted under the 
Plan. 

ARTICLE 13 

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION 

Cinergy, by resolution duly adopted by Cinergy's Board 
of Directors, shall have the right, authority and power 
to alter, amend, modify, revoke or terminate the Plan 
at any time. However, subject to the provisions of 
Section 14.6, without his, her or its written consent, 
no termination or amendment shall deprive any 
Participant (or Beneficiary, in the event of the 
Participant's death prior to the date of such action) 
of any benefits accrued under the Plan prior to the 
termination or amendment. 

ARTICLE 14 

MISCELLANEOUS 

14.1 Farfeitability 
If a Director or former Director becomes a 

director, proprietor, officer, partner or employee of, or 
otherwise becomes affiliated with, any utility In the 
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states of Indiana, Ohio or Kentucky that competes 
with Cinergy, its subsidiaries or affiliates, or if a 
former Director shall refuse a reasonable request from 
Cinergy, its subsidiaries or affiliates to perform con­
sulting services after he retires from Cinergy's Board 
of Directors, Cinergy Services' Board of Directors, 
PSI's Board of Directors or CG&E's Board of 
Directors, any payments remaining payable to the 
Participant under this Plan shall be forfeited. 

14.2 JVo Right to Continue as a Director 
Nothing In this Plan shall be construed as 

conferring upon a Participant any right to continue as 
a member of Cinergy's Board of Directors, Cinergy 
Services' Board of Directors, PSI's Board of Direc­
tors or CG&E's Board of Directors. 

14.3 Mo Right to Corporate Assets 
Nothing In this Plan shall be construed as giving 

the Participant, any Beneficiary or any other person 
any equity or interest of any kind in the assets of 
Cinergy, Cinergy Services, PSI or CG&E or creating a 
trust of any kind or a fiduciary relationship of any 
kind between Cinergy, Cinergy Services, PSI or CG&E 
and any person. As to any claim for payments due 
under the provisions of the Plan, a Participant, a 
Beneficiary and any other persons having claim for 
payments shall be unsecured creditors of Cinergy, 
Cinergy Services, PSI or CG&E. 

14.4 Governing Law 
The Plan shall be construed and administered 

according to the laws of the State of Delaware to the 
extent that those laws are not preempted by the laws 
of the United States of America. 

14.5 Headings 
The headings of articles, sections, subsections, 

paragraphs, or other parts of the Plan are for 
convenience of reference only and do not define, limit, 
construe or otherwise affect the Plan's contents. 

14.6 Iboling of Interests Accounting 
In the event any action under this Plan would 

adversely affect the ability of Cinergy to use pooling 
of interests accounting in a subsequent merger or 
other corporate transaction, Cinergy's Board of Direc­
tors may, in its sole discretion, reverse any such 
action effective as of the effective date of the action 
and provide cash or such other substitute compensa­
tion as it deems appropriate and as may be necessary 
to cure the adverse effect on pooling. 

ARTICLE 15 

ADMINISTRATION 

Cinergy's Board of Directors shall be responsible for 
the administration of the Plan. Cinergy's Board of 
Directors reserves the right to interpret and regulate 
the Plan, by exercise of discretionary authority, and 
its interpretation and regulation shall be effective and 
binding on all parties concerned. 

ARTICLE 16 

PAYMENTS UPON CHANGE IN CONTROL 

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Plan to the 
contrary, following a Change In Control of Cinergy, 
each Participant (or Beneficiary, if appropriate) shall 
be entitled to receive a lump sum payment of the 
actuarial equivalent of benefits accrued and remaining 
unpaid as of the date of the Change in Control. The 
lump sum equivalent shall be calculated assuming the 
Interest rate used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation in determining the value of Immediate 
benefits as of the Immediately preceding January 1. 

A "Change in Control" of Cinergy shall be 
deemed to have occurred If the event set forth in any 
one of the following paragraphs shall have occurred: 

(1) Any "person" or "group" (within the mean­
ing of Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the 
1934 Act) Is or becomes the beneficial 
owner (as defined in Rule l3d-3 under the 
1934 Act), directly or indirectly, of securi­
ties of Cinergy (not Including in the securi­
ties beneficially owned by such person any 
securities acquired directly from Cinergy or 
its affiliates) representing 50% or more of 
the combined voting power of Cinergy's then 
outstanding securities, excluding any person 
who becomes such a beneficial owner in 
connection with a transaction described In 
clause (I) of paragraph (2) below; or 

(2) There Is consummated a merger or consoli­
dation of Cinergy or any direct or indirect 
subsidiary of Cinergy with any other corpora­
tion, other than (i) a merger or consolidation 
which would result in the voting securities of 
Cinergy outstanding immediately prior to 
such merger or consolidation continuing to 
represent (either by remaining outstanding or 
by being converted into voting securities of 
the surviving entity or any parent thereof) at 
least 50% of the combined voting power of 
the securities of Cinergy or such surviving 
entity or any parent thereof outstanding 
immediately after such merger or consolida­
tion, or (ii) a merger or consolidation 
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effected to implement a recapitalization of 
} Cinergy (or similar transaction) in which no 

person is or becomes the beneficial owner, 
directly or indirectly, of securities of Cinergy 
(not including in the securities beneficially 
owned by such person any securities acquired 
directly from Cinergy or its affiliates other 
than in connection with the acquisition by 
Cinergy or its affiliates of a business) repre­
senting 25% or more of the combined voting 
power of Cinergy's then outstanding securi-

1 ties; or 
(3) During any period of two consecutive years, 

individuals who at the beginning of that 
period constitute Cinergy's Board of Direc­
tors and any new director (other than a 
director whose initial assumption of office Is 
in connection with an actual or threatened 
election contest, including but not limited to 
a consent solicitation, relating to the election 
of directors of Cinergy) whose appointment 
or election by Cinergy's Board of Directors 
or nomination for election by Cinergy's 
shareholders was approved or recommended 
by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the 
directors then still in office who either were 
directors at the beginning of that period or 
whose appointment, election or nomination 
for election was previously so approved or 
recommended cease for any reason to consti­
tute a majority of Cinergy's Board of Direc­
tors; or 

(4) The shareholders of Cinergy approve a plan 
of complete liquidation or dissolution of 
Cinergy or there Is consummated an agree-

1 ment for the sale or disposition by Cinergy 
of all or substantially all of Cinergy's assets, 
other than a sale or disposition by Cinergy of 
all or substantially all of Cinergy's assets to 
an entity, at least 60% of the combined 
voting power of the voting securities of 
which are owned by shareholders of Cinergy 
in substantially the same proportions as their 
ownership of Cinergy immediately prior to 
such sale. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 13, the 
provisions of this Article may not be amended by an 
amendment to the Plan effected within three years 
following a Change in Control. 

Schedule A 

SCHEDULE OF CALCULATIONS 
OF ACCRUED BENEFITS 
FOR CURRENT DIRECTORS 

f 

Active Participants as of January 1, 1999 

Director's Name 

Armstrong, Neil A. 
Baker, James K. 
Browning, Michael G. 
Cox, Phillip R. 
Duberstein, Kenneth M. 
Hillenbrand I I , John A. 
Juilfs, George C. 
Perelman, Melvin 
Petry, Thomas E, 
Schiff, Jr., John J. 
Sharp, Philip R. 
Smith, Van P 
Taft, Dudley S. 
Waddell, Oliver W. 

Total 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 
Mortality 
Increase rate 

Present Value 
of Vested 

Accrued Benefit 

$ 447,959 
$ 304,975 
$ 208,466 
$ 128,495 
$ 212,624 
$ 320,212 
$ 365,159 
$ 384,397 
$ 288,570 
$ 278,933 
$ 110,132 
$ 304,975 
$ 301,793 
$ 253,555 

$3,910,245 

6.00% 
None 

5.00% 

A-6 
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APPENDIX B 

CINERGY CORR 
DIRECTORS' EQUITY 
COMPENSATION PLAN 

INTRODUCTION 

On December 16, 1998, Cinergy Corp., subject to the 
approval of its shareholders, adopted a compensation 
plan known as the "Cinergy Corp. Directors' Equity 
Compensation Plan" (the "Plan") for the exclusive 
benefit of eligible non-employee directors of Cinergy 
r*t I I I i . 1 r ^ l i ' ' 1 1 1 1 " 1 

Corp. Under the Plan, eligible non-employee directors 
of Cinergy are granted as of December 31 of each 
calendar year beginning In 1999 either a stock award 
consisting of 450 deferred units of Cinergy common 
stock or a cash award equal to the fair market value 
of 450 shares of Cinergy common stock, as deter­
mined by Cinergy's Board of Directors. The Plan, 
effective as of January 1, 1999, is set forth in its 
entirety below. 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

When used in this document, the following terms shall 
have the respective meanings set forth below, unless a 
different meaning is plainly required by the context: 

1.1 ^^AccQunt" means the individual bookkeep­
ing account maintained for a Non-employee 
Director to which Awards, other amounts 
provided for in this Plan and distributions 
under this Plan are credited or debited. 

1.2 "Award" means a Cash Award or a Stock 
Award granted to a Non-employee Director 
pursuant to this Plan. 

1.3 "Beneficiary" means the recipient desig­
nated by a Non-employee Director who Is, 
upon the Non-employee Director's death. 
entitled in accordance with the Plan's terms 
to receive the benefits to be paid with 
respect to the Non-employee Director. 

1.4 "Board" means the duly constituted board 
of directors of Cinergy on the applicable 
date. 

1.5 "Cash Award" means the grant of cash 
compensation to a Non-employee Director 
pursuant to Article 7 of the Plan. A Cash 
Award will be equal to the fair market 
value of 450 shares of Common Stock 
(subject to adjustment as provided In Sec­
tion 6.2) on the.Grant Date. The fair 
market value is determined by multiplying 

450 (subject to adjustment) by the Market , 
Value Per Share on the Grant Date. ' 

1.6 "Cinergy" means Cinergy Corp., a Delaware 
corporation, and any successor to its 
business. 

1.7 "Cinergy's Secretary" means the person 
holding the position of Secretary of Cinergy 
on the applicable date. 

1.8 "Common Stock" means the common 
stock, par value $.01 per share, of Cinergy. 

1.9 "Current Interest Rate" means the interest 
rate in effect for the period during which 
Cash Awards are held in a Non-employee 

Director's Account. The Current Interest 
Rate, until changed by action of the Board, 
shall be that percent per annum equivalent 
to the quoted interest rate for a one year 
certificate of deposit of $100,000 as 
Quoted in The Wall Street Journal for the 
first business day of the particular calendar 
quarter. The Current Interest Rate shall be 
adjusted quarterly. 

1.10 "Disability" shall have the meaning 
ascribed to it in Cinergy's Long-Term Dis­
ability Plan. 

1.11 "Grant Date" means December 31 of each 
calendar year beginning December 31, 
1999. 

1.12 "Market Value Per Share" means the 
closing price of the common stock, as 
reported by the "NYSE-Composite Trans­
actions" Dubllshed In The Wall Street Jour­
nal, on the appropriate date of reference or 
on the preceding trading day if that date 
was not a trading date. 

1.13 "1934 Act" means the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended from time to 
time, and the rules and regulations under 
such Act. 

1.14 "Non-employee Director" means a member 
of the Board who is not an employee of 
Cinergy or of any of Its subsidiaries or 
affiliates. 

1.15 "P lan" means this compensation plan 
known as the "Cinergy Corp. Directors' 
Equity Compensation Plan," as amended 
from time to time. 

1.16 "Stock Award" means the grant on a Grant 
Date of 450 whole Units of Common Stock 
(subject to adjustment as provided in Sec­
tion 6.2) to a Non-employee Director pur­
suant to Article 7 of the Plan. 

1.17 "Un i t " means a bookkeeping unit repre­
senting one share or a fractional share of 
Common Stock on the applicable date. 
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The use of singular words is for practical pur­
poses only and shall be deemed to include the plural 
unless the context clearly indicates a distinction. 
Certain other definitions, as required, appear in the 
following Articles of the Plan. 

ARTICLE 2 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN 

Subject to Article 11, this Plan is effective as of 
January 1, 1999. 

ARTICLE 3 

PURPOSE OF PLAN 

The Plan's purposes are to benefit Cinergy's share­
holders by encouraging and enabling the acquisition of 
a proprietary Interest, or increasing the proprietary 
Interest, in Cinergy by Non-employee Directors thereby 
promoting the achievement of long-term corporate 
objectives by linking the personal interests of Non-
employee Directors to those of Cinergy's shareholders, 
and to aid Cinergy in attracting and retaining qualified 
Non-employee Directors of outstanding competence. 

ARTICLE 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

The Plan shall be administered by the Board, The 
Board is authorized to establish any rules and 
regulations and appoint any agents as It deems 
appropriate for the Plan's proper administration and 
to make any determinations under and to take any 
steps In connection with the Plan as it deems 
necessary or advisable. Each determination or other 
action taken pursuant to the Plan, including interpre­
tation of the Plan and the specific conditions and 
provisions of the Awards granted under the Plan, shall 
be final and conclusive for all purposes and upon all 
persons including, without limitation, each Non-
employee Director, Beneficiary, legal representative, 
and any other interested parties. 

ARTICLE 5 

ELIGIBILITY 

Each Non-employee Director on January 1 of any 
year, commencing January 1, 1999, and each person 
who after January 1, 1999 Is elected or appointed for 
the first time to be a Non-employee Director during 
the course of any year, Is eligible to receive an Award 
under this Plan In respect of that year. 

ARTICLE 6 

STOCK 

6.1 Stock Subject to the Pkm 
Stock to be issued or transferred under the Plan 

shall be shares of Common Stock. Cinergy may use 
authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, 
treasury shares or shares acquired on the open 
market, in private transactions or otherwise, or a 
combination of the foregoing, for purposes of granting 
or settling an Award. Subject to adjustment as 
provided below, the aggregate maximum number of 
shares that may be issued or transferred in payment 
of Awards is 75,000. 

6.2 Adjustment in the Xumber tf Shares 
If there is any change in the shares of Common 

Stock as a result of a stock dividend, stock split, 
recapitalization, merger, consolidation, combination or 
exchange of shares, spin-off, other significant distribu­
tion of assets, or similar change in capitalization, the 
Board shall make such equitable and proportionate 
adjustment, if any, as it deems appropriate in the total 
number of shares of Common Stock available for 
Awards under this Plan, as well as in the number of 
shares of Common Stock underlying a Stock Award or 
used as a basis for calculating the amount of a Cash 
Award. 

ARTICLE 7 

AWARDS 

7.1 Grant of Awards 
Each eligible Non-employee Director during any 

year shall be granted automatically on December 31st 
of that year, commencing December 31 , 1999, either 
a Cash Award or a Stock Award, as determined by the 
Board in its discretion. Awards granted under this 
Plan shall be credited to each Non-employee Direc­
tor's Account. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the 
contrary, the amount of the Award to any Non-
Employee Director who retires from the Board prior 
to December 31 of any calendar year shall be 
prorated based on the period of time the Non-
employee Director served on the Board during that 
calendar year. 

7.2 Cash Awards 
Cash Awards held In an Account shall be credited 

with interest at the Current Interest Rate until 
distributed. Interest credited to the Account will bear 
interest (compounded quarterly) at the same rate. 

The Board, In its discretion, may elect at any time 
to convert Cash Awards and accrued interest thereon 
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credited to a Non-Employee Director's Account to 
Units by dividing the amount of cash credited to the 
Account on the applicable date by the Market Value 
Per Share on the date the conversion is made. 

7.3 Stock Awards 
Stock Awards held in an Account shall be 

credited, until distributed, with additional Units in 
amounts equal to: 

(a) the amount of any cash dividend (or the fair 
market value of a dividend paid in property, 
other than a dividend paid in Common 
Stock) which the Non-employee Director 
would have received if on the record date for 
the dividend the Non-employee Director had 
been the owner of record of a number of 
shares of Common Stock equal to the 
number of Units (including fractions) then 
credited to the Non-employee Director's Ac­
count divided by 

(b) the Market Value Per Share on the date the 
dividend is paid. 

From time to time, additional Units shall be 
credited to the Non-employee Director's Account In 
amounts equal to the number of full and fractional 
shares of Common Stock which the Non-employee 
Director would have received if, on the record date for 
a dividend which is to be paid in Common Stock, the 
Non-employee Director had been the owner of record 
of a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the 
number of Units (including fractions) then credited to 
the Non-employee Director's Account. At the time any 
adjustment is made in accordance with Section 6.2, 
the Units in a Non-employee Director's Account also 
shall be appropriately adjusted. 

ARTICLE 8 

PAYMENT 

8.1 Method and Tme 
A Non-employee Director's Account, together with 

imputed earnings thereon, shall be distributed in a 
single lump sum payment or In equal annual Install­
ments of two to ten years, provided that the Non-
employee Director has properly elected the installment 
method. A single lump sum payment and, where 
applicable, the first installment payment shall be 
payable on the first business day of the calendar year 
immediately following the year in which the Non-
employee Director ceases to be a director, and any 
additional installments shall be payable on the first 
business day of each succeeding year. The election 
described in this paragraph shall be made by the Non-
employee Director at least one year prior to the date 
in which the Non-Employee Director ceases to be a 

director by filing with Cinergy's Secretary a written 
election form. 

8.2 Lump Sum 
If payment of the Non-employee Director's Ac­

count is made in a single lump sum, (i) the number of 
shares of Common Stock to be transferred to the 
Non-employee Director shall be the number of whole 
Units credited to the Non-employee Director's Account 
as of the close of business on the last business day of 
the calendar year in which the Non-employee Director 
ceases to be a director, and any fractional share shall 
be paid in cash, and (il) the full amount of Cash 
Awards, and interest thereon, credited to the Non-
employee Director's Account as of the close of 
business on that date shall be paid in cash. 

8.3 Installments 
If the Non-employee Director's Account is paid in 

installments, (1) the number of whole shares of 
Common Stock distributed on the date an installment 
is payable shall be equal to the number of Units 
credited to the Account as of the close of business on 
the last business day of the calendar year preceding 
the payment date, divided by the number of install­
ments remaining to be paid, with any fractional share 
paid in cash and (ii) the amount of cash shall be 
equal to the cash balance credited to the Account as 
of the close of business on the last business day of the 
calendar year preceding the payment date, divided by 
the number of installments remaining to be paid. 

ARTICLE 9 

EFFECT OF DISABILITY OR DEATH 

In the event of a Non-employee Director's Disability, 
the Board may take any action that it deems to be 
equitable under the circumstances or in the best 
interests of Cinergy, Including, without limitation, 
accelerating the payment of the Non-employee Direc­
tor's Account and prorating the Award that otherwise 
may have been awarded on the Grant Date based on 
the Non-employee Director's period of service during 
the calendar year. 

If a Non-employee Director dies while a member 
of the Board or prior to the full payment of the Non-
employee Director's Account, a number of whole 
shares of Common Stock equal to the number of 
whole Units credited to the Hon~emp\Qyee Director's 
Account (plus cash in lieu of any fractional share), 
and any cash allocated to the Account, shall be paid 
in a single lump sum payment to the Non-employee 
Director's designated Beneficiary or Beneficiaries, if 
any, or to the Non-employee Director's estate if no 
Beneficiaries are designated. The single lump sum 

k 
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payment shall be made within 90 days from the date 
of the Non-employee Director's death. 

A Non-employee Director may designate a Benefi­
ciary or Beneficiaries (which may be an entity other 
than a natural person) to receive any payments to be 
made under this Plan upon the Non-employee Direc­
tor's death. At any time, and from time to time, any 
designation may be changed or canceled by a Non-
employee Director without the consent of any Benefi­
ciary. Any designation, change or cancellation must be 
by written notice filed with Cinergy's Secretary and 
shall not be effective until received by Cinergy's 
Secretary. If the Non-employee Director designates 
more than one Beneficiary, payments to each Benefici­
ary shall be made in equal shares unless the Non-
employee Director has designated otherwise, in which 
case payment shall be made in the shares designated 
by the Non-employee Director. 

ARTICLE 10 

NO TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT 

Awards and other amounts credited to a Non-
employee Director's Account shall not be subject to 
assignment, conveyance, transfer, anticipation, pledge, 
alienation, sale, encumbrance or charge, whether 
voluntary or Involuntary, by the Non-employee Direc­
tor or any Beneficiary of the Non-employee Director, 
even if directed under a qualified domestic relations 
order or other divorce order. An interest In an Award 
or the amount represented thereby shall not provide 
collateral or security for a debt of a Non-employee 
Director or Beneficiary or be subject to garnishment, 
execution, assignment, levy or any other form of 
judicial or administrative process or to the claim of a 
creditor of a Non-employee Director or Beneficiary, 
through legal process or otherwise. Any attempt to 
anticipate, alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge, en­
cumber, charge or to otherwise dispose of benefits 
payable, before actual receipt of the benefits, or a 
right to receive benefits, shall be void and shall not be 
recognized. 

ARTICLE 11 

SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL 

The Plan shall be subject to approval by the holders 
of a majority of the shares present in person or 
represented by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at a 
duly held shareholders' meeting of Cinergy at which a 
quorum exists. 

ARTICLE 12 

FUNDING 

12.1 Unsecured Creditor Status 
The Plan shall be an unfunded plan within the 

meaning of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. Benefits provided for in the Plan constitute 
only an unsecured contractual promise to pay in 
accordance with the terms of the Plan by Cinergy. The 
right of any Non-employee Director or Beneficiary to 
be paid any benefit under the Plan shall be no greater 
than the right of any other general, unsecured creditor 
of Cinergy. 

12.2 JVo Trust or Fiduciary Relationship 
Cinergy shall be responsible for the payment of all 

benefits provided under the Plan. Nothing contained in 
the Plan shall be deemed to create a trust or fiduciary 
relationship of any kind for the benefit of any Non-
employee Director or Beneficiary. Although, at its 
discretion, Cinergy may establish one or more trusts 
for the purpose of providing for the payment of such 
benefits, the assets of any such trust shall be subject 
to the claims of Cinergy's creditors and, to the extent 
any benefits provided for under the Plan are not paid 
from any such trust, they shall remain the obligation 
of, and shall be paid by, Cinergy. 

ARTICLE 13 

MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 M Right ofMmiination 
Nothing In this Plan shall be deemed to create 

any obligation on the part of the Board to nominate 
any Non-employee Director for re-election by 
Cinergy's shareholders, 

13.2 Xo Individual Liability 
It is declared to be the express purpose and 

intention of the Plan that, except as otherwise 
required by law, no individual liability whatever shall 
attach to, or be incurred by, Cinergy, Its shareholders, 
officers, employees, or members of the Board, or any 
representatives appointed by the Board, under or by 
reason of any of the Plan's terms or conditions. 

13.3 Governing Laws 
The Plan shall be construed and administered 

according to the laws of the State of Delaware 
(without giving effect to the conflict of law principles 
of that State) to the extent that those laws are not 
preempted by the laws of the United States of 
America. 
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13.4 Amendment; Termination 
The Plan may at any time or from time to time 

be amended, modified or terminated by the Board; 
provided that, except as previously specified in the 
Plan, without a Non-employee Director's consent, no 
amendment, modification or termination shall 
(i) adversely affect the balance in a Non-employee 
Director's Account or (Ii) permit payment of such 
balance prior to the date(s) specified by the Non-
employee Director or provided for in the Plan. 

13.5 Headings 
The headings of articles and sections of the Plan 

are for convenience of reference only and do not 
define, limit, construe or otherwise effect the contents 
thereof. 

13.6 Change in Control 
Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the 

contrary, in the event of a Change in Control of 
Cinergy, each Non-employee Director's Account shall 
be immediately payable. 

A "Change in Control" of Cinergy shall be 
deemed to have occurred if the event set forth in any 
one of the following paragraphs shall have occurred: 

(1) Any "person" or "group" (within the mean­
ing of Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the 
1934 Act) is or becomes the beneficial 
owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 
1934 Act), directly or Indirectly, of securi­
ties of Cinergy (not including in the securi­
ties beneficially owned by such person any 
securities acquired directly from Cinergy or 
its affiliates) representing 50% or more of 
the combined voting power of Cinergy's then 
outstanding securities, excluding any person 
who becomes such a beneficial owner in 
connection with a transaction described in 
clause (I) of paragraph (2) below; or 

(2) There is consummated a merger or consoli­
dation of Cinergy or any direct or indirect 
subsidiary of Cinergy with any other corpora­
tion, other than (i) a merger or consolidation 
which would result In the voting securities of 
Cinergy outstanding immediately prior to 
such merger or consolidation continuing to 
represent (either by remaining outstanding or 
by being converted into voting securities of 
the surviving entity or any parent thereof) at 
least 50% of the combined voting power of 
the securities of Cinergy or such surviving 
entity or any parent thereof outstanding 
immediately after such merger or consolida­
tion, or (ii) a merger or consolidation 
effected to implement a recapitalization of 
Cinergy (or similar transaction) in which no 

person is or becomes the beneficial owner, 
directly or indirectly, of securities of Cinergy 
(not including in the securities beneficially 
owned by such person any securities acquired 
directly from Cinergy or Its affiliates other 
than in connection with the acquisition by 
Cinergy or its affiliates of a business) repre­
senting 25% or more of the combined voting 
power of Cinergy's then outstanding securi­
ties; or 

(3) During any period of two consecutive years, 
individuals who at the beginning of that 
period constitute the Board and any new 
director (other than a director whose initial 
assumption of office is in connection with an 
actual or threatened election contest, includ­
ing but not limited to a consent solicitation, 
relating to the election of directors of 
Cinergy) whose appointment or election by 
the Board or nomination for election by 
Cinergy's shareholders was approved or rec­
ommended by a vote of at least two-thirds 
(2/3) of the directors then still in office who 
either were directors at the beginning of that 
period or whose appointment, election or 
nomination for election was previously so 
approved or recommended cease for any 
reason to constitute a majority of the Board; 
or 

(4) The shareholders of Cinergy approve a plan 
of complete liquidation or dissolution of 
Cinergy or there is consummated an agree­
ment for the sale or disposition by Cinergy 
of all or substantially all of Cinergy's assets, 
other than a sale or disposition by Cinergy of 
all or substantially all of Cinergy's assets to 
an entity, at least 60% of the combined 
voting power of the voting securities of 
which are owned by shareholders of Cinergy 
In substantially the same proportions as their 
ownership of Cinergy immediately prior to 
such sale. 

13.7 Iboling ^Interests Accounting 
In the event any Award under this Plan would 

adversely affect the ability of Cinergy to participate in 
a subsequent merger or other corporate transaction 
that involves the use of pooling of interests account­
ing, the Board may, in its discretion, reverse any such 
Award, effective as of its Grant Date, and replace it 
with a Cash Award or provide other substitute 
compensation or take any other action which it deems 
necessary or appropriate to allow the transaction to 
proceed on a pooling of Interests basis. 
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ARTICLE 14 

CONTINUANCE BY A SUCCESSOR 

In the event that Cinergy shall be reorganized by way 
of merger, consolidation, transfer of assets or other­
wise, so that a corporation, partnership or person 
other than a subsidiary or affiliate of Cinergy shall 
succeed to all or substantially all of Cinergy's 
business, the successor may be substituted for Cinergy 
under the Plan by adopting the Plan. 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.! 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS 
REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING 
INFORMATION 

Matters discussed in this report reflect and elucidate 
management's corporate vision of the future and, as a 
part of that, outline goals and aspirations, as well as 
specific projections. These goals and projections are 
considered forward-looking statements and are based 
on management's beliefs, as well as certain assump­
tions made by management Forward-looking state­
ments involve risks and uncertainties which may cause 
actual results to differ materially from the forward-
looking statements. In addition to any assumptions 
and other factors that are referred to specifically in 
connection with these statements, other factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those indicated in any forward-looking statements 
include, among others: 

• Factors affecting operations such as unusual 
weather conditions; catastrophic weather-related dam­
age; unscheduled generation outages; unusual mainte­
nance or repairs; unanticipated changes to fossil fuel 
costs, gas supply costs, or availability constraints due 
to higher demand, shortages, transportation problems 
or other developments; environmental incidents; or 
electric transmission or gas pipeline system 
constraints. 

• Legislative and regulatory Initiatives regarding 
deregulation and restructuring of the Industry. 

• The extent and timing of the entry of additional 
competition in electric or gas markets and the effects 
of continued industry consolidation through the pursuit 
of mergers, acquisitions, and strategic alliances. 

• Challenges related to 'î ear 2000 readiness, 
including success In implementing the Cinergy Year 
2000 Readiness Program, the effectiveness of the 
Cinergy Year 2000 Readiness Program, and the Year 
2000 readiness of outside entities. 

• Regulatory factors such as unanticipated 
changes in rate-setting policies or procedures, recovery 
of investments made under traditional regulation, and 
the frequency and timing of rate increases. 

• Financial or regulatory accounting principles or 
policies imposed by the Financial Accounting Stan­
dards Board ("FASB"), the Securities and Exchange 
Commission ("SEC"), the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission ("FERC"), state public utility commis­
sions, state entities which regulate natural gas trans­
mission, gathering and processing, and similar entities 
with regulatory oversight. 

• Political, legal, and economic conditions and 
developments in the United States ("US") and the 
foreign countries In which Cinergy Corp. ("Cinergy" 
or "Company") or its subsidiaries or affiliates oper­
ate, including Inflation rates and monetary 
fluctuations. 

• Changing market conditions and a variety of 
other factors associated with physical energy and 
financial trading activities including, but not limited 
to, price, basis, credit, liquidity, volatility, capacity, 
transmission, currency exchange, interest rate, and 
warranty risks. 

• The performance of projects undertaken by the 
non-traditional business and the success of efforts to 
invest in and develop new opportunities. 

• Availability or cost of capital, resulting from 
changes in: Cinergy and its subsidiaries, interest rates, 
and securities ratings or market perceptions of the 
utility industry and energy-related Industries. 

• Employee workforce factors, including changes 
in key executives, collective bargaining agreements 
with union employees, or work stoppages. 

• Legal and regulatory delays and other obstacles 
associated with mergers, acquisitions, and investments 
in joint ventures, 

• Costs and other effects of legal and administra­
tive proceedings, settlements, investigations, claims, 
and other matters, Including, but not limited to, those 
described in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

• Changes in international, federal, state, or local 
legislative requirements, such as changes in tax laws 
or rates; environmental laws and regulations. 

Cinergy undertakes no obligation to publicly up­
date or revise any forward-looking statements, 
whether as a result of changes in actual results, 
changes in assumptions, or other factors affecting 
such statements. 
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

THE COMPANY 

Cinergy, a Delaware corporation, is a registered 
holding company under the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935 ("PUHCA"). Cinergy was 
created in the October 1994 merger of The Cincinnati 
Gas & Electric Company ("CG&E") and PSI 
Resources, Inc. Cinergy is the parent holding company 
of PSI Energy, Inc. ( "PSI") , CG&E, Cinergy 
Investments, Inc. ("Investments"), Cinergy Global 
Resources, Inc. ("Global Resources"), and Cinergy 
Services, Inc. ("Services"). PSI is a public utility 
primarily engaged In providing electric service in north 
central, central, and southern Indiana. CG&E is a 
public utility primarily engaged in providing electric 
and gas service in the southwestern portion of Ohio 
and through its subsidiaries In adjacent areas tn 
Kentucky and Indiana. CG&E's principal subsidiary. 
The Union Light, Heat and Power Company 
( "ULH&P") , is an operating utility primarily engaged 
in providing electric and gas service in northern 
Kentucky. Investments holds virtually all of Cinergy's 
domestic non-utility businesses and interests. Global 
Resources, formed In 1998, holds Cinergy's 
international businesses and certain other interests. 
Services provides Cinergy companies with a variety of 
administrative, management, and support services. 

Cinergy conducts its operations through various 
subsidiaries and affiliates. The Company is functionally 
organized into four business units through which many 
of its activities are conducted: Energy Commodities 
Business Unit ("ECBU"), Energy Delivery Business 
Unit ("EDBU"), Energy Services Business Unit 
("ESBU"), and the International Business Unit 
( " IBU") . The traditional, vertically-integrated utility 
functions have been realigned into the ECBU, EDBU, 
and ESBU. As the industry continues its evolution, 
Cinergy will continually analyze Its operating structure 
and make adjustments as appropriate. In early 1999, 
certain organizational changes were begun to further 
align the business units to reflect Cinergy's strategic 
vision. Reference Is made to Note 15 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion on 
financial information by business unit as of Decem­
ber 31, 1998. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

COMPETITIVE PRESSURES 

Electric Utility Industry 

Introduction The electric utility industry is continu­
ing to transition from a monopoly cost-of-servlce 
regulated environment to an industry in which compa­
nies will ultimately compete to be the retail customers' 
energy provider. This transition will continue to impact 
the operations, structure, and profitability of Cinergy. 

Energy companies are positioning themselves for 
full competition through the pursuit of mergers and 
acquisitions, strategic alliances, and the development 
of energy products and services. Cinergy's success in 
this transition is in large part dependent on legislative 
and regulatory outcomes with respect to electricity 
deregulation in its three franchise states: Ohio, Indi­
ana, and Kentucky, as well as other regions In the US 
where Cinergy chooses to compete in the retail and 
wholesale markets. 

Restructuring Process 

Wholesale Markets The wholesale electric markets 
have been open to competition since 1996 when the 
FERC issued Orders 888 and 889. These rules 
provided for mandatory filing of open access/compara­
bility transmission tariffs, functional unbundling of alt 
services, utilities' use of these filed tariffs for their 
own bulk power transactions, establishment of an 
electronic bulletin board for transmission availability 
and pricing information, and establishment of a 
contract-based approach to recover stranded invest­
ments as a result of customer choice at the wholesale 
level. 

Competitors within the wholesale market include 
traditional utilities and non-utility competitors such as 
exempt wholesale generators ("EWGs"), independent 
power producers, and power marketers. Cinergy, 
through its ECBU, is involved in wholesale power 
marketing and trading. 

During late June 1998, Midwestern wholesale 
electric power markets experienced unprecedented 
price volatility due to several factors, including unsea­
sonably hot weather, unplanned generating unit out­
ages, transmission constraints, and defaults by certain 
power marketers on their supply obligations. The 
simultaneous occurrence of these events resulted in 
temporary but extreme price spikes in the Midwestern 
electricity markets. During this period, Cinergy's sub­
sidiaries met both their statutory obligation to serve 
retail franchise customers and contractual obligations 
with wholesale customers. Since the events of 
June 1998, the Midwestern markets have continued to 
experience price volatility and illiquidity. For further 
discussion, see the "Market Risk Sensitive Instru­
ments and Positions" section herein. 
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

During 1998, the New York Mercantile Exchange 
("NYMEX") began trading contracts with delivery 
points located in the Midwest and Southern regions of 
the country. Cinergy's transmission system is the 
delivery point for the Midwest region and one of only 
four NYMEX delivery points in the US. 

Retail Markets Regulation and the transition to 
competition at the retail (I.e., end-user) level currently 
remains under the jurisdiction of individual states. 
(See State Developments for a discussion on the 
current status of customer choice In each of Cinergy's 
franchise states.) In most states where restructuring 
legislation has been enacted, all customers have been 
given the right to choose an electricity supplier. The 
incumbent utility has retained the right and obligation 
to provide the distribution and transmission of elec­
tricity, which continues to remain a regulated service. 
Significant issues facing state legislators, regulators, 
and incumbent franchise utilities In the restructuring 
to a competitive retail market include: 

• The responsibility for unrecovered costs of the 
utilities In excess of the amounts which would be 
recovered under competitive market prices and the 
mechanism to recover these costs. 

• The period allowed for transition to full 
competition. 

• The extent to which incumbent utilities continue 
to have the obligation to serve during the transition 
period, or in the alternative, the extent to which 
competitive bidding for existing franchise customers is 
required or allowed. 

• Default supplier responsibility following the 
transition period and the compensation for the associ­
ated risk, 

• The extent to which utilities are granted the 
flexibility to position themselves for competition during 
the transition period, including the right to sell assets 
and retain the proceeds from such sales. 

• Resolution of potential market power issues 
either through forced divestiture of generation and/or 
participation in a regional transmission organization. 

• The need for a power exchange or similar 
mechanism to establish a market clearing price. 

• Codes of conduct regarding the separation of 
the monopoly and non-monopoly functions of a utility 
and the treatment of affiliate transactions. 

• Restructuring of state tax laws applicable to 
utilities necessitated by the disproportionate allocation 
of state tax liability to public utilities. 

The anticipated restructuring of retail electric 
markets will create risks as well as opportunities for 
utilities, e.g., the risks and opportunities arising from 
the termination of the regulated Fuel Adjustment 
Clause, which provides protection against escalation In 
fuel and purchased power costs. Additionally, a num­
ber of implementation issues, including enhancements 
or replacements to existing customer information and 

billing systems, will be required. Cinergy will continue 
to focus on reducing costs and maintaining its status 
as a low-cost provider of electricity as well as 
identifying and addressing the likely implementation 
issues associated with retail customer choice. Addi­
tionally, Cinergy will continue to execute its strategy 
of developing and offering a portfolio of energy 
products and services for the retail market. 

Cinergy continues to be an advocate of competi­
tion in retail electricity markets and continues to 
pursue customer-choice legislation at both the state 
and federal levels. Cinergy believes that the transition 
to competition can best meet the interests of all 
stakeholders where the rules are prescribed to the 
fullest extent possible in legislation that embodies the 
following: 

• Price freezes that provide an opportunity for 
the utility to recover its transition costs and provide 
immediate flexibility for the utility to restructure Its 
portfolio of supply assets in preparation for competi­
tion, keeping any proceeds from the sale or other 
disposition of assets to offset transition costs. 

• A transition period with choice immediately 
available to all. During this period customers can 
adapt to the rights and responsibilities associated with 
choosing an alternative electricity supplier. 

• Mitigation of market power issues through 
participation in a large, regional transmission 
organization. 

• Adequate recovery of regulatory assets. 

State Developments At present, a number of states 
have enacted legislation that will lead to complete 
retail electric competition over the next several years. 
These states generally have required up-front rate 
reductions and the opportunity for all customer 
classes to choose an electricity provider in return for 
recovery of utility stranded costs, including the ability 
to securitize revenue streams associated with such 
stranded costs. 

Every state that has passed legislation has in­
cluded a mechanism for the recovery of some stranded 
Investment. However, states have varied on the meth­
odology to be applied In determining the level of 
stranded investment, with divestiture of generating 
assets being one such method. 

As discussed below, the three states in which 
Cinergy operates electric utilities are In various stages 
of addressing customer choice. None of these states 
has yet passed legislation, but policymakers and 
stakeholders continue to work to resolve the issues. 

Indiana Customer-choice legislation was Intro­
duced in the Indiana General Assembly in 1998 by a 
coalition of customer organizations and two investor-
owned utilities ("lOUs"), including Cinergy. After 
hearing and consideration by a Senate committee, the 
bill was defeated in the full Senate. 
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Legislation proposed by a group of large indus­
trial customers was introduced in January 1999. At 
present, Cinergy continues to work with lOUs In 
Indiana and other stakeholders to develop customer-
choice legislation that can be enacted into law in 
Indiana. The outcome of this effort is uncertain. 

Ohio Electric restructuring legislation was intro­
duced in the Ohio legislature during 1998. This 
legislation, "companion" electric restructuring bills 
(SB 237 and HB 732), proposed to afford choice to 
all retail electric customers in Ohio beginning Janu­
ary 1, 2000. Neither bill was passed during the 1998 
legislative session. 

During the third quarter of 1998, Ohio's lOUs, 
including CG&E, released a draft bill that sets forth 
the utilities' proposed approach to comprehensive 
electric restructuring in Ohio. Under the lOUs' propo­
sal, choice to all retail electric customers would be 
Introduced by January 1, 2001. Rates would be frozen 
during a transition period, a fixed charge for certain 
transition costs would continue after the freeze period 
for a set time, and customers would be provided a 
market-based "shopping credit" to stimulate the 
development of a competitive market. The proposal 
also included a restructuring of the tax laws with 
respect to electric utilities. In January 1999, a "place 
holder" bill was introduced In both the House and 
Senate. These bills set forth a legislative intent to 
develop comprehensive electric restructuring legisla­
tion in Ohio during 1999. Key policymakers in the 
state continue to meet with the 10Us and other 
stakeholders to see whether compromise legislation 
can be developed. It Is uncertain whether this effort 
will produce legislation in Ohio In 1999. 

Kentucky House Joint Resolution 95, which re­
quired the formation of an executive task force 
comprised of members from the Governor's office and 
the Kentucky General Assembly to further study 
electric restructuring, was passed by the Kentucky 
General Assembly and signed by the Governor In 
April 1998. Task force members will study electric 
restructuring in anticipation of the next legislative 
session, which occurs In January 2000. 

United Kingdom Transition to full competition in the 
United Kingdom's C^UK") electric utility industry 
began with the industry's privatization in 1991. As a 
result Qf the transition plan, larger users of electricity 
have been free to choose their supplier since as early 
as 1991. In September 1998, a phase-In of choice for 
all remaining customers commenced and is to be 
completed by March 1999. The power suppliers sell 
power Into a "poo l " from which Regional Electric 
Companies ("RECs") purchase power for their cus­
tomers through the supply segment of their business. 
Midlands Electricity pic ("Midlands") is one of twelve 

RECs in the UK. In November 1998, Midlands 
entered into an agreement to sell Its power supply 
business to one of the UK's primary power generation 
companies. The sale is contingent upon UK govern­
ment and regulatory approvals. Midlands' power sup­
ply business purchases, markets, and supplies 
electricity to 2.2 million customers in the UK. 

After the sale. Midlands will continue to own and 
operate its electric distribution business, which will 
remain regulated by the Office of Electricity Regula­
tion. Midlands' electric distribution business accounted 
for approximately 90% of its net income before 
interest and income taxes for the fiscal year ended 
March 1998. All the RECs, Including Midlands, are in 
the process of a distribution price review. This process 
occurs every five years and is scheduled to take effect 
April 1, 2000. The public must be notified six months 
prior to any price changes; therefore, prices must be 
set and announced by October 1, 1999. (See Note 10 
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
an additional discussion of Cinergy's investment in 
Midlands.) 

Other Matters 

Midwest ISO During 1998, the FERC approved 
the formation of a Midwest Independent System 
Operator ("Midwest ISO"). The Midwest ISO is the 
result of Cinergy's collaboration with other Midwest­
ern utility companies to form an Independent System 
Operator ("ISO") that will assume functional control 
of their combined transmission systems and facilitate 
a reliable, efficient market for electric power. The ISO 
will provide non-discriminatory open transmission ac­
cess consistent with FERC Order No. 888. The ISO 
will also be responsible for system reliability and 
administration of a regional transmission tariff, which 
will eliminate "pancaking" of transmission rates in the 
region. The Midwest ISO will be governed by a 
recently-elected, disinterested Board of Directors. 

In addition to the ISO concept, other utilities have 
proposed to transfer their transmission assets to a 
'*for profit" Independent regional transmission com­
pany ("Transco"). Although Cinergy is not opposed to 
the formation of Transcos in the long run, it believes 
that an ISO is a more efficient and effective interim 
measure to immediately address market power issues 
and improve system reliability. 

Currently, there are 10 utility members participat­
ing in the Midwest ISO. The Midwest ISO consists of 
45,000 miles of transmission lines and covers portions 
of 11 states, and includes over $6.5 billion of 
transmission investment, forming one of the largest 
ISOs in the country. The Midwest ISO plans on 
beginning operations in the year 2000. 

Repeal of the PUHCA PUHCA limits registered 
public utility holding companies such as Cinergy from 
competing for growth opportunities both domestically 
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and internationally. Under PUHCA, registered public 
utility holding companies are limited in the amount of 
foreign investments and in domestic investments in 
generation they can make. It also restricts business 
combinations through its requirement that the electric 
systems of combining entities be "integrated." 

Past efforts to repeal PUHCA have not been 
successful. In February 1999, a bill to repeal signifi­
cant parts of PUHCA—S. 313, was introduced in the 
US Senate. Recently, the bill was voted out of the 
Senate Banking Committee without markup, and now 
goes to the full Senate. While it is uncertain whether 
this bill will be enacted into law, Cinergy continues to 
support the repeal of this act either as part of 
comprehensive reform of the electric industry or as 
separate legislation. 

Substantial Accounting Implications H istorical ly, regu­
lated utilities have applied the provisions of Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, Account­
ing for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation 
("Statement 71"). The accounting afforded regulated 
utilities in Statement 71 is based on the fundamental 
premise that rates authorized by regulators allow 
recovery of a utility's costs. These principles have 
allowed the deferral of costs (i.e., regulatory assets) 
based on assurances of a regulator as to the future 
recoverability of the costs in rates charged to custom­
ers. Certain criteria must be met for the continued 
application of the provisions of Statement 71, includ­
ing regulated rates designed to recover the specific 
utility's costs. Failure to satisfy the criteria in 
Statement 71 would eliminate the basis for recogni­
tion of regulatory assets. 

Based on Cinergy's current regulatory orders and 
the regulatory environment in which it currently 
operates, the recognition of its regulatory assets as of 
December 31, 1998, is fully supported. However, in 
light of recent trends in customer-choice legislation, 
the potential for future losses resulting from discontin­
uance of Statement 71 does exist. Such potential 
losses, if any, cannot be determined until such time as 
a legislated plan has been approved by each state in 
which Cinergy operates a franchise territory. Cinergy 
intends to continue its pursuit of competitive strate­
gies which mitigate the potential impact of these 
issues on the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 

Gas UtHify Industry 

Customer Choice Choice of gas supplier or pilot 
customer-choice programs are operating in several 
states. CG&E currently participates In a gas cus­
tomer-choice program in Ohio. This program, which 
made customer choice available to all residential and 
small commercial customers in November 1997, was 
extended during 1998. Gas customers in approximately 
two-thirds of the state of Ohio are now eligible to 

participate in this voluntary program. Large indus­
trial, commercial, and educational institution custom­
ers already had the ability to select their own gas 
supplier. Cinergy Resources, Inc. ("CRI"), Cinergy's 
gas retail marketing subsidiary, is one of many entities 
competing for customer gas supply business in these 
programs. 

CG&E continues to provide gas transportation 
services for substantially all customers within its 
franchise territory without regard to the supplier of 
the gas commodity. CG&E receives a transportation 
charge from customers, which is based on its current 
regulated rates. 

Acquisition of ProEnergy In June 1998, Cinergy, 
through Cinergy Capital & Trading, Inc. ("CC&T"), 
acquired Producers Energy Marketing, LLC 
CTroEnergy") from Apache Corporation ("Apache") 
and Oryx Energy Company ("Oryx"). ProEnergy has 
exclusive marketing rights to North American gas 
production owned or controlled by Apache and Oryx, 
which represents approximately 1.1 billion cubic feet 
per day of dedicated natural gas supply. These 
supplies, combined with the active marketing of third-
party gas, are geographically diverse and are spread 
through the Southwest, Rocky Mountains, Gulf Coast, 
Gulf of Mexico, and Michigan. The acquisition was 
funded with cash and the issuance of 771,258 new 
shares of Cinergy common stock. 

SECURITIES RATINGS 

The ratings as of February 28, 1999, provided by the 
major credit rating agencies—Duff & Phelps Credit 
Rating Co. ("D&P"), Fitch IBCA ("Fitch"), Moody's 
Investors Service ("Moody's"), and Standard & 
Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P")—are included in the 
following table: 

D&P Fitch Moody's S&P 

Cinergy 
Corporate Credit 
Commercial Paper 

CG&E 
Secured Debt 
Senior Unsecured Debt 
Junior Unsecured Debt 
Preferred Stock 
Commercial Paper 

PSI 
Secured Debt 

Senior Unsecured Debt 
Junior Unsecured Debt 
Preferred Stocl< 
Commercial Paper 

ULH&P 
Secured Debt 
Unsecured Debt 

BBB+ 
D-2 

A-
BBB+ 
BBB 
BBB 
D-1-

A-
BBB+ 
BBB 
BBB 
D-1-

A-

BBB+ 
F-2 

A-
BBB+ 
BBB+ 
BBB+ 

F-1 

A 
A-

BBB+ 
BBB+ 

F-1 

Not rated 
INJot rated Not rated 

Baa2 
P-2 

A3 
Baal 
Baa2 
baal 
P-2 

A3 
Baal 
Baa2 
baal 
P-2 

A3 
Baal 

BBB+ 
A 2 

A-
BBB+ 
BBB+ 
BBB 

Not rated 

A-
BBB+ 
BBB+ 
BBB 

Wot rated 

A-
BBB+ 

These secun't/es ratings may be revised or withdrawn at any 
time, and each rating should be evaluated independently of any 
other rating. 
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RATE ORDERS AND OTHER REGULATORY 
MATTERS 

Indiana 

Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission ("lURC") 
Orders - PSFs Retail Rate Order and Demand-Side 
iVIanagement ("DSM") Order In September 1996, the 
lURC issued an order ("September 1996 Order") 
approving an overall average retail rate increase for 
PSI of 7.6% ($75.7 million annually). The order 
reflects a return on common equity of 11,0% and an 
overall rate of return on net original rate base of 
8 .21%. In settlement of a challenge by consumer 
groups to the September 1996 Order, the lURC 
approved a settlement agreement which reduced the 
original rate increase by $2.1 million In August 1997. 

In a separate order issued by the lURC in 
December 1996 ("December 1996 DSM Order"), PSI 
was granted permission to recover $35 million per 
year for the four years ending December 31, 2000, 
through a non-bypassable charge in PSI's retail rates 
for previously incurred DSM costs and associated 
carrying costs. Further, PSI Is authorized to spend up 
to $8 million annually on ongoing DSIVI programs 
through the year 1999 and to collect such amounts 
currently in retail rates. 

Coal Contract Buyout Costs In August 1996, PSI 
entered into a coal supply agreement with Eagle Coal 
Company ("Eagle") for the supply of approximately 
three million tons of coal per year. The agreement, 
which expires December 31 , 2000, provides for a 
buyout fee of $179 million (Including Interest) to be 
included in the price of coal to PSI over the term of 
the contract. This fee represents the costs to Eagle of 
the buyout of a previous coal supply agreement 
between PSI and Exxon Coal and Minerals Company. 
The buyout charge, excluding the portion applicable to 
joint owners, is being recovered through the wholesale 
and retail fuel adjustment clauses, with carrying costs 
on unrecovered amounts, through December 2002. 
(See Note 1(f) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.) 

Coal Gasification Contract Buyout Costs In Novem­
ber 1995, PSI and Destec Energy Inc. ("Destec") 
entered Into a 25-year contractual agreement for the 
provision of coal gasification services at PSI's Wabash 
River Generating Station. The agreement requires PSI 
to pay Destec a base monthly fee including certain 
monthly operating expenses. PSI received authoriza­
tion in the September 1996 Order for the Inclusion of 
these costs in retail rates. In addition, PSI received 

authorization to defer, for subsequent recovery in 
retail rates, the base monthly fees and expenses 
incurred prior to the effective date of the Septem­
ber 1996 Order. Over the next five years, the base 
monthly fees and expenses for the coal gasification 
service agreement are expected to total $212 million. 

In September 1998, PSI reached agreement with 
Dynegy Inc. (Dynegy Inc. purchased Destec in 
June 1997) to purchase the remainder of Its 25-year 
contract for coal gasification services for approxi­
mately $266 million. The proposed purchase, which is 
contingent upon regulatory approval satisfactory to 
PSI, could be completed in 1999. PSI is investigating 
its financing alternatives. The transaction, if approved 
as proposed, is not expected to have a material 
impact on PSI's earnings. 

Currently, natural gas prices have fallen to a level 
which causes the synthetic gas supply taken under the 
current gasification services agreement to be substan­
tially above market. If the buyout of the gasification 
services agreement is approved, the combustion tur­
bine will be fired with natural gas, or with synthetic 
gas if it can be produced at a cost competitive with 
natural gas. In nominal dollars, it Is estimated that 
the total savings, primarily as a result of the purchase, 
would be approximately $270 million over the life of 
the contract. 

Ohio 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio ("PUCO") Order -
CG&E's Gas Rate Order In December 1996, the 
PUCO issued an order ("December 1996 Order") 
approving an overall average increase in gas revenues 
for CG&E of 2.5% ($9.3 million annually). The 
PUCO established an overall rate of return of 9.7%, 
including a return on common equity of 12.0%. The 
PUCO disallowed certain of CG&E's requests, includ­
ing the requested working capital allowance, recovery 
of certain capitalized information systems development 
costs, and certain merger-related costs. These disal­
lowances resulted in a pretax charge to earnings 
during the fourth quarter of 1996 of $20 million 
($15 million net of taxes or $.10 per share basic, 
$.09 per share diluted). CG&E's request for a 
rehearing on the disallowed information systems costs 
and other aspects of the order was denied. 

In April 1997, CG&E filed a notice of appeal 
with the Supreme Court of Ohio challenging the 
disallowance of information systems costs and the 
imputation of certain revenues. Cinergy and CG&E 
cannot predict what action the Supreme Court of Ohio 
may take with respect to this appeal. 
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Kentucky 

In exchange for the Kentucky Public Service Commis­
sion's ( " K P S C " ) support of the merger, in May 1994, 
ULH&P accepted the KPSC's request for an electric 
rate moratorium commencing after ULH&P's next 
retail rate case (which has not yet been filed) and 
extending to January 1, 2000. In addition, the KPSC 
has authorized concurrent recovery of costs related to 
various DSM programs of ULH&R 

ULH&P has deferred Its portion of Merger Costs 
incurred through December 31 , 1996, for future 
recovery in customer rates. 

SEC Order Authoming the Retention qfCas Operations 

In its 1994 order approving the merger, the SEC 
reserved judgment over Cinergy's ownership of 
CG&E's gas operations for three years, at the end of 
which period Cinergy would be required to address the 
matter. In November 1998, the SEC issued an order 
unconditionally approving the retention of CG&E's gas 
businesses. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

Ckan Air Act Amendments of 1990 C'CAAA") 

The 1990 revisions to the Clean Air Act require 
reductions in both sulfur dioxide ("SOs'O and nitrogen 
oxide ( "NO/0 emissions from utility sources. Reduc­
tions of these emissions are to be accomplished In two 
phases. Compliance under Phase I was required by 
January 1, 1995, and Phase I I compliance is required 
by January 1, 2000. To achieve the SO2 reduction 
objectives of the CAAA, emission allowances have 
been allocated by the US Environmental Protection 
Agency ("EPA") to affected sources (e.g., Cinergy's 
electric generating units operated by the ECBU). Each 
allowance permits one ton of SO2 emissions. The 
CAAA allows compliance to be achieved on a national 
level, which provides companies the option to achieve 
this compliance by reducing emissions and/or purchas­
ing emission allowances. 

All required modifications to Cinergy's generating 
units to implement the Phase I compliance plans were 
completed prior to January 1, 1995. To comply with 
Phase I I SO2 emission requirements, Cinergy's current 
strategy includes a combination of switching to lower-
sulfur coal blends and utilizing an emission allowance 
banking strategy to the extent a viable emission 
allowance market exists. This cost-effective strategy 
will allow for meeting the Phase I I SO2 reduction 
requirements while maintaining optimal flexibility to 
meet changes in output due to increased customer 
choice, as well as potentially significant future envi­
ronmental requirements. To meet NOj, reductions 

required by Phase I I , additional burner modifications 
are planned on certain affected units in addition to 
using a system-wide NO^ emission averaging strategy. 

Capital expenditures are forecast to be less than 
$16 million to comply with the Phase I I N0>. 
reductions, substantially all of which are expected to 
be incurred during 1999. These expenditures are 
included in the amounts provided in the "Capital 
Requirements" section herein. 

Ozone Transport Rulemaking 

In June 1997, the 37-state collaborative known as the 
Ozone Transport Assessment Group made a wide 
range of recommendations to the EPA to address the 
impact of ozone transport on serious nonattainment 
areas in the Northeast, Midwest, and South. In late 
1997, in response to this recommendation, the EPA 
published its proposed call for revisions to State 
Implementation Plans ("SIPs") for statewide reduc­
tions in N0>. emissions. In October 1998, the EPA 
finalized its Ozone Transport Rule ("NO, SIP Call"). 
It applies to 22 states in the eastern half of the US, 
including the three states in which the Cinergy electric 
utilities operate, and also proposes a model NO^ 
trading program. This rule recommends that states 
reduce NÔ^ emissions from primarily industrial and 
utility sources to a certain limit by May 2003. The 
EPA gave the affected states until September 30, 
1999, to incorporate utility NO,, reductions with a 
trading program into their SIPs. If the states fail to 
revise their SIPs accordingly, the EPA has proposed 
to implement a federal plan to accomplish NOx 
reductions by May 2003. 

Ohio, Indiana, a number of other states, and 
various industry groups, including some of which 
Cinergy is a member, filed legal challenges to the NO^ 
SIP Call in late 1998. Ohio and Indiana have also 
provided preliminary indications that they will seek 
fewer NO, reductions from the utility sector in their 
implementing regulations than the EPA has budgeted 
in its rulemaking. The state implementing regulations 
will need the EPA's approval. The current estimate of 
capital expenditures required for compliance with the 
EPA limits In the new NO^ SIP Call is between 
$500 million and $700 million (in 1998 dollars) 
between now and 2003. This estimate Is significantly 
dependent on several factors, including the final 
determination regarding both the timing and stringency 
of the final required NO^ reductions, the output of 
Cinergy's generating units, the availability of adequate 
supplies of resources to construct the necessary 
control equipment, and the extent to which a NO^ 
allowance trading market develops, if any. 
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Ambient Air Standards and Regional Haze 

During 1997, the EPA revised the National Ambient 
Air Quality Standards for ozone and fine particulate 
matter and proposed rules for regional haze. The EPA 
is scheduled to finalize new regional haze rules by the 
summer of 1999 and Congress, as part of the funding 
bill for the Surface Transportation Act, combined the 
schedules for fine particulates and regional haze 
implementation. These new rules increase the pressure 
for additional NÔ  and SO^ emissions reductions. 
Depending on the ultimate outcome of the NO, SIP 
Call, additional NO, reductions may be required from 
states by 2007 to address the new eight-hour ozone 
standard. 

The EPA estimates it will take up to five years to 
collect sufficient ambient air monitoring data to 
determine nonattainment areas. The states will then 
determine the sources of these particulates and 
determine a regional emission reduction plan, The 
ultimate effect of the new standard could be require­
ments for newer and cleaner technologies and addi­
tional controls on conventional particulates and/or 
reductions in SO2 and NOx emissions from utility 
sources. At this time, the exact amount and timing of 
required reductions cannot be predicted. 

Globed Climate Change 

In December 1997, delegates to the United Nations' 
climate summit in Japan adopted a landmark environ­
mental treaty ("Kyoto Protocol") to deal with global 
warming. The Kyoto Protocol establishes legally bind­
ing greenhouse gas emission targets for developed 
nations. On November 12, 1998, the US signed the 
Kyoto Protocol. However, for the Kyoto Protocol to 
enter into force within the US it will have to be 
ratified by a two-thirds vote of the US Senate. The 
Kyoto Protocol, In its present form. Is unlikely to be 
ratified by the US Senate since it does not contain 
provisions requiring participation of developing 
countries. 

Significant uncertainty exists concerning both the 
science of climate change and the Clinton Administra­
tion's environmental and energy policies and how it 
Intends to' reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Cinergy's 
plan for managing the potential risk and uncertainty 
of climate change includes: (1) implementing 
cost-effective greenhouse gas emission reduction and 
offsetting activities; (2) encouraging the use of alter­
native fuels for transportation vehicles (a major 
source of greenhouse gases); (3) funding research of 
more efficient and alternative electric generating 
technologies; (4) funding research to better under­
stand the causes and consequences of climate change; 
and (5) encouraging a global discussion of the issues 
and how best to manage them. The ECBU believes 

that voluntary programs, such as the US Department 
of Energy ("DOE") Climate Challenge Program, 
which Cinergy joined In 1995, are the most 
cost-effective means to limit greenhouse gas emissions. 

Air Toxics 

The air toxics provisions of the CAAA exempted fossil-
fueled steam utility plants from mandatory reduction 
of air toxics until the EPA completed a study. The 
final report, issued in February 1998, confirmed 
utility air toxic emissions pose little risk to public 
health. It stated mercury is the pollutant with the 
greatest potential threat, while others require further 
study. A Mercury Study Report, issued in Decem­
ber 1997, stated that mercury is not a risk to the 
average American and expressed uncertainty whether 
reductions In current domestic sources would reduce 
human mercury exposure. US utilities are a large 
domestic source, but they are negligible compared to 
global mercury emissions. The EPA was unable to 
show a feasible mercury control technology for 
coal-fired utilities. In November 1998, the EPA 
finalized its Mercury Information Collection Request 
("ICR"). Pursuant to the ICR, all generating units 
must provide detailed information about coal use and 
mercury content. The EPA will also select about 100 
generating units for one-time stack sampling. At that 
time, the EPA also announced that it would make its 
regulatory determination on the need for additional 
regulation by the fourth quarter of 2000. It will 
utilize the new information from the ICR, a new study 
by the National Academy of Sciences, and other 
additional information. If more air toxics regulations 
are issued, the compliance cost could be significant. 
The outcome or effects of the EPA's determination 
cannot currently be predicted. 

Other 

As more fully discussed in Note I2(b)(li) of the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements, PSI has re­
ceived claims from Indiana Gas Company, Inc. 
("IGC") and Northern Indiana Public Service Com­
pany ("NIPSCO") that PSI is a Potentially Responsi­
ble Party under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CER-
CLA") with respect to certain manufactured gas plant 
("MGP") sites, and therefore is responsible for the 
costs of investigating and remediating these sites. 

In November 1998, NIPSCO, IGC, and PSI 
entered into an agreement which settled the allocation 
of CERCLA liability for past and future costs among 
the three companies, at seven MGP sites in Indiana. 
Similar agreements were reached between IGC and 
PSI which allocate CERCLA liability at 14 MGP sites 
with which NIPSCO had no involvement. These 
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agreements conclude all CERCLA and similar claims 
between the three companies relative to MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the agreements, the parties are continuing 
to investigate and remediate the sites as appropriate. 
In the case of some sites, the parties have applied to 
the Indiana Department of Environmental Manage­
ment for inclusion of such sites in the Indiana 
Voluntary Remediation Program. 

Reserves recorded, based on information currently 
available, are not material to Cinergy's financial 
condition or results of operations. However, as further 
investigation and remediation activities are undertaken 
at these sites, the potential liability for MGP sites 
could be materia! to Cinergy's financial condition or 
results of operations. 

Refer to Notes 12(b) and (c) of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more detailed 
discussion of the status of certain environmental 
issues. 

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

The regulated businesses of Cinergy forecast construc­
tion expenditures for 1999 to be approximately 
$386 million and over the next five years (1999-
2003) to be approximately $1.7 billion. The timing 
and amount of investments by Cinergy's non-regulated 
businesses is dependent upon the development and 
favorable evaluation of opportunities. 

The above forecast excludes the estimated expend­
itures necessary to comply with the EPA's proposed 
stricter NÔ  emission control standards associated 
with the 22-state NO, SIP Call. Cinergy estimates 
that the capital costs for additional NO, controls at 
its facilities could range between $500 million and 
$700 million (in 1998 dollars) over the next five 
years. The above forecast also excludes any capital 
expenditures that may be required for the construction 
of new generating facilities. 

In order to meet the power supply demands of its 
customers, the ECBU must constantly assess the 
adequacy of its supply portfolio and determine which 
supply alternatives to pursue to most effectively meet 
demands, hedge risks, and satisfy regulatory require­
ments. Supply alternatives include investments in 
existing facilities, investments in new facilities, and/or 
acquisitions of power supply from the market. In 
addition, Cinergy's present demand requirements could 
be impacted If customer-choice legislation is passed in 
any of the states in which Cinergy has a regulated 
franchise. (All forecasted amounts^ excluding NO^ 
compliance amounts, are in nominal dollars and 

reflect assumptions as to the economy, capital mar­
kets, construction programs, legislative and regulatory 
actions, frequency and timing of rate increases, and 
other related factors, all or any of which may change 
significantly.) 

Cinergy's mission is to reach the top five in our 
industry within three years on five key dimensions-
market capitalization, number of customers, electric 
and gas commodity trading, international presence, 
and productivity. Cinergy has entered into various 
grovrth initiatives in its pursuit of these goals. These 
initiatives include, among others, energy marketing 
and trading, retail energy products and services, and 
additional international investment. In addition, 
Cinergy is working toward maximizing the value of its 
existing operations and assets and continues to explore 
the potential for mergers, acquisitions, and strategic 
alliances. 

Certain legal and regulatory requirements, includ­
ing PUHCA, limit Cinergy's ability to invest in growth 
initiatives. PUHCA restricts the amount which can be 
invested outside the regulated utility, including foreign 
utility company ("FUCO") investments and invest­
ments in domestic power plants that qualify as 
"qualifying facilities" ("QFs") under the Public Utility 
Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 or are certified as 
EWGs by the FERC. Under these restrictions, Cinergy 
may invest or commit to invest (i) an amount equal to 
100% of consolidated retained earnings (defined 
under applicable SEC regulations as the average of 
Cinergy's consolidated retained earnings for the four 
most recent quarterly periods) in EWGs and FUCOs 
(equal to $949 million at December 31, 1998), and 
(ii) an amount equal to 15% of consolidated capitali­
zation ($942 million at December 31, 1998) in QFs 
and other "energy-related" nonutllity investments (as 
defined in the applicable SEC regulation). 

At December 31, 1998, under these SEC restric­
tions, Cinergy had available capacity for additional 
EWG/FUCO investments of $332 million and available 
capacity for additional QFs and "energy-related" 
nonutllity Investments of $524 million. 

OTHER COMMITMENTS 

Securities Redemptions 

Mandatory redemptions of long-term debt total 
$410 million during the period 1999 through 2003. 

The maintenance and replacement fund provisions 
contained in PSI's first mortgage bond indenture 
require cash payments, bond retirements, or pledges 
of unfunded property additions each year based on an 
amount related to PSI's net revenues. Cinergy will 
continue to evaluate opportunities for the refinancing 
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of outstanding securities beyond mandatory redemp­
tion requirements. 

Guarantees 

At December 31 , 1998, Cinergy had Issued $286 mil­
lion In guarantees primarily related to the energy 
marketing and trading activities of its subsidiaries and 
affiliates. In addition, Cinergy had guaranteed 
$258 million of the debt securities of its subsidiaries 
and affiliates. 

Tear 2000 

The Year 2000 issue generally exists because many 
computer systems and applications, including those 
embedded in equipment and facilities, use two digit 
rather than four digit date fields to designate an 
applicable year. As a result, the systems and applica­
tions may not properly recognize dates including and 
beyond the year 2000 or accurately process data in 
which such dates are included, potentially causing 
data miscalculations and Inaccuracies or operational 
malfunctions and failures, which could materially 
affect a buslness's financial condition, results of 
operations, and cash flows. 

Cinergy has established a centrally-managed, com­
pany-wide initiative, known as the Cinergy Year 2000 
Readiness Program, to Identify, evaluate, and address 
Year 2000 issues. The Cinergy Year 2000 Readiness 
Program, which began in the fourth quarter of 1996, 
Is generally focused on three elements that are 
integral to this initiative: (1) business continuity; 
(2) risk management; and (3) regulatory compliance. 
Business continuity includes providing reliable electric 
and gas supply and service in a safe and cost-effective 
manner. This element encompasses mission-critical 
generation, transmission, and distribution systems and 
related Infrastructure, as well as operational and 
financial Information technology ( " IT" ) systems and 
applications, end-user computing resources, and build­
ing systems (such as security, elevator, and heating 
and cooling systems). Risk management includes a 
review of the Year 2000 readiness efforts of Cinergy's 
critical suppliers, key customers and other principal 
business partners, and, as appropriate, the develop­
ment of joint business support, contingency plans, and 
the inclusion of Year 2000 concerns as a regular part 
of the due diligence process In any new business 
venture. Regulatory compliance includes communica­
tions with regulatory agencies, other utilities, and 
various industry groups. While this initiative Is broad 
in scope, it has been structured to identify and 
prioritize efforts for mission-critical electric and gas 
systems and services and key business partners. 

Under the Cinergy Year 2000 Readiness Program, 
Cinergy has established a target date of June 30, 

1999, for the remediation and testing of its mission-
critical generation, transmission, and distribution sys­
tems (gas and electric). An innovative remediation and 
testing effort which Cinergy has initiated Involves 
operating several electric-generating units with post 
Year 2000 dates. Cinergy's experience has been that 
those units have continued to operate without any 
material adverse result relating to a Year 2000 issue. 
Cinergy's progress to date ranges from approximately 
90% regarding IT systems to approximately 75% 
regarding assessment of critical suppliers. 

Cinergy has also reviewed its existing contingency 
and business continuity plans and modified them in 
light of the Year 2000 issue. Contingency planning to 
maintain and restore service in the event of natural 
and other disasters (including software and hardware-
related problems) has been part of Cinergy's standard 
operation for many years, and Cinergy is working to 
leverage this experience in the review of existing plans 
to address Year 2000-related challenges. These re­
views have assessed the potential for business disrup­
tion in various scenarios, including the most 
reasonably likely worst-case scenario, and to provide 
for key operational back-up, recovery, and restoration 
alternatives. 

Cinergy cannot guarantee that third parties on 
whom it depends for essential goods and services 
(those where the interruption of the supply of such 
goods and services could lead to issues involving the 
safety of employees, customers, or the public, the 
continued reliable delivery of gas and/or electricity, 
and the ability to comply with applicable laws or 
regulations) will convert their mission-critical systems 
and processes in a timely manner. Failure or delay by 
any of these third parties could significantly disrupt 
business. However, to address this issue, Cinergy has 
established a supplier compliance program, and is 
working with its critical suppliers In an effort to 
minimize such risks. 

In addition, Cinergy is coordinating its findings 
and other issues with other utilities and various 
industry groups via the Electric Power Research 
Institute Year 2000 Embedded Systems Project and 
the Year 2000 Readiness Assessment Program of the 
North American Electric Reliability Council 
("NERC"), acting at the request of the DOE. The 
DOE has asked NERC to report on the integrity of the 
transmission system for North America and to coordi­
nate and assess the preparation of the electric systems 
in North America for the Year 2000. IMERC submitted 
its initial quarterly status report and coordination plan 
to the DOE in September 1998, and a second 
quarterly status report for the fourth quarter of 1998 
was submitted on January 11, 1999. 

Cinergy currently estimates that the total cost of 
assessment, remediation, testing, and upgrading its 
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systems as a result of the Year 2000 effort is 
approximately $13 million. Approximately $11 million 
in expenses have been incurred through December 31, 
1998, for external labor, hardware and software 
upgrades, and for Cinergy employees who are dedi­
cated full-time to the Cinergy Year 2000 Readiness 
Program. The timing of these expenses may vary and 
is not necessarily indicative of readiness efforts or 
progress to date. Cinergy anticipates that a portion of 
its Year 2000 expenses will not be incremental costs, 
but rather, will represent the redeployment of existing 
IT resources. Since its formation, Cinergy has in­
curred, and will continue to Incur, significant capital 
improvement costs related to planned system upgrades 
or replacements required In the normal course of 
business. These costs have not been accelerated as a 
result of the Year 2000 issue. 

The above information is based on Cinergy's 
current best estimates, which were derived using 
numerous assumptions of future events, including the 
availability and future costs of certain technological 
and other resources, third-party modification actions, 
and other factors. Given the complexity of these issues 
and possible unidentified risks, actual results may vary 
materially from those anticipated and discussed above. 
Specific factors that might cause such differences 
include, among others, the ability to locate and 
correct all affected computer code, the timing and 
success of remedial efforts of third-party suppliers, 
and similar uncertainties. 

The above information is a Year 2000 Readiness 
Disclosure pursuant to the Federal Year 2000 Infor­
mation and Readiness Disclosure Act. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The regulated businesses of Cinergy forecast that their 
need for external funds during the 1999 through 2003 
period will primarily be for the refinancing of existing 
securities. It is currently expected that funds required 
to pursue the various non-regulated growth initiatives 
underway will be obtained primarily through short-
term borrowing and the issuance of long-term debt 
and/or equity securities. (This forecast reflects nomi­
nal dollars and assumptions as to the economy, capital 
markets, construction programs, legislative and regu­
latory actions, frequency and timing of rate increases, 
and other related factors, all or any of which may 
change significantly.) 

INTERNAL FUNDS 

Currently, a substantial portion of Cinergy's revenues 
and corresponding cash flows are derived from 
cost-of-servlce regulated operations. Cinergy believes it 

is likely that the generation component of the electric 
utility industry will ultimately be deregulated. How­
ever, the timing and nature of the deregulation and 
restructuring of the industry Is uncertain. In the 
interim, revenues provided by cost-of-service regulated 
operations are anticipated to continue as the primary 
source of funds for Cinergy. As a result of its low-cost 
position and market strategy, over the long term, 
Cinergy believes it will be successful in a more 
competitive environment. However, as the industry 
becomes more competitive, future cash flows from 
operations could be subject to a higher degree of 
volatility than under the present regulatory structure. 

COMMON STOCK 

During 1998, 1997, and 1996, Cinergy issued approx­
imately 194,000; 66,000; and 15,000 new shares, 
respectively, of common stock pursuant to various 
stock-based employee plans. In addition, Cinergy 
purchased approximately 861,000 and 1.7 million 
shares on the open market to satisfy the majority of 
its 1998 and 1997 obligations, respectively, under 
these plans. Cinergy currently plans to continue using 
market purchases of common stock to satisfy the 
majority of its obligations under these plans; however, 
given its future capital requirements, it will continue 
to re-evaluate this decision. In the event Cinergy 
begins issuing shares of common stock to satisfy these 
obligations, it has authority under PUHCA to issue 
and sell through December 31, 2000, up to approxi­
mately 22 million additional shares of Cinergy com­
mon stock. 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Cinergy has authority under PUHCA to issue and sell, 
• through December 31, 2002, short-term notes, 
long-term unsecured debentures, and commercial pa­
per in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$2 billion. The entire amount may be outstanding as 
short-term debt; however, long-term unsecured deben­
tures outstanding may not exceed $400 million at any 
time. In connection with this authority, Cinergy has 
established committed and uncommitted lines of 
credit, of which $305 million remained unused and 
available at December 31, 1998. 

Also at year-end. Global Resources had $100 mil­
lion available under its revolving credit facility. 

As of December 31, 1998, Cinergy's utility 
subsidiaries had regulatory authority to borrow up to 
$853 million. Pursuant to this authority, committed 
and uncommitted lines of credit have been established 
for CG&E and PSI of which, $310 million and 
$249 million, respectively, remained unused and avail­
able at December 31, 1998. 
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i For a detailed discussion of Cinergy's short-term 
indebtedness, refer to Note 5 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

LONG-TERM OEBT 

Under the authority mentioned above, Cinergy had 
long-term debt authorization of $400 million, of 
which $200 million was Issued and outstanding at 
December 31 , 1998. CG&E has filed an application 
with the PUCO requesting authorization to issue up to 
$200 million of additional long-term debt. As of 
December 31, 1998, PSI and ULH&P had state 
regulatory authority for additional long-term debt 
issuance of $350 million and $10 million, respectively. 
Regulatory approval to issue additional amounts of 
securities will be requested as needed. 

SALE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

For a detailed discussion of the sale of accounts 
receivable, refer to Note 6 of the Notes to Consoli­
dated Financial Statements. 

MARKET RISK SENSITIVE 
INSTRUMENTS AND POSITIONS 

ENERGY COMMODITIES SENSITIVITY 

The transactions associated with the energy marketing 
and trading activities give rise to various risks, 
including market risk. Market risk represents the 
potential risk of loss from changes in the market value 
of a particular commitment arising from adverse 
changes in market rates and prices. These operations 
subject Cinergy to the risks and volatilities associated 
with the energy commodities (primarily electricity and 
natural gas) which it markets and trades. The 
wholesale energy marketing and trading business 
continues to be very competitive. As the ECBU 
continues to develop and expand its energy marketing 
and trading business, its exposure to movements in the 
price of electricity and other energy commodities will 
become greater. As a result, Cinergy is likely to be 
subject to future earnings volatility. 

The energy marketing and trading activities of the 
ECBU principally consist of CG&E's and PSI's power 
marketing and trading operation which markets and 
trades over-the-counter contracts for the purchase and 
sale of electricity primarily in the Midwest region of 
the US, where owned generation is located. These 
activities are conducted by Services on behalf of 
CG&E and PSI. The power marketing and trading 
operation consists of both physical and trading activi­
ties. Transactions are designated as physical when 

there is intent and ability to physically deliver the 
power from company-owned generation. All other 
transactions are considered trading transactions. Sub­
stantially all of the contracts in both the physical and 
trading portfolios commit Cinergy, CG&E, and/or PSI 
to purchase or sell electricity at fixed prices in the 
future (i.e., fixed-price forward purchase and sales 
contracts, full requirements contracts). The ECBU 
a/so markets and trades over-the-counter option con­
tracts. Substantially all of the contracts in the 
physical portfolio require settlement by physical deliv­
ery of electricity. Contracts within the trading portfolio 
generally require settlement by physical delivery or are 
netted out in accordance with industry trading stan­
dards. The use of these types of physical commodity 
instruments is designed to allow the ECBU to manage 
and hedge contractual commitments, reduce exposure 
relative to the volatility of cash market prices, and 
take advantage of selected arbitrage opportunities. 

The ECBU structures and modifies its net position 
to capture expected changes in future demand, sea­
sonal market pricing characteristics, overall market 
sentiment, and price relationships between different 
time periods and trading regions. Therefore, at times, 
a net open position is created or allowed to continue 
when it Is believed future changes in prices and 
market conditions will make the positions profitable. 
Position imbalances may also occur because of the 
basic lack of liquidity in the wholesale power market. 
To the extent net open positions exist, there is the risk 
that fluctuating market prices of electric power may 
potentially impact Cinergy's financial condition or 
results of operations adversely if prices do not move in 
the manner or direction expected. 

The ECBU measures the risk inherent In the 
trading portfolio utilizing value-at-risk analysis and 
other methodologies, which utilize forward price 
curves in electric power markets to quantify estimates 
of the magnitude and probability of potential future 
losses related to open contract positions. Predomi­
nantly all of the contracts In the physical portfolio 
require physical delivery of electricity and generally do 
not allow for net cash settlement. Therefore, these 
contracts are not included in the value-at-risk analy­
sis. The value-at-risk expresses the potential loss In 
fair value of the trading portfolio over a particular 
period of time, with a specified likelihood of occur­
rence, due to an adverse market movement. The 
value-at-risk is reported as a percentage of operating 
income, based on a 95% confidence interval, utilizing 
one-day holding periods. On a one day basis as of 
December 31, 1998, the value-at-risk for the power 
trading activities was less than 1 % of Cinergy's 1998 
Consolidated Operating Income. The average 
value-at-risk, on a one-day basis at the end of each 
quarter in 1998, for the power trading portfolio was 
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less than 2% of Cinergy's 1998 Consolidated Operat­
ing Income. The daily value-at-risk for the power 
trading portfolio as of December 31 , 1997, was also 
less than 2% of Cinergy's 1998 Consolidated Operat­
ing Income. The value-at-risk model uses the variance-
covariance statistical modeling technique and histori­
cal volatilities and correlations over the past 200-day 
period. The estimated market prices used to value 
these transactions for value-at-risk purposes reflect 
the use of established pricing models and various 
factors including quotations from exchanges and 
over-the-counter markets, price volatility factors, the 
time value of money, and location differentials. 

The ECBU, through Cinergy's acquisitions of 
ProEnergy and Greenwich Energy Partners, In 1998 
and 1997/ respectively, actively markets physical 
natural gas and actively trades derivative commodity 
instruments, customarily settled in cash, including 
futures, forwards, swaps, and options. The ESBU, 
through CRI, utilizes derivative commodity instru­
ments, customarily settled in cash, primarily to hedge 
purchases and sales of natural gas. The aggregated 
value-at-risk amounts associated with these trading 
and hedging activities, utilizing 95% confidence inter­
vals and one-day holding periods, were less than 
$1 million as of December 31 , 1998 and 1997. The 
market risk exposures of these trading activities is not 
considered significant to Cinergy's financial condition 
or results of operations. 

Credit risk represents the risk of loss which would 
occur as a result of nonperformance by counterparties 
pursuant to the terms of their contractual obligations 
with the Company. Concentrations of credit risk relate 
to significant customers or counterparties, or groups of 
customers or counterparties, possessing similar eco­
nomic or industry characteristics that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
affected by changes in economic or other conditions. 

Concentration of credit risk with respect to the 
ESBU's trade accounts receivable from electric and 
gas retail customers is limited due to the large 
number of customers and diversified customer base of 
residential, commercial, and industrial customers. 
Contracts within the physical portfolio of the ECBU's 
power marketing and trading operations are primarily 
with traditional electric cooperatives and municipali­
ties and other lOUs. 

Contracts within the trading portfolio of the power 
marketing and trading operations are primarily with 
power marketers and other lOUs. As of December 31 , 
1998, approximately 73% of the activity within the 
trading portfolio represents commitments with 10 
counterparties. The majority of these contracts are for 
terms of one year or less. As a result of the extreme 
volatility experienced in the Midwest power markets 
during 1998, several new entrants into the market 

began experiencing financial difficulties and failed to 
perform their contractual obligations. As a result, the 
bad debt provisions of approximately $13 million with 
respect to settled transactions were recorded during 
the year. Counterparty credit exposure within the 
power trading portfolio is routinely factored into the 
mark-to-market valuation. At December 31 , 1998, 
credit exposure within the power trading portfolio Is 
not believed to be significant. Prior to 1998, credit 
exposure due to nonperformance by counterparties was 
not significant. As the competitive electric power 
market continues to develop, counterparties will in­
creasingly include new market entrants, such as other 
power marketers, brokers, and commodity traders. 
This increased level of new market entrants, as well as 
competitive pressures on existing market participants, 
could increase the ECBU's exposure to credit risk 
with respect to its power marketing and trading 
operation. As of December 31, 1998, approximately 
37% of the activity within the ECBU's physical gas 
marketing and trading portfolio represents commit­
ments with 10 counterparties. Credit risk losses 
related to the ECBU's gas and other commodity 
physical and trading operations have not been signifi­
cant. Based on the types of counterparties and 
customers with which transactions are executed, credit 
exposure within the gas and other commodity trading 
portfolios at December 31, 1998, is not believed to be 
significant. 

Cinergy has established a risk management func­
tion and has implemented active risk management 
policies and procedures to manage and minimize 
corporate and business unit exposure to price risks 
and associated volatilities, other market risks, and 
credit risk. Cinergy maintains credit policies with 
regard to its counterparties In order to manage and 
minimize its exposure to credit risk. These policies 
include requiring parent company guarantees and 
various forms of collateral under certain circum­
stances and the use of mutual netting/closeout agree­
ments. Cinergy manages, on a portfolio basis, the 
market risks inherent In its energy marketing and 
trading transactions subject to parameters established 
by Cinergy's Risk Policy Committee. Market and 
credit risks are monitored by the risk management 
and credit function, which operates separately from 
the business units which originate or actively manage 
the market and credit risk exposures, to ensure 
compliance with Cinergy's stated risk management 
policies and procedures. These policies and procedures 
are periodically reviewed and monitored to ensure 
their responsiveness to changing market and business 
conditions. In addition, efforts are ongoing to develop 
systems to improve the timeliness and quality of 
market and credit risk information. 
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i EXCHANGE RATE SENSITIVITY 

Cinergy has exposure to fluctuations in the US dollar/ 
UK pound sterling exchange rate through its invest­
ment In Midlands. Cinergy used dollar denominated 
variable Interest rate debt to fund this investment, and 
has hedged the exchange rate exposure related to this 
transaction through a currency swap. Under the swap, 
Cinergy exchanged $500 million for 330 million 
pounds sterling. When the swap terminates in the year 
2002, these amounts will be re-exchanged; that is, 
Cinergy will be repaid $500 million and will be 
obligated to repay to the counterparty 330 million 
pounds sterling. To fund this repayment, Cinergy could 
buy 330 million pounds sterling in the foreign ex­
change market at the prevailing spot rate or enter into 
a new currency swap. 

The purpose of this swap Is to hedge the value of 
Cinergy's investment In Midlands against changes in 
the dollar/pound sterling exchange rate. When the 
pound sterling weakens relative to the dollar^ the 
dollar value of Cinergy's Investment in Midlands as 
shown on its books declines; however, the value of the 
swap Increases, offsetting the decline in the invest­
ment. The reverse is true when the pound sterling 
appreciates relative to the dollar. The translation gains 
and losses related to the principal exchange on the 
swap and on Cinergy's original investment in Midlands 
are recorded in "Accumulated other comprehensive 
loss", which Is reported as a separate component of 
common stock equity in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

In connection with this swap, Cinergy must pay 
semi-annual interest on Its pound sterling obligation 
and will receive semi-annual interest on the dollar 
notional amount. At December 31 , 1998, the esti­
mated fair value of this swap was $(59) million. This 
was partially offset by a $46 million currency 

translation gain to date on Cinergy's Investment in 
Midlands. 

Cinergy also has exposure to fluctuations in the 
US dollar/Czech koruna exchange rate through Its 
investments in the Czech Republic. Cinergy has hedged 
the exchange rate exposure related to certain of its 
Czech koruna ("CZK") denominated investments 
through foreign exchange forward contracts. The 
contracts require Cinergy to exchange 1,447 million 
Czech korunas for $40 million. When the Czech 
koruna strengthens relative to the dollar, the dollar 
value of Cinergy's investment increases; however, the 
value of the foreign exchange forward contracts 
decreases, offsetting the increase In the investment. 
The reverse Is true when the Czech koruna declines 
relative to the dollar. Translation losses related to the 
contracts are recorded in "Accumulated other compre­
hensive loss", which is reported as a separate 
component of common stock equity in the Consoli­
dated Financial Statements. At December 31 , 1998, 
the estimated aggregate fair value of these foreign 
exchange forward contracts was $(7) million. 

Cinergy has Investments in various other countries 
where the net investments are not hedged. The 
Company does have exposure to fluctuations in ex­
change rates between the US dollar and the currencies 
of these countries. At December 31 , 1998, Cinergy 
does not believe it has a material exposure to the 
currency risk attributable to these investments. 

The following table summarizes the details of the 
swap and the foreign exchange forward contracts. 
(For presentation purposes, the pound sterling pay­
ment obligation has been converted to US dollars 
using the dollar/pound sterling spot exchange rate at 
December 31 , 1998, of 1.66000. The interest rates 
are based on the six-month LIBOR implied forward 
rates at December 31 , 199.8.) 

C-14 

AppemHx C: Cinergy Corp. 1998 Financial R^or t 



REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

C$US Equivalent in millions) 1999 2000 

Expected IVIatLirity Date 

2001 2002 2003 Thereafter Total 

Currency Swap 

Receive pnncipal C$US) 
Average interest receive rate (variable) 

Pay principal (£UK) 
Average interest pay rate (partially variable, 
partially fixed) 

Foreign Exchange ForMard Contracts 

Receive $US/Pay CZK 

Average contractual exchange rate CCZI</$lJS) 

$ -

$ 40 

36.2 

$ - $500 

- % 5.3% 

$ - $548 

$-
-% 

-% % 6.0% -% 

$ 500 

5.3% 

$ 548 

6.0% 

$ 40 
36.2 

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY 

Cinergy's net exposure to changes in interest rates 
primarily consists of short-term debt instruments with 
floating interest rates that are benchmarked to US 
short-term money market indices. At December 31, 
1998, this included CI) short-term bank loans and 
commercial paper totaling $637 million, 
(ii) $267 million of pollution control related debt 
which is classified as ^̂ Notes payable and other 
short-term obligations" on Cinergy's Consolidated Bal­
ance Sheets, and Ciil) a $253 million sale of accounts 
receivable (Cinergy's Consolidated Balance Sheets are 
net of amounts sold). At December 31, 1997, this 
included (i) short-term bank loans and commercial 
paper totaling $870 million, Cii) $244 million of 
pollution control related debt which is classified as 

''Notes payable and other short-term obligations" on 
Cinergy's Consolidated Balance Sheets, and (iii) a 
$252 million sale of accounts receivable (Cinergy's 
Consolidated Balance Sheets are net of the amounts 
sold). At December 31, 1998 and 1997, Interest rates 
on bank loans, commercial paper, and the sale of 
accounts receivable approximated 6%, and the interest 
rate on the pollution control debt approximated 4%. 
Current forward yield curves project no significant 
change in applicable short-term interest rates over the 
next five years. 

The following table presents the principal cash 
repayments and related weighted average interest 
rates by maturity date for Cinergy's long-term 
fixed-rate debt, other debt and capital lease obliga­
tions as of December 31, 1998: 

(in millions) 1999 

$137 
6.0% 

$ -
-% 

$ -
-% 

2000 

$ 3 2 
5.7% 

$ -
-% 

$ -
-% 

2001 

$ 90'^^' 

5.2% 

$ -
-% 

$ 2 2 

5,3% 

Expected Maturity Date 

2002 

$124 

7.3% 

$ -
-% 

$ -
-% 

2003 

$177'^' 
6.2% 

$ -
„ % 

$ -
-% 

Thereafter 

$2 097 

7.0% 

$ 100 
6.5% 

$ -
-% 

Total 

$2 657 

6.8% 
$ 100 

6.5% 

$ 22 

5.3% 

Fair Value 

$2 830 

$ 104 

$ 22 

Liabilities 
Long-term Debt '^' 

Fixed rate 
Average interest rate"'' 
Other"^* 
Average interest rate"^' 

Capital Lease 
Variable rate 
Average interest rate"*' 

(a) Includes amounts reflected as long-term debt due within one year. 

(b) For the long-term debt obligations, the weighted average interest rate is based on the coupon rates of the debt that is maturing in the year 
reported. For the capital lease, the interest rate is based on a spread over 3-nionth LIBOR, and averaged to be approximately 6% in 
1998. For the variable rate Liquid Asset Notes with Coupon Exchange C'LANCEs"), the current forward yield curve suggests the interest 
rate on these notes would be fixed at 6.50% commencing October 1, 1999. 

£c) Variable rate LANCEs. 

Cd) 6-00% Debentures due December 14, 2016, reflected as maturing in 2001 as the interest rate resets on December 14, 2001. 
(e) 6.35% Debentures due June 15, 2038, reflected as maturing in 2003 as the interest rate resets on June-15, 2003. 

To manage Cinergy's exposure to fluctuations in 
interest rates and to lower funding costs, Cinergy 
constantly evaluates the use of, and has entered into, 
several interest rate swaps. Under these swaps, 
Cinergy or its subsidiaries agree with counterparties to 
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between 
fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts calcu­
lated on an agreed notional amount. This interest 
differential paid or received is recognized in the 

Consolidated Statements of Income as a component of 
interest expense. 

Through one Interest rate swap agreement, 
Cinergy has effectively fixed the interest rate on the 
pound sterling denominated obligation created by the 
currency swap discussed above. This contract requires 
Cinergy to pay semi-annually a fixed rate and receive 
a floating rate through February 2002. The notional 
amount of the swap is 280 million pounds sterling. 
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The fair value of the swap was approximately 
$(19) million at December 31, 1998. Translation 
gains and losses related to Cinergy's interest obliga­
tion, which Is payable In pounds sterling, are recog­
nized as a component of interest expense in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income. At December 31 , 
1998, the fair value of this swap decreased from $(3) 
million at December 31 , 1997 primarily due to a 
projected decline in the average variable interest rate 
received on the dollar denominated leg of the swap 
over its remaining term. 

At December 31 , 1998, CG&E had an interest 
rate swap agreement outstanding related to its sale of 
accounts receivable. The contract has a notional 
amount of $100 million and requires CG&E to pay a 
fixed rate and receive a floating rate. PSI had three 
interest rate swap agreements outstanding with no­
tional amounts of $100 million each. One contract, 
with two years remaining of a four-year term, requires 

PSI to pay a floating rate and receive a fixed rate. 
The other two contracts, with six-month terms, 
require PSI to pay a fixed rate and receive a floating 
rate. The floating rate is based on applicable LIBOR. 
At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the fair values of 
these Interest rate swaps were not significant. The 
following table presents notional principal amounts 
and weighted average interest rates by contractual 
maturity dates for the Interest rate swaps of Cinergy, 
CG&E, and PSI. The variable rates are the average 
implied forward rates during the contracts based on a 
December 31 , 1998 one month commercial paper 
index yield curve for CG&E and the six month LIBOR 
yield curve at December 31 , 1998 for Cinergy and 
PSI. Although Cinergy's swaps require payments to be 
made in pounds sterling, the table reflects the dollar 
equivalent notional amounts based on spot market 
foreign currency exchange rates at December 31 , 
1998. 

C-16 

($US Equivalent in millions) 1999 

$ -
5.2% 

6 . 1 % 
$200 

5.5% 
5 . 1 % 

$ -
-% 
-% 

2000 

$100 
5 . 1 % 

6 . 1 % 

$ -
-% 
-% 

$ -
-% 
-% 

2001 

$ 

$ 

$ 

-% 
-% 
-
-% 
-% 
-
-% 
-% 

Expected Maturity Date 

2002 

$ -
-% 
-% 

$ -
-% 
-% 

$465'^' 
7 . 1 % 

6.0% 

2003 

$ 

$ 

$ 

-% 
-% 
-
-% 
-% 
-
-% 
-% 

Thereafter 

$ -
- -% 

-% 
$ -

-% 
-% 

$ -
-% 
-% 

Total 

$100 

5 . 1 % 

6 . 1 % 

$200 

5.5% 

5 . 1 % 
$465"^' 

7 . 1 % 

6.0% 

Fair Value 

$ 2 

$ (1) 

$(19) 

Interest Rate Derivatives 
Interest Rate Swaps 

Receive fixed/pay variable ($US) 

Average pay rate 

Average receive rate 

Receive variable/pay fixed ($US) 

Average pay rate 

Average receive rate 

Receive variable/pay fixed (£UK) 
Average pay rate 

Average receive rate 

(a) Notional converted to US dollars using the Sterling spot exchange rate at December 31 , 1998, of 1.66000. 

ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

During the second quarter of 1998, the FASB issued 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities ('^Statement 133"). Statement 133 
requires companies to record derivative instruments, 
as defined In Statement 133, as assets or liabilities, 
measured at fair value. The statement requires that 
changes In the derivative's fair value be recognized 
currently In earnings unless specific hedge accounting 
criteria are met. Special accounting for qualifying 
hedges allows a derivative's gains and losses to offset 

related results on the hedged item in the income 
statement, and requires that a company must formally 
document, designate, and assess the effectiveness of 
transactions that receive hedge accounting. The stan­
dard Is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 1999, and Cinergy expects to adopt the 
provisions of Statement 133 In the first quarter of 
2000. The Company has not yet quantified the impact 
of adopting Statement 133 on its consolidated finan­
cial statements. However, Statement 133 could in­
crease volatility In earnings and other comprehensive 
income. 
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

INFLATION 

Cinergy believes that the recent inflation rates do not 
materially affect its financial condition or results of 
operations. However, under existing regulatory prac­
tice, only the historical cost of plant is recoverable 
from customers. As a result, cash flows designed to 
provide recovery of historical plant costs may not be 
adequate to replace plant in future years. 

DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS 

See Note 2(b) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Electric Operating Revenues 

The components of electric operating revenues and the 
related kilowatt-hour (^^kwh") sales are shown below: 

($ and kwh In 
millions) 

Revenue Kwh Sales 

1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996 

Retail $2 553 $2 455 $2 438 
Sales for resale 2 140 1 36B 297 
Other 54 39 34 

46 983 45 327 45 121 
77 558 57 454 12 399 

- - -
Total $4 747 $3 862 $2 7fe<? 124 541 102 731 57 520 

Electric operating revenues increased $885 mil­
lion (23%) for 1998, when compared to 1997. This 
increase was primarily due to increased volumes and a 
higher average price per kwh received on non-firm 
power sales for resale transactions related to the 
energy marketing and trading operations. There was 
also an increase In the average price per kwh paid for 
the corresponding purchases of purchased and ex­
changed power described below. Also contributing to 
the increase were higher retail kwh sales due to the 
warmer weather during 1998 when compared to 1997 
and growth in the average number of residential and 
commercial customers. 

Higher non-firm power sales for resale due to 
increased activity In the energy marketing and trading 
operations significantly contributed to the $1.1 billion 
(39%) increase in electric operating revenues in 
1997, when compared to 1996. Also contributing to 
the increase was a full year's effects of PSI's retail 
rate increases approved in the September 1996 Order, 

as amended In August 1997, the December 1996 
DSM Order, and the return of approximately $13 mil­
lion to customers in 1996 In accordance with an order 
issued in February 1995 by the lURC. This order 
required all retail operating income above a certain 
rate of return to be refunded to customers. Partially 
offsetting these increases was the reduction In fuel 
revenue due to a lower average cost of fuel used in 
electric production. 

Gas Operating Revenues 

The components of gas operating revenues and the 
related thousand cubic feet ("mcf") sales are shown 
below: 

($ and mcf in 
millions) 

Sales for resale 
Retail 
Transportation 
Other 

Revenue 

1998 1997 

$ 659 $ -
357 454 

41 32 
4 5 

1996 

$ -
440 

28 
6 

Mcf Sales 

1998 

338 
55 
58 

1997 1996 

69 75 
54 49 

Total $1061 $ 491 $ 474 451 123 124 

Gas operating revenues increased $570 million In 
1998, as compared to 1997. This Increase was 
primarily due to the gas operating revenues of 
ProEnergy, which was acquired In June 1998. Par­
tially offsetting this increase was a decline in retail 
sales due to lower mcf volumes reflecting, In part, the 
milder weather during the first quarter of 1998, and a 
reduction in the average number of full-service resi-
deatial, commercial and industrial customers. Trans­
portation revenues increased as full-service customers 
continued the move away from full service to purchas­
ing gas directly from suppliers, using transportation 
services provided by CG&E. 

The gas rate Increase of 2.5% (approximately 
$9 million annually) approved by the PUCO In the 
December 1996 Order and a higher average cost per 
mcf of gas purchased contributed to the $17 million 
(4%) increase in gas operating revenues in 1997, as 
compared to 1996. These Increases were partially 
offset by a decline In retail sales due to lower mcf 
volumes reflecting milder weather during 1997. 

Other Revenues 

Other revenues Increased $34 million in 1998, as 
compared to 1997. This increase was primarily the 
result of increased sales and new initiatives by the 
non-regulated businesses operated by the various 
business units. 
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OPERATING EXPENSES 

Fuel and Purchased and Exchanged fbwer 

The components of fuel and purchased and exchanged 
power are shown below: 

(in millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Fuel $ 723 $ 693 $ 713 
Purchased and exchanged power 2 123 1 220 159 

Total $2 846 $1 913 $ 872 

Electric fuel costs increased $30 million (4%) In 
1998, when compared to 1997, and declined $20 mil­
lion (3%) in 1997, when compared to 1996. 

An analysis of these fuel costs is shown below: 

(in millions) 1998 1997 

Previous year's fuel expense 
Increase (Decrease) due to change in: 

Price of fuel 
Deferred fuel cost 

Kwh generation 
Other 

$693 

(23) 

22 

28 

3 

$713 

7 

(55 
28 

-
Current year's fuel expense $723 $693 

Purchased and exchanged power expense in­
creased $903 million (74%) and $1.1 billion in 1998 
and 1997, respectively. These Increases primarily 
reflect Increased purchases of non-firm power for 
resale to others as a result of increased activity in the 
energy marketing and trading operations and an 
increase In the average price paid per kwh. Also 
recorded in 1998 were $135 million of unrealized 
losses related to the power marketing and trading 
operations. (See Note 1(c) of the Notes to Consoli­
dated Financial Statements and the '^Market Risk 
Sensitive Instruments and Positions" section for dis­
cussions on Cinergy's energy marketing and trading 
operations.) 

Gas Purchased 

Gas purchased increased $591 million in 1998, as 
compared to 1997. This is primarily due to the gas 
purchased expenses of ProEnergy, which was acquired 
in June 1998. Slightly offsetting this Increase was a 
decrease in the volumes of gas purchased by CG&E, 
due to lower demand, and a lower average cost per 
mcf of gas purchased by CG&E. 

The increase in gas purchased expense of $17 mil­
lion (7%) in 1997, as compared to 1996, reflects a 
higher average cost per mcf of gas purchased. This 
increase was partially offset by a decline in the 
volumes of gas purchased. 

Other Operation and Maintemmce 

The components of other operation and maintenance 
expenses are shown below: 

1998 1997 1996 (in millions) 

Other operation 

Maintenance 

814 
192 

$693 
177 

$644 
194 

Total $1006' $870 $838 

Other operation expenses increased $121 million 
(17%) In 1998, as compared to 1997. This increase 
is primarily due to the one-time charge of $80 million 
recorded during the second quarter of 1998, reflecting 
the implementation of a 1989 settlement of a dispute 
with the Wabash Valley Power Association, Inc. 
r \NVPA") . (See Note IS of the Notes to Consoli­
dated Financial Statements.) This increase was also 
the result of increased growth and new initiatives by 
the non-regulated businesses operated by the various 
business units. Maintenance expenses increased 
$15 million (8%) in 1998, as compared to 1997. 
This increase is due to an increase in boiler plant 
maintenance, an Increase in general plant expenses, 
and an increase In distribution line maintenance costs 
resulting from storm damage during the second 
quarter of 1998. 

Other operation expenses in.creased $49 million 
(8%) in 1997, as compared to 1996. This Increase is 
primarily due to higher other operation expenses 
relating to the PSI Clean Coal Project, amortization 
of deferred DSM expenses, and amortization of 
deferred expenses associated with the Clean Coal 
Project, all of which are being recovered in revenues. 
The effect of discontinuing deferral of certain 
DSM-related costs also added to the increase. Mainte­
nance expenses decreased $17 million (9%) in 1997, 
as compared to 1996. This decrease is primarily 
attributable to reduced outage related charges and 
other maintenance costs associated with the electric 
production facilities. Reduced maintenance costs asso­
ciated with the electric transmission and distribution 
facilities in the PSI territory also contributed to the 
decrease for 1997. 

Depredation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization increased $19 million 
(6%) in 1998, as compared to 1997. This increase is 
primarily attributable to amortization of phase-in 
deferrals reflecting the PUCO ordered phase-in plan 
for the William H. Zimmer Generating Station (^Yim-
mer"). (See Mote 1(f) of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.) 

C-X8 
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

EQUITY IN EARNINGS OF UNCONSOLIDATED 
SUBSIDIARIES 

The decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolidated 
subsidiaries of $9 million (15%) for 1998, as 
compared to 1997, is partially due to a decline in the 
earnings of Midlands, as a result of milder weather 
conditions and a penalty imposed on each electric 
distribution company caused by the delay in opening 
the electricity supply business to competition. 

The increase In equity In earnings of unconsoli­
dated subsidiaries of $35 million for 1997, as 
compared to 1996, primarily reflects a full year's 
effect of the Investment in Midlands. Midlands was 
purchased during the second quarter of 1996. 

OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSES) - NET 

The $12 million change in other income and (ex­
penses)—net for 1998, as compared to 1997, is 
primarily due to a gain on the sale of Cinergy's 
interest in a foreign subsidiary. This gain is partially 
offset by a litigation settlement. 

The $15 million change In other Income and 
(expenses) —net for 1997, as compared to 1996, is 
due. In part, to charges In 1996 of approximately 
$14 million associated with the disallowance of 
information system costs related to the Decem­
ber 1996 Order, a gain of approximately $4 million In 
1997 on the sale of a PSI Investment, and a loss of 
approximately $5 million In 1996 on the sale of a 
foreign subsidiary. These Items were partially offset by 
gains of approximately $6 million in 1996 related to 
the sale of certain CG&E assets, approximately 
$2 million of increased expenses in 1997 associated 
with the sales of accounts receivable for PSI, CG&E, 
and ULH&R 

INTEREST 

The $21 million (10%) increase in interest expense in 
1997, as compared to 1996, is due to higher short-
term borrowings used to fund the redemption of first 
mortgage bonds by CG&E and Cinergy's investments 
In non-regulated companies, including Avon Energy. 

INCOME TAXES 

Income taxes decreased $96 million (45%) in 1998, 
as compared to 1997, due to a decrease in taxable 
Income over the prior year and the increased utiliza­
tion of foreign tax credits. 

PREFERRED DIVIDEND REQUIREMENTS OF 
SUBSIDIARIES 

The decrease in preferred dividend requirements of 
subsidiaries of $6 million (48%) for 1998, as 
compared to 1997, is primarily attributable to PSI's 
redemption of all outstanding shares of its 7.44% 
Series Cumulative Preferred Stock on March 1, 1998. 

Preferred dividend requirements of subsidiaries 
decreased $11 million (46%) in 1997, when com­
pared to 1996. This decrease is primarily attributable 
to the reacquisition of approximately 90% of the 
outstanding preferred stock of CG&E, pursuant to 
Cinergy's tender offer. (See Note 3(b) of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements.). 

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM 

Extraordinary item-equity share of windfall profits 
tax represents the one-time charge for the windfall 
profits tax levied against Midlands as recorded in 
1997. (See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements.) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 1998 1997 

Operating Revenues 

Electric 

Gas 

Other 

$4 747235 

1 060 664 

68 395 

$3 861 698 

491 145 
34 258 

Operating Expenses 

Fuel and purchased and exchanged power 

Gas purchased 

Other operation and maintenance 

Depreciation and amortization 

Taxes other than Income taxes 

5 876 294 

2 846323 

857 010 

1006382 

325515 

274 635 

4 387 101 

1912 793 

266 158 

869 867 

306 922 

265 693 

Operating Income 

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries 

Otiier Income and (Expenses)-Net 

Interest 

5 309865 

566429 

51484 
10346 

243 587 

3 621433 

765 668 

60 392 

(1534) 
236 319 

Income Before Taxes 

Income Taxes (Note 11) 

Preferred Dividend Requirements of Subsidiaries 

384 672 

117187 
6 517 

588 207 

213 000 
12 569 

Net Income Before Extraordinary Item 
Extraordinary Item-Equity Share of Windfall Profits Tax (Less 

Applicable Income Taxes of $0) (Note 17) 

Net Income 

Average Common Shares Outstanding 

Earnings Per Common Share (Note 16) 

Net income before extraordinary Item 

Net income 

Earnings Per Common Share-Assuming 

Dilution (Note 16) 

Net income before extraordinary item 

Net income 

Dividends Declared Per Common Share 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

$ 260 968 

158238 

$1.65 

$1.65 

$1.65 

$1.65 

$1.80 

$ 253 238 

157 685 

$2.30 

$1.61 

$2.28 

$1.59 

$1.80 

1996 

$2 768 706 

474 035 

33 446 

3 276 187 

872 088 

249 116 

838 218 

294 852 

258 375 

2 512 649 

763 538 

25 430 

(16 652: 

215 603 

556 713 

198 736 

23 180 

$ 260 968 $ 362 638 $ 334 797 

(109 400) 

$ 334 797 

157 678 

$2.00 

$2.00 

$1.99 

$1.99 

$1.74 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(dollars in thousands) December 31 1998 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and temporary cash investments 

Restricted deposits 

Notes receivable 

Accounts receivable less accumulated provision for doubtful accounts of 
$25,622 at December 31 , 1998, and $10,382 at December 31 , 1997 
(Note 6) 

Materials, supplies, and fuel-at average cost 

Prepayments and other 

Energy risk management assets (Note 1(c)) 

Utility Plant-Original Cost 

In service 

Electric 

Gas 

Common 

Accumulated depreciation 

Construction work in progress 

Total utility plant 

Other Assets 

Regulatory assets (Note 1(f)) 

Investments In unconsolidated subsidiaries (Note 10) 

Other 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

100154 
3 587 

64 

580305 

202 747 

74 849 

969 000 

1930 706 

9222 261 

786188 

186364 

10194 813 
4040 247 

6154 566 

189 883 

6344449 

970 767 
574 401 
478472 

2 023640 

$10298 795 

1997 

$ 53 310 
2 319 

110 

413 516 
163 156 

38 171 

670 582 

8 981 182 

746 903 

186 078 

9 914 163 

3 800 322 

6 113 841 

183 262 

6 297 103 

1 076 851 

537 720 

275 897 

1 890 468 

$8 858 153 
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(dollars in thousands) December 31 1998 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EaUITY 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accrued taxes 

Accrued Interest 

Notes payable and other short-term obligations (Note 5) 

Long-term debt due within one year (Note 4) 

Energy risk management liabilities (Note 1(c)) 
Other 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Long-term debt (Note 4) 

Deferred income taxes (Note 11) 

Unamortized Investment tax credits 

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefit costs (Note 9) 

Other 

Total liabilities 

Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries (Note 3) 

Not subject to mandatory redemption 

Common Stock Equity (Note 2) 

Common stock-$.Ol par value; authorized shares-600,000,000; 

outstanding shares-158,664,532 in 1998 and 157,744,658 in 1997 

Paid-in capital 

Retained earnings 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total common stock equity 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12) 

668 860 

228347 

51679 

903 700 

136 000 

1117146 

93376 

3199108 

2604467 

1091075 

156 757 

315 147 
298370 

4 465 816 

7664 924 

92640 

1997 

$ 488 716 

187 033 

46 622 

1 114 028 
85 000 

79 193 

2 000 592 

2 150 902 

1 248 543 

166 262 

297 142 
277 523 

4 140 372 

6 140 964 

177 989 

1587 
1595237 

945 214 
(807) 

2541231 

$10298 795 

1577 
1 573 064 

967 420 
(2 861 

2 539 200 

$8 858 153 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMON STOCK EQUITY 

{dollars in thousands) 

Balance at December 31 ,1995 

Comprehensive income 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

effect of $179 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 

IVIinimum pension liability adjustment 

Other comprehensive loss total 

Comprehensive income total 

Issuance of 8/988 shares of common 

stock-net 
Treasury shares purchased 
Treasury shares reissued 
Dividends on common stock (see page C-20 

for per share amounts) 
Costs of reacquisition of preferred stock 

of subsidiary 
Other 

Balance at December 31 ,1996 

Comprehensive income 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

effect of $1,595 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 
IVIinimum pension liability adjustment 

Other comprehensive loss total 

Comprehensive income totat 

Issuance of 65,529 shares of common 

stock-net 
Treasury shares purchased 
Treasury shares reissued 
Dividends on common stock (see page C-20 

for per share amounts) 
Other 

Balance at December 31 ,1997 

Comprehensive Income 

Net income 
Other comprehen$ive income, net of tax 

el fect of $(1,813) 
Foreign currency transiatlon 

adjustment 
IVIinimum pension liabil ity adjustment 

Other comprehensive income total 

Comprehensive income tota l 

Issuance of 919,874 shares of common 

s tock -ne t 
Treasury shares purchased 
Treasury shares reissued 
Dividends on common stock (see page C-20 

for per share amounts) 
Other 

Balance at December 31 ,1998 

Common 
Stock 

$1 577 

Paid-in 
Capital 

$1 597 050 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 951 290 

334 797 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Loss 

$(1 074) 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income 

$334 797 

(131) 
(179) 

Total Common 
Stock Equity 

$2 548 843 

334 797 

(131) 
(179) 

(4) 
4 

$1 577 

311 
(14 887) 

8 599 

(338) 

$1 590 735 

(274 358) 

(18 391) 
188 

$ 993 526 

253 238 

$1 577 $1 573 064 $ 967 420 

260 968 

10 
(3) 
3 

$1587 

30 225 
(15 426) 

7 325 

49 

$1 595 237 

(284 703) 
1529 

$ 945 214 

(310) 

$(1 384) 

(1 477; 

(11) 
11 

2 066 
(46 199) 
26 729 

(267) 
(283 866) 

4 522 

$(2 861) 

2 054 

$ (807) 

(310) 

$334 487 

$253 238 

(394) 
(1 083) 

(1 477) 

$251 761 

311 
(14 891) 

3 603 

(274 358) 

(18 391) 
(150) 

$2 584 454 

253 238 

(394) 
(1 083) 

$260 968 

2 160 

(106) 

2 054 

$263 022 

2 066 
(46 210) 
26 740 

(283 866) 
4 255 

$2 539 200 

260 968 

2 160 

(106) 

30 235 
(15 429) 

7 328 

(284 703) 
1 5 7 8 

$2 541 231 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(in thousands) 

Operating Activities 

Net income 

Items providing or (using) cash currently: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Wabash Valley Power Association, Inc. settlement 

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits-net 

Unrealized loss from energy risk management activities 

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries 

Extraordinary item-equity share of windfall profits tax 

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 

Regulatory assets-net 

Changes in current assets and current liabilities 

Restricted deposits 

Accounts and notes receivable 

Materials, supplies, and fuel 

Accounts payable 

Accrued taxes and interest 

Other current assets and liabilities 

Other items-net 

IMet cash provided by operating activities 

Financing Activities 

Change in short-term debt 

Issuance of long-term debt 

Redemption of long-term debt 

Funds on deposit from issuance of long-term debt 

Retirement of preferred stock of subsidiaries 

Issuance of common stock 

Dividends on common stock 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Investing Activities 

Construction expenditures (less allowance for equity funds used 
during construction) 

Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acquired) 

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 

1998 1997 

$ 260 968 $ 253 238 

325 515 
80 000 

(107 835) 

135 000 
(45 374) 

(1 668) 

46 856 

(1 268) 

(45 811) 

(33 484) 

44 535 

46 371 

(9 495) 

29 698 

306 922 

67 638 

15 000 
(35 239) 

109 400 

(98) 

33 605 

(598) 

(217 157) 
21 817 

183 296 

(21 414) 
(36 582) 

53 750 

724 008 

(245 413) 
785 554 

(384 520) 

(85 299) 

3 724 

(283 884) 

733 578 

191 811 
100 062 

(336 312) 

(16 269) 

2 066 

(283 866) 

(209 838) 

(368 609) 

(63 412) 

(35 305) 

(342 508) 

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 

Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest (net of amount capitalized) 

Income taxes 

$ 229 501 

179 677 

$ 235 948 

140 655 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

1996 

334 797 

294 852 

(80 000) 

47 912 

(25 430) 

(1 225) 

(17 135) 

(358) 

132 749 

44 005 

37 281 

(1 289) 

52 749 

(8 161) 

810 747 

572 417 

150 217 

(237 183) 

973 

(212 487) 

311 

(274 358) 

(110) 

(328 055) (323 013) 

(29 032) (503 349) 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and temporary cash investments 

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period 

(467 326) 

46 844 

53 310 

(357 087) 

33 983 

19 327 

(826 362) 

(15 725) 

35 052 

$ 100 154 $ 53 310 $ 19 327 

$ 207 393 

141 917 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Cinergy Corp., a Delaware corporation^ (^^Cinergy" or 
^Tompany'O/ is a registered holding company under 
the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 
('^PUHCA"). Cinergy was created In the Octo­
ber 1994 merger of The Cincinnati Gas & Electric 
Company (^XG&E'Z) and PSI Resources, Inc. (̂ ^Re­
sources"). Cinergy's utility subsidiaries are CG&E and 
PSI Energy, Inc. (^^PSTO. CG&E, an Ohio combina­
tion electric and gas public utility company, and its 
five wholly-owned utility subsidiaries (including The 
Union Light, Heat and Power Company, a Kentucky 
combination electric and gas utility (^^ULH&P")), are 
primarily engaged in the production, transmission, 
distribution, and sale of electric energy and/or the sale 
and transportation of natural gas in the southwestern 
portion of Ohio and adjacent areas in Kentucky and 
Indiana. PSI, an Indiana public electric utility and 
previously Resources' utility subsidiary, is engaged in 
the production, transmission, distribution, and sale of 
electric energy In north central, central, and southern 
Indiana. The majority of Cinergy's operating revenues 
is derived from the sale of electricity and the sale and 
transportation of natural gas. 

Cinergy's non-utility subsidiaries are Cinergy In­
vestments, Inc. (^'Investments"), Cinergy Ser--
vices, Inc. ('^Services"), and Cinergy Global 
Resources, Inc. (''Global Resources"). Investments, a 
Delaware corporation, is a non-utility subholding 
company that holds virtually all of Cinergy's'domestic 
non-utility businesses and interests. Services, a Dela­
ware corporation, Is the service company for the 
Cinergy system, providing member companies with a 
variety of administrative, management, and support 
services. Global Resources, a Delaware corporation, 
was formed in May 1998, and holds Cinergy's 
international businesses and certain other interests. 

Cinergy conducts Its operations through various 
subsidiaries and affiliates. The Company is functionally 
organized into four business units through which many 
of its activities are conducted: Energy Commodities 
Business Unit ("ECBU"), Energy Delivery Business 
Unit ("EDBU"), Energy Services Business Unit 
("ESBU"), and the International Business Unit 
( " IBU") . The traditional, vertically-integrated utility 
functions have been realigned Into the ECBU, EDBU, 
and ESBU. Each of these business units is described 
In detail along with certain financial information by 
business unit as of Deceniber 31, 1998, in Note 15. 
As the industry continues its evolution, Cinergy will 
continually analyze its operating structure and make 
adjustments as appropriate. In early 1999, certain 

organizational changes were begun to further align the 
business units to reflect Cinergy's strategic vision. 

(b) PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements 
include the accounts of Cinergy and its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries. Investments in business entities in which 
the Company does not have control, but has the ability 
to exercise significant Influence over operating and 
financial policies (generally, 20% to 50% ownership) 
are accounted for using the equity method. All 
significant intercompany transactions and balances 
have been eliminated. 

The preparation of financial statements in con­
formity with generally accepted accounting principles 
("GAAP") requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

The Consolidated Statements of Income have been 
'reclassified in order to present the operations of all 
consolidated, non-regulated entities as a component of 
operating income. Prior to this reclassification, the 
operations of such entities were reflected In "Other 
Income and Expenses-Net." Similarly, "Income 
Taxes" now Includes the income taxes associated with 
the non-regulated entities. These changes had no 
effect on net income. Additionally, the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets have been reformatted. Prior years' 
data has been reclassified to conform to the current 
year's presentation. 

(c) ENERGY MARKETING AND TRADING 

Cinergy's energy marketing and trading operations, 
conducted primarily through its ECBU, markets and 
trades electricity, natural gas, and other energy-related 
products. The power marketing and trading operation 
has both physical and trading activities. Generation 
not required to meet native load requirements Is 
available to be sold to third parties, either under 
long-term contracts, such as full requirements transac­
tions or firm forward sales contracts, or In short-term 
and spot market transactions. When transactions are 
entered Into, each transaction is designated as either a 
physical or trading transaction. In order for a 
transaction to be designated as physical, there must 
be intent and ability to physically deliver the power 
from company-owned generation. Physical transactions 
are accounted for on a settlement basis. All other 
transactions are considered trading transactions and 
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are accounted for using the mark-to-market method of 
accounting. Under the mark-to-market method of 
accounting, these trading transactions are reflected at 
fair value as "Energy risk management assets" and 
"Energy risk management liabilities". Changes In fair 
value, resulting In unrealized gains and losses, are 
reflected in "Fuel and purchased and exchanged 
power". Revenues and costs for all transactions are 
recorded gross in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income as contracts are settled. Revenues are recog­
nized in "Operating Revenues-Electric" and costs are 
recorded in "Fuel and purchased and exchanged 
power". 

Although physical transactions are entered with 
the intent and ability tc settle the contract with 
company-owned generation, it is likely, that from time 
to time, due to numerous factors such as generating 
station outages, native load requirements, and 
weather, power used to settle the physical transactions 
will be required to be purchased on the open market. 
Depending on the factors giving rise to these open 
market purchases, the cost of such purchases could be 
in excess of the associated revenues. Losses such as 
this will be recognized as the power is delivered. In 
addition, physical contracts are subject to permanent 
impairment tests. At December 31 , 1998, manage­
ment has concluded that no physical contracts are 
impaired. 

At December 31, 1998, the trading portfolio 
consisted of "Energy risk management assets" of 
$969 million and "Energy risk management liabili­
ties" of $1,117 million. Prior to December 31, 1998, 
the transactions now Included In the trading portfolio 
were accounted for and valued at the aggregate lower 
of cost or market. Under this method, only the net 
value of the entire portfolio was recorded as a liability 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The net liability 
was not significant at December 31 , 1997. 

Contracts in the trading portfolio are valued at 
end-of-period market prices, utilizing factors such as 
closing exchange prices, broker and over-the-counter 
quotations, and model pricing. Model pricing considers 
time value and volatility factors underlying any options 
and contractual commitments. Management expects 
that some of these obligations, even though considered 
as trading contracts, will ultimately be settled from 
time to time by using company-owned generation. The 
cost of this generation is typically below the market 
prices at which the trading portfolio has been valued. 

Because of the volatility currently experienced in 
the power markets, and the factors discussed above 
pertaining to both the physical and trading activities, 
volatility in future earnings (losses) from period to 
period in the ECBU is likely. 

As a result of the acquisitions of Producers 
Energy Marketing, LLC ("ProEnergy") In 1998 and 
Greenwich Energy Partners in 1997, the ECBU also 
physically markets natural gas and trades natural gas 
and other energy-related products. All of these opera­
tions are accounted for on the mark-to-market method 
of accounting. Revenues and costs from physical 
marketing are recorded gross in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income as contracts are settled due to 
the exchanging of title to the natural gas throughout 
the earnings process. Realized revenues for 1998 were 
approximately $650 million. There were no such 
revenues prior to 1998. All non-physical transactions 
are recorded net in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. Energy risk management assets and liabilities 
and gross margins from trading activities were not 
significant at December 31 , 1998 and 1997 or for 
each of the three years ended December 31 , 1998. 

(d) FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES 

Cinergy and its subsidiaries use derivative financial 
instruments to hedge exposures to foreign currency 
exchange rates, lower funding costs, and manage 
exposures to fluctuations In interest rates. Instruments 
used as hedges must be designated as a hedge at the 
inception of the contract and must be effective at 
reducing the risk associated with the exposure being 
hedged. Accordingly, changes in market values of 
designated hedge Instruments must be highly corre­
lated with changes in market values of the underlying 
hedged items at inception of the hedge and over the 
life of the hedge contract. 

Cinergy and its subsidiaries utilize foreign ex­
change forward contracts and currency swaps to 
hedge certain of their net investments in foreign 
operations. Accordingly, any translation gains or losses 
related to the foreign exchange forward contracts or 
the principal exchange on the currency swaps are 
recorded in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss", 
which is a separate component of Common Stock 
Equity. Aggregate translation losses related to these 
instruments are reflected in Current Liabilities in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Interest rate swaps are accounted for under the 
accrual method. Accordingly, gains and losses based 
on any Interest differential between fixed-rate and 
floating-rate Interest amounts, calculated on agreed 
upon notional principal amounts, are recognized In the 
Consolidated Statements of Income as a component of 
"Interest" as realized over the life of the agreement. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I (e) FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES 

Under the provisions of Statement of Financial Ac­
counting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income 
Taxes ("Statement 109"), deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognized for the income tax conse­
quences of transactions treated differently for financial 
reporting and tax return purposes, measured on the 
basis of statutory tax rates. Investment tax credits 
utilized to reduce federal income taxes payable have 
been deferred for financial reporting purposes and are 
being amortized over the useful lives of the property 
which gave rise to such credits. 

(f) REGULATION 

Cinergy, its utility subsidiaries, and certain of its 
non-utility subsidiaries are subject to regulation by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under 
the PUHCA. Cinergy's utility subsidiaries are also 
subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regula­
tory Commission ("FERC") and the state utility 
commissions of Indiana, Kentucky, and Ohio. 

The accounting policies of Cinergy's utility subsidi­
aries conform to the accounting requirements and 

ratemaking practices of these regulatory authorities 
and to GAAP, including the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, Accounting 
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation 
("Statement 71"). 

Under the provisions of Statement 71, regulatory 
assets represent probable future revenue associated 
with deferred costs to be recovered from customers 
through the ratemaking process. Certain criteria must 
be met for regulatory assets to be recorded and for 
the continued application of the provisions of State­
ment 71, including regulated rates designed to recover 
the specific utility's costs. Failure to satisfy the 
criteria in Statement 71 would eliminate the basis for 
recognition of regulatory assets. 

Based on Cinergy's current regulatory orders and 
the regulatory environment In which it currently 
operates, the recognition of its regulatory assets as of 
December 31, 1998, Is fully supported. However, in 
light of recent trends in customer-choice legislation, 
the potential for future losses resulting from discontin­
uance of Statement 71 does exist. The regulatory 
assets of CG&E and its utility subsidiaries and PSI as 
of December 31 are as follows: 

1998 1997 

(in millions) CG&E<i) PSI Cinergy CG&E^ PSI Cinergy 

Amounts due from customers-income taxes^^* 
Post-in-service carrying costs and deferred operating expenses 

Coal contract buyout costs 

Deferred demand-side management ( "DSM") costs 

Phase-in deferred return and depreciation'^' 
Deferred merger costs 

Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt 
Coal gasification services expenses 
Other 

$331 
128 
_ 
40 
75 
16 
34 
-
3 

$26 
43 
99 
43 
-
69 
29 
19 
16 

$357 
171 
99 
83 
75 
85 
63 
19 
19 

$350 
135 
-
39 
90 
16 
36 
-
2 

$ 24 
44 
122 
71 
-
74 
30 
22 
22 

$ 374 
179 
122 
110 
90 
90 
66 
22 
24 

Total $627 $344 $971 $668 $409 $1077 

(1) Includes $11 million related to ULH&P (for DSM, unamortized costs of reacquiring debt and other regulatory assets) at both 
December 3 1 , 1998, and 1997. 

(2) Income tax provisions reflected in customer rates are regulated by the various regulatory commissions overseeing the regulated business 
operations of CG&E and its utility subsidiaries and PSI. In accordance with the provisions of Statement 7 1 , Cinergy, CG&E, and PSI have 
recorded a net regulatory asset representing the probable recovery from customers of additional income taxes established under 
Statement 109. ULH&P has recorded a regulatory liability representing the probable repayment to customers of income taxes established 
under Statement 109 to the extent deferred income taxes recovered in rates exceed amounts payable in future periods. 

(3) Pursuant to an order from the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, CG&E is recovering this asset over a seven-year period which began in 

May 1995. 
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CG&E has previously received regulatory orders 
authorizing the recovery of $553 million of its total 
regulatory assets at December 31 , 1998. PSI has 
previously received regulatory orders authorizing the 
recovery of $334 million of its total regulatory assets 
at December 31 , 1998. The recovery of these assets is 
being reflected In rates charged to customers over a 
period ranging from 1 to 33 years. Both CG&E and 
PSI will request recovery of additional amounts In 
future proceedings. These proceedings, if any, may be 
related to the transition to customer choice In each 
applicable jurisdiction. 

(g) UTILITY PLANT 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construc­
tion, which includes an allowance for funds used 
during construction ("AFUDC") and a proportionate 
share of overhead costs. Construction overhead costs 
Include salaries, payroll taxes, fringe benefits, and 
other expenses. 

Substantially all utility plant is subject to the lien 
of each applicable company's first mortgage bond 
indenture. 

(h) AFUDC 

In accordance with the uniform systems of accounts 
prescribed by regulatory authorities, Cinergy's utility 
subsidiaries capitalize AFUDC, a non-cash income 
Item, which is defined by the FERC as including "the 
net cost for the period of construction of borrowed 
funds used for construction purposes and a reasonable 
rate on other funds when so used." The borrowed 
funds component of AFUDC, which is recorded on a 
pre-tax basis was $7.5 million, $5.4 million, and 
$6.2 million for 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively. 
AFUDC accrual rates are compounded semi-annually 
and averaged 6.6% in 1998, 6.3% in 1997, and 
7 . 1 % In 1996. 

( i ) DEPRECIATION AND MAINTENANCE 

Provisions for depreciation are determined by using 
the straight-line method applied to the cost of 
depreciable plant in service. The rates are based on 
periodic studies of the estimated service lives and net 
cost of removal of the properties. The average 
depreciation rates for utility plant are: 

1998 1997 1996 

CG&E and its utility subsidiaries 

Electric 
Gas 

Common 

PSI 

2.9% 
2.9 
2.6 

3.0 

2.9% 
2.9 
3.0 

3.0 

2.9% 
2.8 
3.0 

3.0 

For Cinergy's utility subsidiaries, maintenance and 
repairs of property units and replacements of minor 
items of property are charged to maintenance expense. 
The costs of replacements of property units are 
capitalized. The original cost of the property retired 
and the related costs of removal, less salvage recov­
ered, are charged to accumulated depreciation. 

(j) OPERATING REVENUES 
AND FUEL COSTS 

Cinergy's utility subsidiaries record revenues for elec­
tric and gas service provided during the month, 
including sales unbilled at the end of each month. The 
costs of electricity and gas purchased and fuel used in 
electric production are expensed as recovered through 
revenues and any portion of these costs recoverable or 
refundable in future periods is deferred in either 
"Accounts receivable" or "Accounts payable" in the 
accompanying Balance Sheets. Indiana law subjects 
the recovery of fuel costs to a determination that such 
recovery will not result in earning a return in excess of 
that allowed by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Com­
mission ("lURC") in Its last general rate order. 

(k ) STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

All temporary cash investments with maturities of 
three months or less, when acquired, are reported as 
cash equivalents. See Note 8(a)(i) for Information 
concerning non-cash investing transactions and 
Note 18 for information concerning a non-cash financ­
ing transaction. 

(I) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY 

All assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheets 
of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is 
other than the United States ("US") dollar are 
translated at year-end exchange rates; income and 
expense Items are translated at the average exchange 
rate prevailing during the month the respective trans­
actions occur. Translation gains and losses are re­
corded in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss", 
which is a separate component of common stock 
equity. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(m)ACCOUNTING CHANGES 

Effective with the first quarter of 1998, Cinergy and 
its subsidiaries adopted the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, Reporting 
Comprehensive Income ("Statement 130"). State­
ment 130 establishes standards for reporting and 
displaying comprehensive income and its components 
in a full set of general-purpose financial statements. 
Comprehensive Income per Statement 130 is defined 

as "the change In equity of a business enterprise 
during a period from transactions and other events 
and circumstances from nonowner sources." 

In December 1998, the Company implemented the 
provisions of the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 
No. 98-10, "Accounting for Contracts Involved in 
Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities." For 
a detailed discussion of the Company's energy trading 
and risk management activities, refer to Note 1(c). 

2. COMMON STOCK 

(a) CHANGES IN COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDING 

The following table reflects the shares of Cinergy common stock reserved for issuance at December 31 , 1998, and 
shares Issued in 1998, 1997, and 1996 for the Company's stock-based plans. 

1996 Long-term Incentive Compensation Plan {'^LTIP'O 
Stock Option Plan 
Performance Shares Plan ("PSP") 
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan 
401{k) Savings Plans 
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 
Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan 

Shares 
Reserved at 

Dec. 31,1998 

6 956 386 
4 366 186 

771 301 
1 931 378 
6 469 373 
1 798 486 

200 000 

1998 

_ 
192 591 

-
1006 

-
-
-

Shares Issued 
1997 

43 614 
22 219 

-
-
-
-
-

1996 

_ 
15 007 

492 
-
-
-
-

Cinergy retired 44,981; 304; and 6,511 shares of 
common stock In 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively, 
primarily representing shares tendered as payment for 
the exercise of previously granted stock options. 

In June 1998, Cinergy issued 771,258 shares of 
new common stock to acquire ProEnergy. 

(b) DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS 

Cinergy owns all of the common stock of CG&E and 
PSI. The ability of Cinergy to pay dividends to holders 
of its common stock Is principally dependent on the 
ability of CG&E and PSI to pay common dividends to 
Cinergy. CG&E and PSI cannot purchase or otherwise 
acquire for value or pay dividends on their common 
stock If dividends are in arrears on their preferred 
stock. The amount of common stock dividends that 
each company can pay also may be limited by certain 
capitalization and earnings requirements. Currently, 
these requirements do not impact the ability of either 
company to pay dividends on common stock. 

(c) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 

Cinergy has four stock-based compensation plans: the 
LTIP, the Stock Option Plan, the PSP, and the 
Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan. Cinergy 
ceased accrual of incentive compensation under the 
PSP as of December 31 , 1996, and on January 1, 
1997, implemented the LTIP. 

Cinergy accounts for its stock-based compensation 
plans under Accounting Principles Board Opinion 
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, 
under which stock option-type awards are recorded at 
intrinsic value. For 1998, 1997, and 1996, compensa­
tion cost related to Cinergy's stock-based compensa­
tion plans, before income taxes, recognized in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income was $1 million, 
$6 million, and $2 million, respectively. 
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Net income and earnings per share C^̂ EPS'O for 
1998, 1997, and 1996, assuming compensation cost 
for these plans had been determined at fair value, 
consistent with the provisions of Statement of Finan­
cial Accounting Standards Wo. 123, Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation (''Statement 123"), would 
have been as follows: 

(in millions, 
except per slnare amounts) 

Net income 

1998 1997 199b 

$261 
$258 
$1.65 
$1.63 
$1.65 
$1.62 

$253 
$ 251 
$1.61 
$1.59 
$1.59 
$1.58 

$335 
$334 
$2.00 
$1.99 
$1.99 
$1.99 

as reported 
- pro forma 

EPS - as reported 
- pro forma 

Diluted EPS - as reported 
- pro forma 

In accordance with the provisions of State­
ment 123, In estimating the pro forma amounts, the 
fair value method of accounting was not applied to 
options granted prior to January 1, 1995. As a result, 
the pro forma effect on net income and EPS may not 
be representative of future years. In addition, the pro 
forma amounts reflect certain assumptions used in 
estimating fair values. These fair value assumptions 
are described under each applicable plan discussion 
below. 

(i) LTIP 

In 1996, Cinergy adopted the LTIP. Under this plan, 
certain key employees may be granted stock options 
and restricted shares of Cinergy common stock. Stock 
options are granted at the fair market value of the 
shares on the date of grant. These options vest In 
three years and expire in 10 years from the date of 
grant with the exception of participants that retire. 
Their shares become vested upon retirement. Partici­
pants' shares that are not vested become forfeited 
when the participant leaves Cinergy. Restricted shares 
are granted at the fair market value of the shares on 
the date of grant, discounted to reflect the Inability to 
sell the shares during the three-year restriction period. 
In addition to the stock options and restricted shares, 
participants may earn additional shares if Cinergy's 
Total Shareholder Return (''TSR") exceeds that of the 
average annual median TSR of a selected peer group. 
Conversely, if Cinergy's TSR falls below that of the 
peer group, participants would lose some or all of the 
restricted shares. Dividends on any restricted stock 
awards and additional performance shares will be paid 
in shares of common stock during the payout period in 
the years 2000 to 2002. No stock-based awards were 
made under the LTIP prior to 1997. In 1998 and 
1997, 41,129 and 425,938 performance-based re­
stricted shares at a weighted average price of $34.69 
and $29.95, respectively, were granted to certain key 

employees. As of December 31 , 1998, Cinergy held a 
total of 442,941 performance-based restricted shares. 
The number of shares of common stock to be awarded 
under the LTIP is limited In the aggregate to 
7,000,000 shares. 

LTIP stock option activity for 1998 and 1997 is 
summarized as follows: 

1998 1997 

Outstanding, 
beginning of year 
Granted 
Forfeited 

Outstanding, end of year 

Exercisable, end of year 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Number Price 

369 600 $33.60 
471400 38.19 
(68 OOU) 36.06 

773 000 $36.19 

11600 $36.05 

Number 

369 600 

369 600 

V/eighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$33.60 

$33.60 

-
Weighted average fair value 

of options granted during 
the year $4.68 $3.54 

The fair values of options granted were estimated 
as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. The weighted averages for the assump­
tions used In determining the fair values of options 
granted were as follows: 

1998 1997 

Risk-free Interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 
Expected lives 
Expected common stock variance 

5.6% 6.2% 
4.8% 5.4% 
5.6 yrs. 5.4 yrs. 
1.8% 1.7% 

The price range for the options outstanding under 
the LTIP at December 31 , 1998, was $33.50-
$38.59 and the weighted average contractual life was 
8.7 years. 

(ii) Stock Option Plan 

The Cinergy Stock Option Plan is designed to align 
executive compensation with shareholder interests. 
Under the Stock Option Plan, incentive and 
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights 
(^^SARs"), and SARs In tandem with stock options 
may be granted to key employees, officers, and outside 
directors. The activity under this plan has predomi­
nantly consisted of the issuance of stock options. 
Options are granted at the fair market value of the 
shares on the date of grant. Options generally vest 
over five years at a rate of 20% per year and expire 
10 years from the date of grant. The total number of 
shares of common stock available under the Stock 
Option Plan may not exceed 5,000,000 shares. No 
stock options may be granted under the plan after 
October 24, 2004. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Stock Option Plan activity for 1998, 1997, and 1996 is summarized as follows: 

1998 1997 1996 

Number 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price Number 

Weighted Weighted 

Average Average 

Exercise Exercise 

Price Number Price 

Outstanding, beginning of year 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited 

2 954 475 $23.79 3 334 637 $23.57 3 653 085 $22.47 

480 000 
(430 961) 
(100 000) 

Outstanding, end of year 2 903 514 

Exercisable, end of year 

Weighted average fair value of options 

granted during the year 

1 535 514 

36.88 
21.62 
26.92 

$26.17 

$23.61 

(380 162) 

2 954 475 

1 389 975 

21.71 

$23.79 

$22.58 

220 000 
(513 448) 
(25 000) 

3 334 637 

1 131 637 

29.75 
18.16 

$23.57 

$21.34 

$4.53 $3.07 

The fair values of options granted were estimated 
as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. The weighted averages for the assump­
tions used in determining the fair values of options 
granted in 1998 and 1996 (no options were granted 
during 1997), were as follows: 

1998 1996 

Risk-free interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 

Expected lives 
Expected common stock variance 

5.6% 

4.8% 

6.5 yrs. 

2.0% 

6.3% 

5.8% 

6.5 yrs. 

1.8% 

Price ranges, along with certain other informa­
tion, for options outstanding under the Stock Option 
Plan at December 31 , 1998, are as follows: 

Outstanding Exercisable 

Exercise 
Price Range 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Number Price 

Weighted 
Average 

Contractual 
Life 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Number Price 

$13.15-$17.35 99 638 
$22.88-$25.19 2 034 213 
$28.44-$36.88 769 663 

$15.35 
$23.61 
$29.15 

1.1 yrs. 
6.0 yrs. 
7.1 yrs. 

99 638 $15.35 
1 286 223 $23.73 
149 663 $34.00 

(2tt; P S P 

Cinergy's PSP is a long-term incentive plan developed 
to reward officers and other key employees for 
achieving corporate and individual goals. Under the 
PSP, participants are granted contingent shares of 
common stock. A percentage of these contingent 
shares is earned with respect to each participant 
based on the level of goal attainment at the comple­
tion of a performance cycle. Performance cycles 
consist of overlapping four-year periods, beginning 
every two years. Awards earned under the PSP are 

paid in two installments: one-half of the award is paid 
in the year immediately following the end of the 
performance cycle and one-half of the award is paid in 
the subsequent year. The most recently commenced 
four-year performance cycle under the PSP began 
January 1, 1996, and was scheduled to end Decem­
ber 31 , 1999. As previously discussed, Cinergy imple­
mented the LTIP effective January 1, 1997, and 
ceased accrual of incentive compensation under the 
PSP as of December 31 , 1996. The total number of 
shares of common stock available under this plan may 
not exceed 800,000 shares. Final payouts for perform­
ance cycle four that began January 1, 1992, were 
made in 1997. Final payouts for cycles five and six, 
which began in January 1994 and January 1996, 
respectively, will be made in 1999. 

The following table provides certain information 
regarding contingent shares granted under the PSP 
for the performance cycle which began January 1, 
1996: 

1996 

166 280 
$3 508 
$24.47 

Number of contingent shares granted 

Fair value at date of grant (dollars in thousands) 
Weighted average per share amounts 

The fair values of contingent shares and the 
weighted average per share amounts are measured at 
the market price of a share of common stock as if it 
were vested and issued on the date of grant, adjusted 
for expected forfeitures and the estimated present 
value of dividends foregone during the related perform­
ance cycle. 
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(iv) Employee Stock Purchase and Saving Plan 

Cinergy's Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan 
allows essentially all full-time, regular employees to 
purchase shares of common stock pursuant to a stock 
option feature- Under the Employee Stock Purchase 
and Savings Plan, after-tax funds are withheld from a 
participant's compensation during a 26-month offering 
period and are deposited in an interest-bearing 
account. At the end of the offering period, partici­
pants may apply amounts deposited in the account, 
plus interest, toward the purchase of shares of 
common stock at a purchase price equal to the fair 
market value of a share of common stock on the first 
date of the offering period, less 5%. Any funds not 
applied toward the purchase of shares are returned to 
the participant. A participant may elect to terminate 

participation in the plan at any time. Participation 
also will terminate if the participant's employment 
with Cinergy ceases. Upon termination of participa­
tion, all funds. Including interest, are returned to the 
participant without penalty. The current offering 
period began January 1, 1997, and ended Febru­
ary 28, 1999. The purchase price for all shares under 
this offering Is $31.83. The previous offering period 
ended December 31 , 1996, with a purchase price of 
$21.73. The total number of shares of common stock 
available under the Employee Stock Purchase and 
Savings Plan may not exceed 2,000,000. 

Employee Stock Purchase and Savings Plan 
activity for 1998, 1997, and 1996 is summarized as 
follows: 

1998 1997 1996 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Number Price 

Weighted 

Average 

Exercise 

(dumber Price 

Weighted 

Average 

Exercise 

Number Price 

Outstanding, beginning of year 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited 

326 367 

(3 342) 
(25 651) 

$31.83 
31.83 
31.83 
31.83 

490 787 $21.73 
338 947 

(95) 
(12 485) 

31.83 
31.83 
31.83 

(414 284) 

(76 503) 
21.73 
21.73 

Outstanding, end of year 297 374 $31.83 326 367 $31.83 

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the 

year $3.08 

The fair values of options granted were estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model. The weighted averages for the assumptions used in determining the fair values of options granted were as 
follows: 

1997 

Risk-free interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 
Expected lives 
Expected common stock variance 

5.9% 
5.4% 
2.0 yrs. 
1.6% 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARIES 

(a) SCHEDULE OF CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK 

(dollars in thousands) December 31 1998 

Total 20 717 

C-33 

PSI Not subject to mandatory redemption Par value $25 per share-authorized 5,000,000 shares-outstanding 

4.32% Series 169,161 shares in 1998 and 1997 4 229 

4.16% Series 148,763 shares in 1998 and 1997 3 719 

7.44% Series 3,408,712 shares in 1997 

Par value $100 per share-authorized 5,000,000 shares-outstanding 

31/2% Series 39,748 shares in 1998 and 40,302 shares in 1997 3 975 

6%% Series 600,000 shares in 1998 and 1997 60 000 

Total 
Total-Clnergy 

Total not subject to mandatory redemption 

(b) CHANGES IN CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK OUTSTANDING 

(dollars in thousands) 

1998 Not Subject to Mandatary Redemption Par value $100 per share 
CG&E 4V4% Series 

PSI 3^2% Series 
Par value $25 per share 

PSI 7.44% Series 

1997 Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption Par value $100 per share 

1996 Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption 

Subject to Mandatory Redemption 

CG&E 

PSI 

Par value 

PSI 

4 % 

4 % % 

7.15% 
3^/4% 

$25 per 
4 .32% 

Series 

Series 
Series 

Series 

share 
Series 

Par value $100 per share 
CG&E 

PSI 
Par value 

PSI 
Par value 

CG&E 

4 % 

4^4% 

3y3% 
$25 per 
7.44% 

Series 

Series 
Series 
share 

Series 

$100 per share 
7y3% 

7 H % 
Series 

Series 

71923 

$92 640 

1997 

CG&E Not subject to mandatory redemption Par value $100 per share-authorized 6,000,000 shares-outstanding 

4 % Series 169,834 shares in 1998 and 1997 $16 983 $ 16 983 

4y->% Series 37,335 shares in 1998 and 38,096 shares in 1997 3 734 3 810 

20 793 

4 229 
3 719 
85 218 

4 030 
60 000 

157 196 

$177 989 

Shares 

Retired 

761 

554 

3 40ft 712 

1 
3 525 

158 640 

265 

Par 
Value 

$ 76 
55 

85 218 

$ 1 
352 

15 864 

26 

100 165 

88 379 
276 

591 288 

800 000 
800 000 

$10 016 

8 838 
29 

14 782 

$80 000 
80 000 
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During the third quarter of 1996, Cinergy com­
menced an offer to purchase any and all outstanding 
shares of preferred stocl< of CG&E. Cinergy purchased 
1,788,544 shares of preferred stock, made a capital 
contribution to CG&E of all the shares, 
subsequently canceled the shares 
quiring the preferred stocl<, tota 

and CG&E 
. The cost of reac-
ing $1£ million, 

represents the difference between the par value of the 

4. LONG-TERM DEBT 

preferred stock purchased and the price paid ( 
ing fees paid to tender agents) and is reflected 
charge to ''Retained Earnings" 

nclud-
asa 

in the Consolidated 
Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity and 
as a deduction from '*Wet Income" in the Consoli­
dated Statements of Income for purposes of determin-
ing net income and EPS applicable to common stock. 

(a) SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT (EXCLUDING AMOUNTS REFLECTED IN 
LIABILITIES) 

(dollars in thousands) 

Cinergy Other Long-term Debt 

Unamortized Discount 

Global Resources 
Other Long-term Debt 

Unamortized Premium 
and Discount-Met 

CG&E and Subsidiaries 

CG&E First Mortgage Bonds 

Pollution Control Notes 

Other Long-term Debt 

Unamortized Premium 
and Discount-Net 

6.53% 

6.20% 

Other 

5.80% 
7Va% 
7ya% 

7y.% 

6.45% 

By2% 

7.20% 

5,45% 

5y2% 

6.50% 

6.40% 

6.90% 

8.28% 
6.35% 

December 31 

Debentures due December 16, 2008 

Total-Cinergy 

Debentures due November 3, 2008 

Total Other Long-term Debt 

Total-Global Resources 

Series due February 15, 1999 

Series due May 1, 1999 

Series due November 1 , 2001 
Series due September 1, 2002 

Series due February 15, 2004 
Series due September 1, 2022 

Series due October 1, 2023 
Series due January 1, 2024 (Pollution Control) 

Series due January 1, 2024 (Pollution Control) 

Total First Mortgage Bonds 

due November 15, 2022 
Variable rate Liquid Asset Notes with Coupon 

Exchange ("LANCEs") due October 1, 2007 
(Redeemable at the option of CG&E) 
(Variable interest rate sets at 6.50% commencing 
October 1, 1999) 

(Holders of not less than 66^A% In an aggregate 
principal amount of the LANCEs have the one-time 
right to convert from the 6.50% fixed rate to a 
London Interbank Offered Rate C'i lBOR")-based 
floating rate at any Interest rate payment date 

between October 1, 1999 and October 1, 2002) 
Debentures due April 1 , 2008 

Debentures due June 1 , 2025 
(Redeemable at the option of the holders on 
June 1 , 2005) 

Junior Subordinated Debentures due July 1, 2025 
Debentures due June 15, 2038 

Total Other Long-term Debt 

Total-CG&E 

CURRENT 

1998 

$ 200 000 $ 
(87) 

199 913 

150 000 
9 443 

159 443 

(326) 

159 117 

-
-
_ 

100 000 
110 000 

-
300 000 
46 700 
48 000 

604 700 
12 721 

100 000 
100 000 

150 000 
100 000 
100 000 

550 000 

(3 396) 

1 164 025 

1997 

-
-
_ 

-
-
-

-
_ 

110 000 
50 000 

60 000 

100 000 

110 000 
100 000 

300 000 
46 700 

48 000 

924 700 

12 721 

100 000 

-

150 000 

100 000 

-

350 000 

(8 860) 

L 278 561 

C-34 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(a) SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT (EXCLUDING AMOUNTS REFLECTED IN 
LIABILITIES)-CONTINUED 

(dollars in thousands) December 31 

ULH&P First Mortgage Bonds 6y2% Series due August 1, 1999 

8% Series due October 1, 2003 

Total First Mortgage Bonds 

Other Long-term Debt 6 . 1 1 % Debentures due December 8, 2003 
6.50% Debentures due April 30, 2008 

7.65% Debentures due July 15, 2025 

Total Other Long-term Debt 

Unamortized Premium 

and Discount-Net 

Tota l -ULH&P 
Lawrenceburg Gas 

Company First Mortgage Bonds 9y4% Series due October 1, 2001 

Total-CG&E and Subsidiaries 

First Mortgage 

PSI Bonds Series S, 7%, due January 1, 2002 

Series Y, 7Va%, due January 1 , 2007 

Series QQ, 8^1%, due June 15, 2013 (Pollution Control) 
Series TT, 7yfl%, due March 15, 2012 (Pollution Control) 

Series UU, 7y2%, due March 15, 2015 (Pollution Control) 
Series YY, 5.60%, due February 15, 2023 (Pollution Control) 

Series ZZ, 5^^%, due February 15, 2028 (Pollution Control) 
Series AAA, 7ya%, due February 1, 2024 

Total First Mortgage Bonds 
Secured 

Medium-term 
Notes Series A, 7.15% to 8.88%, due January 6, 1999 to June 1, 2022 

Series B, 5.22% to 8.26%, due September 19, 2000 to August 22, 2022 
(Series A and B, 7.83% weighted average interest rate 
and 14 year weighted average remaining life) 

Total Secured Medium-term Motes 
Other Long-

term Debt Series 1994A Promissory Note, non-interest bearing, due January 3, 20Q1 

6.35% Debentures due November 15, 2006 (Redeemable in 

whole or In part at the option of the holders on 
November 15, 2000) 

6.00% Debentures due December 14, 2016 (Redeemable In 

whole or in part at the option of the holders on 
December 14, 2001) 

6.50% Synthetic Putable Yield Securities due August 1, 2026 
7.25% Junior Maturing Principal Securities due March 15, 

2028 
6.00% Rural Utilities Service ("RUS") Obligation payable in 

annual installments 

Total Other Long-term Debt 

Unamortized Premium 

and Discount-Net 

Total -PSI 

Total-Cinergy and Subsidiaries 

Total-Cinergy Corp. 
Consolidated 

First Mortgage Bonds 
Secured Medium-term Notes 

Pollution Control Motes 

Other Long-term Debt 
Unamortized Premium and Discount-Net 

Total Long-term Debt 

CURRENT 

1998 

-
-
-

20 000 
20 000 
15 000 
Tsdod^ 

(447) 

54 553 

1200 
1 219 778 

-
-
-

10 000 
14 250 
29 945 
50 000 
50 000 

154 195 

284 000 
195 000 

479 000 

19 825 

100 000 

50 000 
50 000 

100 000 

85 620 

405 445 

(12 981) 

1 025 659 

$2 604 467 

$ 760 095 
479 000 
12 721 

1 369 888 
(17 237) 

$2 604 467 

1997 

20 000 

10 000 

30 000 

-
-

15 000 

15 000 

(329) 

44 671 

1 200 

1 324 432 

26 429 

24 140 
23 000 

10 000 

14 250 

29 945 

50 000 
50 000 

227 764 

290 000 

195 000 

485 000 

19 825 

100 000 

_ 
-

-

-
119 825 

(6 119) 

826 470 

$2 150 902 

$1 183 664 

485 000 
12 721 

484 825 
(15 303) 

$2 150 902 
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(t)) MANDATORY REDEMPTION AND OTHER REOUIREMENTS 

Long-term debt maturities for the next five years (excluding callable and/or putable debt) are as follows: 

(in millions) 
Mandatory 

Redemptions 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

$137 
32 
40 
124 
77 

$410 

iVIaintenance and replacement fund provisions contained in PSI's first mortgage bond indenture require cash 
payments, bond retirements^ or pledges of unfunded property additions each year based on an amount related to 
PSI's net revenues. 

5. NOTES PAYABLE AND OTHER SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Notes payable and other short-term obligations and v /̂eighted average interest rates were as follows: 

(in millions) 

Cinergy 

Committed lines 

Acquisition line 

Revolving line 

Commercial paper 

Uncommitted lines 

Utility subsidiaries 

Committed lines 

Uncommitted lines 

Pollution contcol notes 

Non-utility subsidiary 

Total 

December 31,1998 

Established 
Lines 

$ 160 
600 

-
45 

300 
410 
267 
138 

Outstanding 

$160 
245 
50 
50* 

_ 
95 

267 
37 

Weighted 
Average 

Rate 

5.61% 
5.68 
5.78 
5.84 

_ 
5.90 
3.83 

13.11 

December 31, 1997 

Established 
Lines 

$ 350 
400 

-
-

270 
360 
244 
115 

Outstanding 

$ 350 
89 

161 
-

30 
206 
244 
34 

Weighted 
Average 

Rate 

6.25% 
6.27 
6.19 

-

6.09 
6.19 
4.08 
7.20 

$1920 $904 5.20% $1 739 $1 114 5.78% 

Excess over Established Line represents amount sold by dealers to other investors. 

Cinergy and its utility subsidiaries have arranged 
committed lines (''unsecured lines of credit")/ as well 
as uncommitted lines (short-term borrowings on an 
''as offered" basis) with various banks. The estab­
lished committed lines include $106 million designated 
as backup for certain of the uncommitted lines at 
December 31 , 1998. Further, the committed lines are 
maintained by commitment fees, which were immate­
rial during the 1996 through 1998 period. 

Cinergy's committed lines are comprised of an 
acquisition line and a revolving line. The established 
revolving line also provides credit support for 
Cinergy's commercial paper program, which is limited 
to a maximum outstanding principal amount of 
$400 million. The proceeds from the commercial 
paper sales were used for genera! corporate purposes. 
Pf̂ oceeds from the sale of Cinergy's 6.53% debentures 
were used to reduce the acquisition line to the 
year-end level of $160 million. 

Global Resources established a $100 million 
revolving credit agreement in 1998, which is due to 
expire in March 1999. 

CG&E and PSI also have the capacity to issue 
commercial paper that must be supported by commit­
ted lines of the respective company. Neither CG&E 
nor PSI issued commercial paper in 1998 or 1997. 

Amounts outstanding under the committed lines 
for Cinergy, the utility subsidiaries, and the non-utility 
subsidiary would become immediately due upon an 
event of default, which includes non-payment, default 
under other agreements governing company indebted­
ness, banl<ruptcy, or insolvency. Certain of the uncom­
mitted lines have similar default provisions. 

Both CG&E and PSI have issued variable rate 
pollution control notes. Holders of these pollution 
control notes have the right to put their notes on any 
business day. Accordingly, these issuances are reflected 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as "Notes payable 
and other short-term obligations." 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. SALE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

In 1996, CG&E, PSI, and ULH&P entered into an 
agreement to sell, on a revolving basis, undivided 
percentage interests in certain of their accounts 
receivable up to an aggregate maximum of $350 mil­
lion. As of December 31 , 1998, $253 million, net of 
reserves, has been sold. The Consolidated Balance 
Sheets are net of the amounts sold at December 31, 
1998 and 1997. 

7. LEASES 

(a) OPERATING LEASES 

Cinergy and its subsidiaries have entered into operat­
ing lease agreements covering various facilities and 
properties, including computer, communications, and 
transportation equipment and office space. Total 
rental payments on operating leases were $42 million 
for 1998, $36 million for 1997, and $31 million for 
1996. 

Future minimum lease payments required under 
operating leases with remaining, non-cancelable lease 
terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 1998, 
are as follows: 

(in millions) 
Minimum 

Payments 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
After 2003 

$ 38 
31 
22 
14 
10 
36 

Total $151 

(b) CAPITAL LEASE 

In 1996, CG&E entered into a sale-leaseback agree­
ment for certain equipment at Woodsdale Generating 
Station. The lease Is a capital lease with an initial 
lease term of five years. At the end of the initial lease 
term, the lease may be renewed at mutually agreed 
upon terms or the equipment may be repurchased by 
CG&E at the original sale amount. The monthly lease 
payment, comprised of interest only, is based on the 
applicable LIBOR and, therefore, the capital lease 
obligation will not be amortized over the initial lease 
term. The property under the capital lease is depreci­
ated at the same rate as if the property were still 
owned by CG&E. CG&E recorded a capital lease 
obligation, included in Non-Current Liabilities, of 
$22 million, which represented the net book value of 
the equipment at the beginning of the lease. 

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(a) FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES 

Cinergy has entered into financial derivative contracts 
for the purposes described below. 

(i) Foreign Exchange Hedging Activity 

Cinergy has hedged its pound sterling denominated 
investment in Midlands through a currency swap. The 
currency swap requires Cinergy to exchange a series of 
pound sterling denominated cash flows for a series of 
dollar denominated cash flows based on Cinergy's 
initial exchange of $500 million for 330 million 
pounds sterling. Cinergy has also hedged certain of its 
net investments in the Czech Republic utilizing foreign 
exchange forward contracts. Translation gains and 
losses related to the forward foreign exchange con­
tracts and the principal exchange on the currency 
swap have primarily been recorded In '^Accumulated 
other comprehensive loss", which is reported as a 
separate component of common stock equity in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31 , 
1998, aggregate translation losses of approximately 
$49 million, related to the foreign exchange forward 
contracts and the principal exchange of the currency 
swap, have been reflected in Current Liabilities in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31 , 1998, 
the fair value of these contracts was approximately 
$(66) million. 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk Management 

Cinergy and its subsidiaries enter into interest rate 
swaps to lower funding costs and manage exposures to 
fluctuations in interest rates. Under these interest rate 
swaps, Cinergy and its subsidiaries agree with 
counterparties to exchange, at specified intervals, the 
difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest 
amounts calculated on an agreed notional principal 
amount. Cinergy has effectively fixed the interest rate 
applicable to the pound sterling denominated leg of its 
currency swap for its remaining term through an 
interest rate swap agreement. This contract requires 
Cinergy to pay a fixed rate and receive a floating rate. 
This contract has a total notional principal amount of 
280 million pounds sterling. Translation gains and 
losses related to Cinergy's interest obligation, which is 
payable in pounds sterling, are recognized as a 
component of interest expense in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. The fair value of this interest 
rate swap agreement at December 31 , 1998, was 
approximately $(19) million. 

At December 31, 1998, CG&E had an interest 
rate swap agreement outstanding related to its sale of 
accounts receivable. The contract has a notional 
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^ 
amount of $100 million and requires CG&E to pay a 
fixed rate and receive a floating rate. PSI had three 
Interest rate swap agreements outstanding with no­
tional amounts of $100 million each. One contract, 
with two years remaining of a four-year term, requires 
PSI to pay a floating rate and receive a fixed rate. 
The other two contracts, with six-month terms, 
require PSI to pay a fixed rate and receive a floating 
rate. The floating rate Is based on applicable LIBOR. 
At December 31 , 1998, the fair values of these 
interest rate swap agreements were not significant. 

(b) FAIR VALUE OF OTHER 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The estimated fair values of Cinergy's and its subsidi­
aries' other financial instruments were as follows (this 
information does not purport to be a valuation of the 
companies as a whole): 

(in millions) 

Financial instruments 

First mortgage bonds and 
other long-term debt 

(includes amounts 

reflected as long-term 
debt due within one year) 

December 31, 

1998 

Carrying Fair 

Amount Value 

$2 740 $2 934 

December 31 , 

1997 

Carrying Fair 
Amount Value 

$2 236 $2 337 

The following methods and assumptions were used 
to estimate the fair values of each major class of 
financial instruments: 

Caih and Thnporary Cash Investments, Restricted 
Deposits, and Motes Payable and Other Shorl-Ierm Obligations 
Due to the short period to maturity, the carrying 
amounts reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
approximate fair values. 

First Mortgage Bonds and Other Lang-lerm Debt The 
fair values of long-term debt Issues were estimated 
based on the latest quoted market prices or, if not 
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, on the 
present value of future cash flows. The discount rates 
used approximate the incremental borrowing costs for 
similar instruments. 

(c) CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk represents the risk of loss which would 
occur as a result of nonperformance by counterparties 
pursuant to the terms of their contractual obligations 
with the Company. Concentrations of credit risk relate 
to significant customers or counterparties, or groups 
of customers or counterparties, possessing similar 
economic or industry characteristics that would cause 

their ability to meet contractual obligations to be 
similarly affected by changes in economic or other 
conditions. 

Concentration of credit risk with respect to the 
ESBU's trade accounts receivable from electric and 
gas retail customers is limited due to the large 
number of customers and diversified customer base of 
residential, commercial, and industrial customers. 
Contracts within the physical power poi'tfotio of the 
ECBU's power marketing and trading operations are 
primarily with traditional electric cooperatives and 
municipalities and other investor-owned utilities. 

Contracts within the trading portfolio of the power 
marketing and trading operations are primarily with 
power marketers and other investor-owned utilities. As 
of December 31 , 1998, approximately 73% of the 
activity within the trading portfolio represents commit­
ments with 10 counterparties. The majority of these 
contracts are for terms of one year or less. As a result 
of the extreme volatility experienced in the Midwest 
power markets during 1998, several new entrants into 
the market began experiencing financial difficulties 
and failed to perform their contractual obligations. As 
a result, the bad debt provisions of approximately 
$13 million with respect to settled transactions were 
recorded during the year. Counterparty credit exposure 
within the power trading portfolio is routinely factored 
into the mark-to-market valuation. At December 31 , 
1998, credit exposure within the power trading portfo­
lio is not believed to be significant. Prior to 1998, 
credit exposure due to nonperformance by counterpar­
ties was not significant. As the competitive electric 
power market continues to develop, counterparties will 
increasingly include new market entrants, such as 
other power marketers, brokers, and commodity trad­
ers. This Increased level of new market entrants, as 
well as competitive pressures on existing market 
participants, could increase the ECBU's exposure to 
credit risk with respect to its power marketing and 
trading operation. As of December 31, 1998, approxi­
mately 37% of the activity within the ECBU's 
physical gas marketing and trading portfolio repre­
sents commitments with 10 counterparties. Credit risk 
losses related to the ECBU's gas and other commodity 
physical and trading operations have not been signifi­
cant. Based on the types of counterparties and 
customers with which transactions are executed, credit 
exposure within the gas and other commodity trading 
portfolios Is not believed to be significant. 

Potential exposure to credit risk also exists from 
Cinergy's use of financial derivatives such as currency 
swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts, and inter­
est rate swaps. Because these financial instruments 
are transacted only with highly rated financial institu­
tions, Cinergy does not anticipate nonperformance by 
any of the counterparties. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9. PENSION AND OTHER 
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Cinergy's defined benefit pension plans cover substan­
tially all US employees meeting certain minimum age 
and service requirements. Plan benefits are determined 
under a final average pay formula with consideration 
of years of participation, age at retirement, and the 
applicable average Social Security wage base or 
benefit amount. 

Effective January 1, 1998, Cinergy reconfigured 
Its defined benefit pension plans. The reconfigured 
plans cover the same employees as the previous plans 
and established a uniform final average pay formula 
for all employees. The reconfiguration of the pension 
plans did not have a significant impact on the 
Company's financial condition or results of operations. 

Cinergy's pension plan funding policy for US 
employees is to contribute annually an amount which 
is not less than the minimum amount required by the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 

and not more than the maximum amount deductible 
for income tax purposes. The pension plans' assets 
consist of investments in equity and fixed income 
securities. 

Cinergy provides certain health care and life 
insurance benefits to retired US employees and their 
eligible dependents, if the retiree has met minimum 
age and service requirements. The health care benefits 
include medical coverage, dental coverage, and pre­
scription drugs and are subject to certain limitations, 
such as deductibles and co-payments. Prior to Janu­
ary 1, 1997, CG&E and PSI employees were covered 
under separate plans. Effective January 1, 1997, all 
Cinergy active US employees are eligible to receive 
essentially the same postretirement health care bene­
fits. Certain classes of employees, based on age, as 
well as all retirees, have been grandfathered under 
benefit provisions in place prior to January 1, 1997. 
CG&E does not pre-fund its obligations for these 
postretirement benefits. PSI is pre-fundlng its obliga­
tions as authorized by the lURC. 

Cinergy's benefit plans' cost for 1998, 1997, and 1996 included the following components: 

Pension 

Benefits 

Other 

Postretirement 

Benefits 

(in millions) 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996 

Service cost 

Interest cost 
Expected return on plans' assets 

Amortization of transition obligation/Casset) 

Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuarial loss 

$21.8 
71.6 

(66.9) 
(1.3) 
4.4 

$19.8 
67.8 

C62.8) 
(1.3) 
4.4 
(.3) 

$21.2 
61.6 

(61.2) 
(1.3) 
4.5 
(.3) 

$ 4.1 
16.1 

5.0 

; 3.1 
16.3 

5.0 

; 5.8 
18.7 

8.4 

.3 

Net periodic benefit cost $29.6 $27.6 $24.5 $25.6 $24.7 $33.2 

During 1996, CG&E and its subsidiaries (including ULH&P) recognized an additional $31 million of accrued 
pension cost in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 88, Employers' Accounting for 
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits C^̂ Statement 88"). 
Additionally, during 1996, PSI recognized an additional $30 million of accrued pension cost in accordance with 
Statement 88. These amounts represent the costs associated with additional benefits extended in connection with 
voluntary workforce reduction programs. 

Pension 

Benefits 

Otiier 

Postretirement 

Benefits 

Cin millions) 1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 1996 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount rate 

Rate of future compensation increase 
Rate of return on plans' assets 

6.75% 
3.75% 
9.00% 

7.5% 
4.5% 
9.0% 

8.0% 
5.0% 
9.0% 

6.75% 
n/a 
n/a 

7.5% 

n/a 

n/a 

8.0% 
n/a 
n/a 

For measurement purposes, a 7% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care 
benefits was assumed for 1999. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5% for 2004 and remain at that 
level thereafter. 
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' benefit obligations and fair value of 
assets over the two-year period ended December 31, 1998, and a statement of the funded status as of 
December 31 of both years. 

Pension Benefits 

Other 

Postretirement 

Benefits 

(in millions) 1998 1997 1998 1997 

Change in benefit obligation 

Benefit obligation at beginning of period 

Service cost 
Interest cost 

Amendments 
Actuarial gain 

Benefits paid 

$960.3 
21.8 
71.6 

1.0 
53.6 

(56.2) 

877.4 $221.9 $ 211.0 
19.8 
67.8 

65.4 
(70.1) 

4.1 

16.1 

17.4 
(13.0) 

3.1 
16.3 

3.7 
(12.2) 

Benefit obligation at end of period 1 052.1 960.3 246.5 221.9 

Change in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contribution 
Benefits paid 

sea.i 
9.9 

23.5 

(56.2) 

764.1 
186.6 

7.5 
C70.1) 

13.0 
(13.0) 

12.2 
(12.2) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 865.3 888.1 

Funded status 

Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain)/los5 
Unrecagnlzed net plan assets 

(186.8) (72.2) 
43.3 46.6 

(24.1) C134.6) 
(7.1) (8.5) 

(246.5) (221.9) 

40.3 
65.8 

22.6 

70.9 

Accrued benefit cost at December 31 $(174.7) $(168.7) $(140.4) $(128.4) 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a 
significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in 
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the 
following effects: 

(in millions) 

•Percentage-

Point 

Increase 

1-Percentage-
Point 

Decrease 

Effect on total of service and 

Interest cost components $ 2.8 $(2.4) 

Effect on postretirement benefit 

obligation 26.7 (23.7) 

In addition, the Company sponsors non-qualified 
pension plans that cover officers, certain other key 
employees, and non-employee directors. Cinergy's 
non-qualified pension plans are not currently funded. 
Cinergy may begin to fund certain of these plans 
through a rabbi trust in 1999. 

The pension benefit obligations and pension ex­
pense under these plans were: 

(in millions) 1998 1997 

Pension benefit obligations 

Pension expense 

$31.4 
4.5 

$24.6 
4.1 
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10. INVESTMENTS IN 
UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

Except for Cinergy's 50% investment in Avon Energy 
Partners Holdings ("Avon Energy"), which holds 
Midlands Electricity pic (''Midlands''), investments in 
unconsolidated subsidiaries are not significant. 

Summarized financial information for Avon 
Energy Is as follows: 

(In millions) 
December 31 

1998 1997 

Assets 
Current assets 
Property, plant, and equipment 
Other assets 

$ 568 $ 676 
1 974 1 890 
2 111 2 148 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Other liabilities 
Long-term debt 
Total common shareholders' equity 

$4 653 $4 714 

$1 639 $2 175 
1 8% 1 533 
1 118 1 006 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 

Cinergy's investments In unconsolidated 
subsidiaries: 
Avon Energy 
Other companies 

$4 653 $4 714 

$ 556 $ 505 
18 33 

Total investments in unconsolidated 
subsidiaries 

(in millions) 

$ 574 $ 538 

December 31 
1998 1997 1996 

Operating revenues 

Net income before extraordinary 
item 

Extraordinary item-windfall profits 

tax (less applicable income taxes 
of $0) 

Net Income (loss) 
Cinergy's equity in earnings of 

Avon Energy before 

extraordinary item 
Cinergy's equity in extraordinary 

Item 

Cinergy's equity in earnings of: 
Avon Energy 

Other companies 

$2 406 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

105 

-
105 

57 

-

57 

(6) 

$2 176 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

127 

(219) 
(92) 

63 

(109) 

(46) 

(3) 

$1 132 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

50 

-
50 

25 

-

25 

-
Total equity in the earnings of 

unconsolidated subsidiaries $ 51 $ (49) $ 25 

During 1997 Cinergy received $25 million of 
dividends from Avon Energy. 

In November 1998, Midlands announced the sale 
of its electric supply business to National Power PLC 
(''National Power"). National Power will acquire all 
of the assets of Midlands' supply business and assume 
its liabilities, including obligations under all Midlands 
power purchase agreements for approximately 
$300 million, plus an adjustment for working capital 
at financial closing. The sale is subject to approval by 
Great Britain's Department of Trade and Industry and 
Office of Electricity Regulation and is expected in the 
second quarter of 1999. Midlands will continue to 
own and operate Its distribution business as well as 
interests in various generation stations. 

11. INCOME TAXES 

The significant components of Cinergy's net deferred 
income tax liability at December 31 , 1998, and 1997, 
are as follows: 

(in millions) 1998 1997 

$1 104.2 $1 076.8 
21.2 24.4 

Deferred Income Tax Liability 
Utility plant 
Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt 
Deferred operating expenses 

and carrying costs 
Amounts due from customers-income taxes 
Deferred DSIVI costs 
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 
Other 

73.3 
121.7 
22.8 

51.0 

75.0 
129.4 

31.7 
55.0 
47.9 

Total deferred income tax liability 1 394.2 1 440.2 
Deferred Income Tax Asset 

Unamortized investment tax credits 57.0 60.5 
Accrued pension and other benefit costs 89.0 63.3 
Net energy risk management liabilities 54.5 
RUS obligations 29.5 3.8 
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 13.1 
Other 60.0 64.1 

Total deferred income tax asset 
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability 

303.1 191.7 
$1 091.1 $1 248.5 

Cinergy and its subsidiaries will participate in the 
filing of a consolidated federal income tax return for 
the year ended December 31, 1998. The current tax 
liability is allocated among the members of the group 
pursuant to a tax sharing agreement consistent with 
Rule 45(c) of the PUHCA. 
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A summary of federal and state Income taxes 
charged (credited) to income and the allocation of 
such amounts is as follows: 

(in millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Current Income Taxes 

Federal 

State 

Total current income taxes 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Federal 
Depreciation and other utility plant-

related items 

DSM costs 
Pension and other benefit costs 

Litigation settlement 
RUS obligations 

Unrealized energy risk management 

losses 

Fuel costs 

Other items-net 

Total deferred federal 
income taxes 

State 

Total deferred income taxes 

Investment Tax Credits-Net 

$209.0 
16.9 

225.9 

25.3 

(8.8) 

(3.3) 

-
(22.5) 

(49.4) 

(1.0) 
(32.0) 

(91.7) 

(7.4) 

(99.1) 

(9.6) 

$133.3 

12.1 

145.4 

26.7 

(8.5) 

.9 

1.8 

(3.5) 

(1.5) 
4.4 

54.5 

74.8 
2.4 

77.2 

(9.6) 

$143.4 

7.5 

150.9 

61.6 
(1.9) 

(28.2) 
26.2 

-

-
8.8 

(15.4) 

51.1 

6.5 

57.6 

(9.8) 

Total Income Taxes $117.2 $213.0 $198.7 

Federal income taxes, computed by applying the 
statutory federal income tax rate to book income 
before extraordinary item and federal income tax, are 
reconciled to federal Income tax expense reported in 
the Consolidated Statements of Income as follows: 

(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Statutory federal income tax provision 

Increases (Reductions) in taxes 
resulting from: 

Amortization of investment tax credits 
Depreciation and other utility plant-

related differences 

Preferred dividend requirements of 

subsidiaries 

Foreign tax adjustments 
Other-net 

$129.0 

(9.6) 

10.4 

2.3 

(20.0) 
(4.4) 

$196.4 

(9.6) 

11.7 

4.4 

C13.2) 

8.8 

$181.8 

(9.8) 

14.1 

8.5 
(11.1) 

1.2 

Federal income tax expense $107.7 $198.5 $184.7 

12. COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES 

(a) CONSTRUCTION 

Construction expenditures for the 1999 through 2003 
period are forecast to be approximately $1.7 billion. 
These forecasted amounts exclude the estimated ex­
penditures necessary to comply with the stricter 
nitrogen oxide (̂ ^NO "̂) emission control standards 
proposed by the United States Environmental Protec­
tion Agency (''EPA"). 

(b) MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT ("MGP") 
SITES 

(i) General 

Prior to the 1950s, gas was produced at MGP sites 
through a process that involved the heating of coal 
and/or oil. The gas produced from this process was 
sold for residential, commercial, and industrial uses. 

(Ii) PSI 

Coal tar residues, related hydrocarbons, and various 
metals associated with WiGP sites have been found at 
former MGP sites in Indiana, including at least 21 
MGP sites which PSI or its predecessors previously 
owned. PSI acquired four of the sites from Northern 
Indiana Public Service Company C '̂NIPSCO") in 
1931 and at the same time it sold NIPSCO the sites 
located in Goshen and Warsaw^ Indiana. In 1945, PSI 
sold 19 of these sites (including the four it acquired 
from NIPSCO) to Indiana Gas and Water Com­
pany, Inc. (now Indiana Gas Company, Inc. ("IGC"))-
One of the 19 sites, the one located in Rochester, 
Indiana, was later sold by IGC to NIPSCO. 

IGC and NIPSCO both made claims against PSI, 
contending that PSI is a Potentially Responsible Party 
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act (''CERCLA") with 
respect to the 21 MGP sites, and therefore legally 
responsible for the costs of investigating and remediat­
ing these sites. Moreover, in August 1997, NIPSCO 
filed suit against PSI In federal court, claiming, 
pursuant to CERCLA, recovery from PSI of NIP-
SCO's past and future costs of investigating and 
remediating IVIGP related contamination at the Goshen 
MGP site. 

In November 1998, NIPSCO, IGC, and PSI 
entered into a Site Participation and Cost Sharing 
Agreement by which they settled allocation of CER­
CLA liability for past and future costs, among the 
three companies, at seven MGP sites in Indiana. 
Pursuant to this agreement, NIPSCO's lawsuit against 
PSI was dismissed. The parties have assigned one of 
the parties lead responsibility for managing further 
investigation and remediation activities at each of the 
sites. Similar agreements were reached between IGC 
and PSI which allocate CERCLA liability at 14 MGP 
sites with which NIPSCO had no involvement. These 
agreements conclude all CERCLA and similar claims 
between the three companies relative to MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the agreements and applicable laws, the 
parties are continuing to investigate and remediate the 
sites as appropriate. Investigation and cleanup of 
some of the sites is subject to oversight by the Indiana 
Department of Environmental Management 
("IDEM"). 
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PSI has placed its insurance carriers on notice of 
IGC's, NIPSCO% and the IDEM's claims related to 
MGP sites. In April 1998, PSI filed suit in Hendricks 
County Circuit Court against its general liability 
insurance carriers seeking, among other matters, a 
declaratory judgment that its insurance carriers are 
obligated to defend MGP claims against PSI or pay 
PSI's costs of defense and to Indemnify PSI for Its 
costs of investigating, preventing, mitigating, and 
remediating damage to propeKy and paying claims 
associated with MGP sites. PSI cannot predict the 
outcome of this litigation. 

Based upon the work performed to date, PSI has 
accrued costs for the sites related to investigation, 
remediation, and groundwater monitoring. Estimated 
costs of certain remedial activities are accrued when 
such costs are reasonably estimable. PSI does not 
believe It can provide an estimate of the reasonably 
possible total remediation costs for any site prior to 
completion of a remedial investigation/feasibility study 
and the development of some sense of the timing for 
the implementation of the potential remedial alterna­
tives, to the extent such remediation may be required. 
Accordingly, the total costs that may be incurred in 
connection with the remediation of all sites, to the 
extent remediation is necessarŷ  cannot be determined 
at this time. These future costs at the 21 Indiana 
MGP sites, based on information currently available, 
are not material to Cinergy's financial condition or 
results of operations. However, as further investigation 
and remediation activities are undertaken at these 
sites, the potential liability for the 21 MGP sites 
could be material to Cinergy's and PSI's financial 
condition or results of operations. 

(iii) CG&E and its Utility Subsidiaries 

CG&.E and its utility subsidiaries are aware of 
potential sites where MGP activities have occurred at 

some time in the past. None of these sites is known to 
present a risk to the environment. CG&E and its 
utility subsidiaries have undertaken preliminary site 
assessments to obtain more information about some of 
these MGP sites. 

(c) OZONE TRANSPORT RULEMAKING 

In October 1998, the EPA finalized its Ozone Trans­
port Rule ("NO, SIP Call"). It applies to 22 states in 
the eastern half of the US, including the three states 
in which the Cinergy electric utilities operate. This 
rule recommends that states reduce NÔ  emissions 
from primarily industrial and utility sources to a 
certain limit by May 2003. Ohio, Indiana, a number of 
other states, and various industry groups, including 
some of which Cinergy is a member, filed legal 
challenges to the NO, SIP Call in late 1998. Ohio and 
Indiana have also provided preliminary indications that 
they will seek fewer N0>. reductions from the utility 
sector in their implementing regulations than the EPA 
has budgeted in its rulemaking. The state implement­
ing regulations will need the EPA's approval. Under 
the current provisions of the NÔ^ SIP Call, the 
estimate for compliance with the EPA limits is 
currently $500 million to $700 million (in 1998 
dollars) between .now and 2003. This estimate is 
significantly dependent on several factors, including 
the final determination regarding both the timing and 
stringency of the final required NÔ  reductions, the 
output of CG&E's and PSI's generating units, the 
availability of an adequate supply of resources to 
construct the necessary control equipment, and the 
extent to which a NO, allowance trading market 
develops, if any. 
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(d) UCH PROJECT 

Midlands (of which the Company owns 50%) has a 
40% ownership interest in a 586 megawatts ("MW") 
power project in Pakistan ("Uch project" or "Uch") 
which was originally scheduled to begin commercial 
operation in late 1998. In July 1998, the Pakistani 
government-owned utility Issued a notice of Intent to 
terminate certain key project agreements relative to 
the Uch project. The notice asserts that various forms 
of corruption were Involved in the original granting of 
the agreements to the Uch investors by a predecessor 
government. The Company believes that this notice Is 
similar to notices received by a number of other 
independent power projects in Pakistan. 

The Uch Investors, including a subsidiary of 
Midlands, strongly deny the allegations and have 
pursued all available legal options to enforce their 
contractual rights under the project agreements. Phys­
ical construction of the project is complete; however, 
commercial operations have been delayed pending 
resolution of the dispute. In December 1998, the 
Pakistani government offered to withdraw its notice. 

Through its 50% ownership of Midlands, the 
Company's current Investment in the Uch project is 
approximately $32 million. In addition, project lenders 
could require investors to make additional capital 
contributions to the project under certain conditions. 
The Company's share of these additional contributions 
Is approximately $12 million. At the present time, 
the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome 
of this matter. 

(e) EXPIRATION OF BARGAINING 
AGREEMENT 

Our collective-bargaining agreement with the Interna­
tional Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 
No. 1393, covering approximately 1,470 employees, 
will expire on May 1, 1999. Management has 
developed contingency plans for service to continue in 
the event of a work stoppage. In the unlikely event of 
a work stoppage, incremental related costs would be 
incurred, but would not be expected to have a 
material impact on operating income. 

13. JOINTLY-OWNED PLANT 

CG&E, Columbus Southern Power Company, and The 
Dayton Power and Light Company have constructed 
electric generating units and related transmission 
facilities on varying common ownership bases. PSI is 
a joint owner of Gibson Generating Station ("Gib­
son") Unit 5 with Wabash Valley Power Associa­
tion, Inc. (''WVPA") and Indiana Municipal Power 
Agency (''IMPA"). Additionally, PSI is a co-owner 
with WVPA and IMPA of certain transmission prop­
erty and local facilities. These facilities constitute part 
of the integrated transmission and distribution systems 
which are operated and maintained by PSI. The 
Consolidated Statements of Income reflect CG&E's 
and PSI's portions of all operating costs associated 
with the jointly-owned facilities. 

CG&E's and PSTs investments in jointly-owned 
plant are as follows: 

1998 

(dollars in millions) 

CG&E 

Production 
Miami Fort Station (Units 7 and 8) 
W.C. Beckjord Station (Unit 6) 
J.M. Stuart Station 
Conesville Station (Unit 4) 
William H. Zimmer Station 
East Bend Station 
Killen Station 

Transmission 

PSI 

Production 

Gibson (Unrt 5> 

Transmission and local facilities 

Share 

64.00% 

37.50 
39.00 

40.00 
46.50 

69.00 

33.00 
Various 

50.05 

94.62 

Utility Plant 

in Service 

$ 216 
41 

273 
73 

1218 

333 
187 
64 

206 
2 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

$120 

26 
128 
39 

275 
172 
91 
32 

102 
1 

Construction 

Work In 

Progress 

$4 
1 
2 
2 
5 
2 
-
1 

3 
-
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14. aUARTERLY F I N A N C I A L DATA (unaudited) 

(in millions, except per share amounts) 

Quarter Ended 

1998 
March 31 
June 30 
September 30 
December 31 

Operating 
Revenues*̂ ' 

$1348 
1168 
1976 
1384 

Operating 
Income'̂ ' 

$226 
3 Cb,dJ 

204''' 
133'" 

Net 
Income 
(Loss) 

$106 
(25) f̂ ''̂ ' 
109 '̂ ' 
71(f) 

Basic Earnings 
(Loss) Per 

Share 

$ .67 
(.16) '̂ '̂ ' 
.69 ''' 
.45 "' 

Diluted 
Earnings (Loss) 

Per Share 

$ .67 
{.16)="'̂ * 
.69 '̂ ' 
.45 "> 

Total 

1997 
March 3 i 
June 30 
September 30 
December 31 

$5 876 $566 $261 $1.65 $1.65 

$1039 
872 

1 361 
1 115 

$215 
142 
183 
226 

$114 
56 

C27) '̂̂  
110 

$ .72 
.35 

(.16) •̂''' 
.70 

$ .72 
.34 

(.17)*^' 
.70 

Total $4 387 $766 $253 $1.61 $1.59 

(a) For a discussion of the reclassification of amounts disclosed in prior reports, see Note Kb). 

(b) In the second quarter of 1998, Cinergy recorded charges of $65 million, pretax related to power marketing and trading operations which 
constitutes, after tax, $.26 per share, basic and diluted. For a discussion of the energy marketing and trading operations, see Note 1(c). 

(c) For a discussion of the windfall profits tax levied against Midlands, which was recorded In the third quarter of 1997 as an extraordinary 
item, see Note 17. Net income, basic EPS, and diluted EPS during the third quarter of 1997, before the extraordinary Item, were 
$83 million, $.53, and $.52, respectively. Total net income, basic EPS, and diluted EPS for 1997, before the extraordinary item, were 
$363 million, $2.30, and $2.28, respectively. 

(d) In the second quarter of 1998, Cinergy, through PSI, recorded a charge against earnings of $80 million ($50 million after tax or $.32 per 
share basic and diluted) for a settlement related to the Marble Hill nuclear project. For a discussion of this settlement, see Note 18. 

(e) In the third quarter of 1998, Cinergy recorded charges of $20 million, pretax related to power marketing and trading operations which 
constitutes, after tax, $.08 per share, basic and diluted. For a discussion of the energy marketing and trading operations, see Note 1(c). 

(f) In the fourth quarter of 1998, Cinergy recorded charges of $50 million, pretax related to power marketing and trading operations which 
constitutes, after tax, $.20 per share, basic and diluted. For a discussion of the energy marketing and trading operations, see Note 1(c). 

15. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
BUSINESS SEGMENT 

BY 

During 1998^ Cinergy and its subsidiaries adopted the 
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Stan­
dards IMo. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an 
Enterprise and Related Information (''Statement 
131''). Statement 131 requires disclosure about 
reportable operating segments in annual and interim 
condensed financial statements. These operating seg­
ments are based on products and services, geography, 
legal structure, management structure or any manner 
in which management disaggregates a company. 

Cinergy's reportable segments are strategic busi­
ness units which were formed during the second half 
of 1996 and began operating as separately identifiable 
business units in 1997. Each business unit has its own 
management structure, headed by a business unit 
president who reports directly to the chief executive 
officer of Cinergy. Each business unit and their 

responsibilities as of December 31 , 1998, is described 
in detail below. 

The ECBU operates and maintains, exclusive of 
certain jointly-owned plant, all of the Company's 
domestic electric generation facilities. In addition to 
the production of electric power, all energy risk 
management, marketing, and proprietary arbitrage 
trading, with the exception of electric and gas retail 
sales, is conducted through the ECBU. Revenues from 
external customers are derived from the ECBU's 
marketing, trading, and risk management activities. 
Intersegment revenues are derived from the sale of 
electric power to the ESBU. 

The EDBU plans, constructs^ operates, and main­
tains the Company's transmission and distribution 
systems. Revenues from customers other than 
end-users are primarily derived from the transmission 
of electric power through the Company's transmission 
system. Intersegment revenues are derived from sale 
of electric and gas transmission and distribution 
services to the ESBU. 
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The ESBU provides gas and electric energy as 
well as gas supply risk management services to 
end-users. The ESBU also manages the development 
and the sales and marketing of new end-use energy-
related products and services. All of the ESBU's 
revenues are derived from the sales of such services 
and products to external customers. All electric energy 
sold to end-users is purchased from the ECBU. In 
addition to energy-related products and services, the 
ESBU also sells other end-use products and services, 
such as telephone services, through joint-venture affili­
ates. Other products and services offered through 
joint-venture affiliates include the construction and 

sale or lease of cogeneration and trigeneration facili­
ties to large commercial/industrial customers and 
energy management services to third parties. 

The IBU directs and manages all of the Com­
pany's international business holdings, which include 
wholly-owned subsidiaries and equity investments. Rev­
enues and equity earnings from unconsolidated compa­
nies are primarily derived from energy-related 
businesses. 

Transfer pricing for sales of electric energy and 
sales of electric and gas transmission and distribution 
services between the ECBU, ESBU, and EDBU are 
derived from the operating utilities' retail and whole­
sale rate structures. 

The following financial information by business unit, product and service, and geographic area for the years 
ending December 31 , 1998, 1997, and 1996, is as follows: 

BUSINESS UNITS 

(In millions) 

1998 

Operating Revenues-External 
Customers 

Intersegment Revenues 

Depreciation and Amortization'^) 

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated 
Subsidiaries 

Interest Expense (net)'^^ 

Income Taxes 

Segment Profit (Loss) 

Total Segment Assets 
Investments in Unconsolidated 

Subsidiaries 

Total Expenditures for Long-Lived 

Assets 

ECBU 

$2 726 
1 7 8 2 

197 

(1) 
95 
-

151 
5 476 

-

109 

Cinergy Business Units 

EDBU 

$ 34 

724 
123 

-
88 
-

225 
3 754 

-

227 

ESBU 

$3107 

-
4 

(4) 
3 
_ 
4 

275 

8 

17 

IBU 

$ 9 

-
2 

56 
51 
_ 

16 
751 

566 

-

Total 

$ 5 876 
2 506 

326 

51 
237 

_ 
396 

10 256 

574 

353 

All 
Other<" 

$ -
-
-

_ 
7 

117 
(135) 

43 

-

17 

Reconciling 
Eliminations'^) 

$ -
(2 506) 

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-

Consolidated 

$ 5 876 

_ 
326 

51 
244 
117 
261 

10 299 

574 

370 

(1) The all other category represents miscellaneous corporate items, including income taxes, wliich are not allocated to business units for 

purposes of segment profit measurement. 

(2) The reconciling eliminations category eliminates the intersegment revenues of the ECBU and the EDBU. 

(3) The components of Depreciation and Amortization include depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets, amortization of 

phase-in deferrals, and amortization of post-In-service deferred operating expenses. 

(4) Interest income is deemed Immaterial. 
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Cin millions) 

1997 

Cinergy Business Units ^,1 Rp,.nnr.iling 

ECBU EDBU ESBU IBU Total Other"' Eliminations*^' 

Operating Revenues-External 

Customers $1 287 $ 27 $3 071 $ 2 $4 387 $ - $ -

Intersegment Revenues 1 688 727 - - 2 415 - C2 415) 
Depreciation and Amortization'^' 184 118 5 - 307 - -

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated 
Subsidiaries - - (3) 63 60 -

Interest Expense (net)"" 108 86 4 38 236 
Income Taxes _ _ _ _ _ 213 

Segment Profit (Loss) Before 

Extraordinary Item 330 224 4 22 580 (217) 
Extraordinary Item'^' _ _ _ d o g ) (109) 

Segment Profit (Loss) 330 224 4 (87) 471 (217) 

Total Segment Assets 4 380 3 617 279 562 8 838 20 
Investments in Unconsolidated 

Subsidiaries - - 3 535 538 

Total Expenditures for Long-Lived 

Assets 79 224 12 - 315 13 

(1) The all other category represents miscellaneous corporate items, including income taxes, which are not allocated to business 
purposes of segment profit measurement. 

(2) The reconciling eliminations category eliminates the intersegment revenues of the ECBU and the EDBU. 

Consolidated 

$4 387 

-
307 

60 

236 

213 

363 

(109) 
254 

8 858 

538 

328 

units for 

(3) The components of Depreciation and Amortization include depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets, amortization of 

phase-in deferrals, and amiortization of post-in-service deferred operating expenses. 

(4) Interest income is deemed immaterial. 

(5) Windfall Profits Tax (see Note 17). 

(in millions) 

1996 

Cinergy Business Units ^H Rprnnrillnn 

ECBU EDBU ESBU IBU Total Other'^' Eliminations'^' 

Operating Revenues-External 

Customers $ 210 $ 23 $3 043 $ - $3 276 $ - $ 
Intersegment Revenues 1 678 733 - - 2 4 i i - (2 411) 
Depreciation and Amortization'^' 175 115 5 - 295 

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated 
Subsidiaries - - - 25 25 

Interest Expense (net)" ' 101 91 6 IS 216 
Income Taxes _ _ _ _ - 199 

Segment Profit (Loss) 308 208 16 7 539 (204) 
Total Segment Assets 4 399 3 424 283 605 8 711 14 

Investments in Unconsolidated 
Subsidiaries _ _ _ 593 593 

Total Expenditures for Long-Lived 

Assets 100 206 17 593 916 1 

(1) The all other category represents miscellaneous corporate items, including Income taxes, which are not allocated to business 

purposes of segment profit measurement 

C2) The reconciling eliminations category eliminates the intersegment revenues of the ECBU and the EDBU. 

Consolidated 

$3 276 

-
295 

25 
216 
199 

335 
8 725 

593 

917 

units for 

(3) The components of Depreciation and Amortization include depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets, amortization of 

phase-in deferrals, and amortization of post-in-service deferred operating expenses. 

(4) Interest income is deemed immaterial. 
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

(in millions) 

Year Electric 

$2 696 
2 579 
2 568 

Traditional Utility 

Gas 

$435 
519 

505 

Total 

$3 131 

3 098 

3 073 

Revenues 

Energy 

Electric 

$2 066 

1 283 

200 

Marketing and Trading 

Gas Total 

$665 $2 731 

1 283 

200 

Other 

$14 

6 

3 

Consolidated 

$5 876 

4 387 

3 276 

1998 
1997 
1996 

Cinergy's core products and services focus on providing traditional utility services (the supply of electric energy 
and gas supply) and energy marketing and trading services. 

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND LONG-LIVED ASSETS 

(in millions) 

Revenues 

International 

Year Domestic UK All Other'i' Total Consolidated 

1998 
1997 
1996 

(in millions) 

$5 867 
4 385 
3 276 

$ - $5 876 
4 387 
3 276 

Year Domestic 

$7 302 

7 267 

7 302 

UK 

$501 

505 

593 

Long-Lived Assets 

International 

All Other'i^ 

$209 
42 

10 

Total 

$710 

547 

603 

Consolidated 

$8 012 

7 814 

7 905 

1998 
1997 
1996 

(1) During 1998, the IBU acquired the assets of two district heating plants (approximately 816 MV^ combined) in the Czech Republic. The 
assets and the results of operations of these international investments are consolidated Into the company's financial statements, while the 
remaining international long-lived assets of the IBU are accounted for as equity method investments. As a result, revenues from the IBU 
are not significant. 

Cinergy's core service territory and asset base is located in the southwestern portion of Ohio, including 
adjacent areas in Kentucky, and the north central, central, and southern regions of Indiana. Cinergy's energy 
marketing and trading function provides energy risk management, marketing, and trading services throughout the 
US. Abroad, Cinergy owns a 50% interest in Midlands, a regional electric company located in the United Kingdom 
(̂ ^UK '̂). In addition to its ownership interest in Midlands, Cinergy also has other equity investments in Europe, 
Africa, and Asia and is actively developing other energy-related projects. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

A reconciliation of earnings per common share C^basic EPS'O to earnings per common share assuming dilution 
(''diluted EPS") is presented below: 

Income Shares 

(In millions, except per share amounts) (Numerator) . (Denominator) EPS 

1998 

Earnings per common share: Net income 

Effect of dilutive securities: Common stock options 
$261 158 

1 
$1.65 

EPS-assuming dilution: Net income plus assumed conversions 

1997 

Earnings per common share: Net income before extraordinary item'^ 

Effect of dilutive securities: Common stock options 

$261 

$363 

159 

158 
1 

$1.65 

$2.30 

EPS-assuming dilution: Net income before extraordinary item plus assumed conversions' 

1996 

Wet income 

Less: costs of reacquisition of preferred stock of subsidiary 

$363 

$335 
18 

159 $2.28 

Earnings per common share: Net income applicable to common stock 

Effect of dilutive securities: Common stock options 
317 158 

1 
$2.00 

EPS-assuming dilution: Net income applicable to common stock plus assumed conversions $317 159 $1.99 

(a) The after-tax EPS impact of the extraordinary item-equity share of windfall profits tax In 1997 was $.69 for both basic and diluted 

EPS. 

Options to purchase shares of common stock are excluded from the calculation of EPS-assuming dilution when the 
exercise prices of these options are greater than the average market price of the common shares during the year 
For 1998, approximately one million shares, with an average exercise price of approximately $38.00 per share, 
were excluded from the EPS-assuming dilution calculation. For 1997 and 1996, shares excluded for this 
calculation were immaterial. 

17. EXTRAORDINARY ITEM-
EQUITY SHARE OF WINDFALL 
PROFITS TAX 

During the third quarter of 1997, a windfall profits 
tax was enacted into law in Great Britain. This tax 
was levied against a limited number of British 
companies, including Midlands, which had previously 
been owned and operated by the government. The tax 
was intended to be a recovery of funds by the 
government due to the undervaluing of companies, 
such as Midlands, when they were privatized by the 
government via public stock offerings several years 
ago. 

Cinergy's share of the tax was approximately 
67 million pounds sterling ($109 million or $.69 per 
share, basic and diluted). As Cinergy's management 
believes this charge to be unusual in nature, and does 
not expect such a charge to recur, the tax was 
recorded as an extraordinary item in Cinergy's Consol­
idated Statement of Income during 1997. No related 
tax benefit was recorded for the charge as the 
windfall profits tax is not deductible for corporate 

income tax purposes in the UK, and Cinergy expects 
that benefits, if any, derived for US federal income 
taxes will not be significant. 

18. WVPA SETTLEMENT 

In February 1989, PSI and WVPA entered into a 
settlement agreement to resolve all claims related to 
Marble Hill, a nuclear project canceled in 1984. 
Implementation of the settlement was contingent upon 
a number of events. During 1998, PSI reached 
agreement on all matters with the relevant parties 
and, as a result, recorded a liability to the RUS. PSI 
will repay the obligation to the RUS with interest over 
a 35-year term. The net proceeds from a 35-year 
power sales agreement with WVPA will be used to 
fund the principal and interest on the obligation to the 
RUS. Assumption of the liability (recorded as 
long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance Sheet) 
resulted in a charge against earnings of $80 million 
($50 million after tax or $.32 per share basic and 
diluted) in the second quarter of 1998. 
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management is responsible for the accuracy, objectiv­
ity, and consistency of the financial statements 
presented in this report. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy) conform to 
generally accepted accounting principles and have also 
been prepared to comply with accounting policies and 
principles prescribed by the applicable regulatory 
authorities. 

To assure the reliability of Cinergy's financial 
statements, management maintains a system of inter­
nal controls. This system is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that 
transactions are executed with management's authori­
zation, and that transactions are properly recorded so 
financial statements can be prepared in accordance 
with the policies and principles previously described. 

Cinergy has established policies intended to ensure 
that employees adhere to the highest standards of 
business ethics. Management also takes steps to 
assure the integrity and objectivity of Cinergy's ac­
counts by careful selection of managers, division of 
responsibilities, delegation of authority, and communi­
cation programs to assure that policies and standards 
are understood. 

An internal auditing program is used to evaluate 
the adequacy of and compliance with internal controls. 
Although no cost effective internal control system will 
preclude all errors and irregularities, management 
believes that Cinergy's system of internal controls 
provides reasonable assurance that material errors or 
irregularities are prevented, or would be detected 
within a timely period. 

Cinergy's Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, which has 
expressed its opinion with respect to the fairness of 
the statements. The auditors' exammat̂ on mcluded a 
review of the system of internal controls and tests of 
transactions to the extent they considered necessary to 
render their opinion. 

The Board of Directors, through its audit commit­
tee of outside directors, meets periodically with 
management, internal auditors, and independent audi­
tors to assure that they are carrying out their 
respective responsibilities. The audit committee has 
full access to the internal and independent auditors, 
and meets with them, with and without management 
present, to discuss auditing and financial reporting 
matters. 

p^e^9U4J ^ / ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

James E. Rogers 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

( J i ^ ^ ^ z - * - - ^ 

Charles J. Winger 
Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors of Cinergy Corp.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets of Cinergy Corp. (a Delaware Corpora­
tion) and its subsidiary companies as of December 31 , 
1998 and 1997, and the related consolidated state­
ments of income, changes in common stock equity and 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31 , 1998. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards. Those stan­
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan­
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan­
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Cinergy Corp. and its subsidiary 
companies as of December 31 , 1998 and 1997, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended Decem­
ber 31 , 1998, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

As explained in Note 1 to the consolidated 
financial statements, the Company changed its method 
of accounting for its energy trading and risk manage­
ment activities effective December 31 , 1998. 

Arthur Andersen LLP 
Cincinnati, Ohio, 
January 28, 1999 
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FINANCIAL 

Operating Revenues (thousands) 

Net Income (thousands) 

Total Assets (thousands) 

Construct ion Expenditures ( Including AFUDC) (thousands) 

Capital ization Common Equity 

($-thousands) Preferred Stock'"' 

Subject to Mandatory Redemption 

Mot Subject to iVIandatory Redemption 

Long-term Debt'''' 

Total Capitalization 

Other Common Avg. Shares Outstanding (millions) 

Stock Data Avg. Shares Outstanding-

Assuming Dilution (millions) 

Earnings Per Share 

Earnings Per Share-Assuming Dilution 

Dividends Declared Per Share 

Payout Ratio'^' 

Book Value Per Share (year-end) 

Degree Day Data CG&E Heating (30-year average-5,248) 

Cooling (3Q-year avera9e-996) 

PSI Heating (30-year average-5,609) 

Cooling (30-year average-1,014) 

Employee Data Number of Employees (year-end) 

1998 

$ 5 876 294 

$ 260 968 

$10 298 795 

$ 370 277 

$ 2 541 231 

-
92 640 

2 604 467 

$ 5 238 338 

158 

159 

$ 1.65 

$ 1.65 

$ 1.80 

1 0 9 . 1 % 

$ 16.02 

4 282 

1 2 3 5 

4 440 

1 2 5 0 

8 794 

1997 

$4 387 101 

$ 253 238 

$8 858 153 

$ 328 153 

$2 539 200 

-
177 989 

2 150 902 

$4 868 091 

158 

159 

$ 1.61'=' 

$ 1.59'=' 

$ 1.80 

111.8%'=' 

$ 16.10 

5 271 

851 

5 680 

871 

7 609 

1996 

$3 276 187 

$ 334 797 

$8 724 934 

$ 324 23S 

$2 584 454 

-
194 232 

2 326 378 

$5 105 064 

153 

159 

$ 2.00'"' 

$ 1.99"" 

$ 1.74 

87 .0%"" 

$ 16.39 

5 621 

916 

5 891 

989 

7 973 

1995 

$3 023 431 

$ 347 182 

$8 103 242 

$ 326 869 

$2 548 843 

160 000 

227 897 

2 346 766 

$5 283 506 

157 

158 

$ 2.22 

$ 2.20 

$ 1.72 

77.5% 

$ 16.17 

5 323 

1 216 

5 578 

1 214 

8 602 

1994 

$2 888 447 

$ 191 142 

$8 037 422 

$ 486 734 

$2 414 271 

210 000 

267 929 

2 615 269 

$5 507 469 

147 

148 

$ 1.30 

$ 1.29 

$ 1.50 

115.4% 

$ 15.56 

4 937 

1 026 

5 194 

1 057 

8 868 

GAS OPERATIONS 

Gas Revenues Residential 

(thousands) Commercial 

Industrial 

other 

Total Sales 

Gas Transported 

Total Sales & Transported 

Total ProEnergy 

Other Gas Revenues 

Total Gas 

Gas Sales Residential 

(million cu. ft.) Commercial 

Industrial 

Other 

Total Sales 

Gas Transported 

Total ProEnergy 

Total Sales, Transported, & ProEnergy 

Gas Customers Residential 

(civg.) Commercial 

Industrial 

Other 

Transportation 

ProEnergy 

Total 

System Maximum Day Sendout (million cu. ft.) 

Avg. Cost Per Mcf Purchased (cents) 

Load Factor-Gas 

$ 240 297 

87 583 

17 320 

12 888 

358 088 

4 1 050 

399 138 
658 771 

2 755 

$ 1 060 664 

36 256 

13 999 

2 941 

2 449 

55 645 

57 881 

338 343 

451 869 

404 417 

39 332 

1 569 

1 2 2 7 

15 626 

147 

462 318 

788 

364.43^ ' 

39.5% 

Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 1998 presentation. 

(a) Excludes amounts due within one year 

(b) Includes $.12 per share for the cost of reacquiring 9 0 % of CG&E 's preferred stock through 

(c) Includes $.69 per share for an extraordinary item (Midlands windfall profits tax). 

(d) Based or basic earnings per share. 

(e) Excludes ProEnergy purchases. Had the purchases been included, 

$ 284 516 

121 345 

31 168 

18 554 

455 583 

32 456 

488 039 

-
3 106 

$ 491 145 

41 846 

19 141 

5 240 

3 162 

69 389 

53 448 

-
122 837 

407 128 

41 915 

1 960 

1 505 

1 205 

-
453 713 

933 

380.41 

3 6 . 1 % 

R tender offer. 

$ 272 303 

118 994 

30 409 

20 133 

441 839 

27 679 

469 518 

-
4 517 

$ 474 035 

44 721 

21 199 

5 746 

3 947 

75 613 

48 560 

-
124 173 

397 660 

41 499 

1 961 

1 518 

829 

-
443 467 

861 

326.50 

39.5% 

$ 237 576 

99 708 

28 979 

19 74D 

386 003 

20 934 

406 937 

-
3 915 

$ 410 852 

43 153 

19 664 

6 624 

4 584 

74 025 

40 543 

-
114 568 

389 165 

40 897 

1 959 

1 558 

599 

-
434 178 

813 

277.92 

38.7% 

the Avg. Cost Per Mcf Purchased (cents) would have been 217.99 in 1998. 

$ 242 415 

114 854 

43 490 

23 483 1 

424 242 1 

13 496 1 

437 738 

-
4 660 

$ 442 398 

39 065 

20 070 

9 025 

4 803 

72 963 

32 579 

-
105 542 

379 953 

40 545 

2 076 

1 520 

56 

-
424 150 

955 1 

335.60 1 

30.3% 1 

1 
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ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

1 Electric Revenues (thousands) 

Electric Sales (mHlion kwh) 

Electric Customers (avg.) 

System Capabi l i ty-Summer (mw)'""=' 

System Peak Load (mw) 

i 
' Annual Load Factor-ElEct r ic 

Electr ic i ty Output (million kwh) 

Source of Energy Supply (%) 

Fuel Cost 

Heat Rate (Btu per kwh sendout) 

Certain amounts In prior years have been 

(a) Includes amounts TO be purchased, si 

(b) Excludes foreign capacity. 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Other 

Total Retail 

Sales For Resale 

Other 

Total Electric 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Other 

Total Retail ' 

Sales For Resale 

Total Electric 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Other 

Tota) 

Consolidated 

CG&E 

PSI 

CG&E 

PSI 

CG&E 

PSI 

Generated -Net 

CG&E 

PSI 

Purchased'"' 

Coal 

Hydro 

Oil & Gas 

Purchased 

Per IVIrllion Btu 

Consolidated 

CG&E 

PSI 

1998 

$1 028 314 

722 292 

702 208 

100 017 

2 552 831 

2 140 431 

53 973 

$4 747 235 

14 551 

12 524 

18 093 

1815 

46 983 

77 558 

124 541 

1 257 853 

153 674 

6 473 

6 500 

1 424 500 

10 936 

5 075 

5 861 

4 725 

5 708 

59.0% 

59.7% 

26 069 

30 851 

3 718 

90.73% 

0.57% 

2.56% 

6.13% 

$ 1.24 

10 274 

10110 

10 414 

reclassified to conform to the 1998 presentation. 

bject to availability, pursuant to agreements 

(c) Excludes purchases related to Cinergy's power marketing and trading function. 

1997 

$ 984 891 

689 091 

669 464 

111 867 

2 455 313 

1 367 897 

38 488 

$3 861 698 

14 147 

12 034 

17 321 

1 825 

45 327 

57 454 

102 781 

1 236 974 

151 093 

6 472 

6 372 

1 4D0 911 

10 936 

5 075 

5 8 6 \ 

4 638 

5 313 

58 .4% 

59 .2% 

25 329 

29 521 

4 073 

90.74% 

0.72% 

1.63% 

6 . 9 1 % 

$ 1.25 

10 190 

9 9S4 

10 369 

with other utilities. 

1996 

$ 996 959 

673 181 

657 563 

110 003 

2 437 706 

296 600 

34 400 

$2 768 706 

14 705 

11 802 

16 803 

1 811 

45 121 

12 399 

57 520 

1 215 782 

149 015 

6 470 

6 265 

1 377 532 

11 037 

5 175 

5 862 

4 452 

5 227 

60 .5% 

59 .0% 

25 844 

26 815 

7 990 

85.69% 

0.56% 

0.58% 

13.17% 

$ 1.35 

10 113 

9 816 

10 403 

1995 

$ 965 278 

661 496 

637 090 

118 458 

2 382 322 

197 943 

32 314 

$2 612 579 

14 366 

11 648 

16 264 

1 795 

44 073 

7 769 

51 842 

1 195 323 

147 888 

6 424 

6 008 

1 355 643 

11 133 

5 271 

5 862 

4 509 

5 274 

58 .8% 

57 .4% 

23 959 

28 499 

2 576 

93.93% 

0.66% 

0.73% 

4.68% 

$ 1.37 

10 035 

9 832 

10 207 

1994 

$ 898 763 

626 333 

598 126 

96 247 

2 219 469 

194 734 

31 846 

$2 446 049 

13 578 

11 167 

15 547 

1 723 

42 015 

7 801 

49 816 

I 174 705 

144 766 

6 345 

. 5 779 

1 331 595 

10 990 

5 271 

5 719 

4 326 

4 869 

58 .7% 

59 .0% 

22 432 

27 898 

2 449 

94.40% 

0.58% 

0.38% 

4.64% 

$ 1.41 

10 095 

9 853 

10 292 
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